
 
1 

 

 
 

AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE 

INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY* 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 15, 2021 

10:00 A.M. 
 

 VIEW THE MEETING LIVE ONLINE AT IEUA.ORG  
TELEPHONE ACCESS: (415) 856-9169 / Conf Code: 811 284 110# 

 
PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF EXECUTIVE ORDERS N-25-20 AND N-29-20 ISSUED BY 

GOVERNOR GAVIN NEWSOM IN MARCH 2020 AND IN AN EFFORT TO PROTECT PUBLIC HEALTH 
AND PREVENT THE SPREAD OF COVID-19, THERE WILL BE NO PUBLIC LOCATION AVAILABLE 

FOR IN-PERSON ATTENDANCE.  
 

The public may participate and provide public comment during the meeting by dialing into the number 
provided above.   Alternatively, public comments may be emailed to the Board Secretary/Office Manager 

Denise Garzaro at dgarzaro@ieua.org no later than 24 hours prior to the scheduled meeting time. 
Comments will be read into the record during the meeting. 

 

CALL TO ORDER OF THE INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS MEETING  
 
FLAG SALUTE 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

 
Members of the public may address the Board on any item that is within the jurisdiction of the Board; 
however, no action may be taken on any item not appearing on the agenda unless the action is 
otherwise authorized by Subdivision (b) of Section 54954.2 of the Government Code.  Those persons 
wishing to address the Board on any matter, whether or not it appears on the agenda, are requested to 
email the Board Secretary no later than 24 hours prior to the scheduled meeting time or address the 
Board during the public comments section of the meeting.  Comments will be limited to three minutes 
per speaker.  Thank you. 

 

 
ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 
 

In accordance with Section 54954.2 of the Government Code (Brown Act), additions to the agenda 
require two-thirds vote of the legislative body, or, if less than two-thirds of the members are present, a 
unanimous vote of those members present, that there is a need to take immediate action and that the 
need for action came to the attention of the local agency subsequent to the agenda being posted. 
 

 
*A Municipal Water District 

 
 

mailto:dgarzaro@ieua.org


2 

NEW, PROMOTED AND RECLASSIFIED EMPLOYEE INTRODUCTIONS 

1. CONSENT ITEMS

NOTICE: All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine and non-
controversial and will be acted upon by the Board by one motion in the form listed below.  There will be 
no separate discussion on these items prior to the time the Board votes unless any Board members, 
staff or the public requests specific items be discussed and/or removed from the Consent Calendar for 
separate action. 

A. MINUTES
Approve minutes of the August 4, 2021 and August 18, 2021 Board
Meetings.

B. REPORT ON GENERAL DISBURSEMENTS (Finance & Admin)

Staff recommends that the Board approve the total disbursements for the
month of July 2021 in the amount of $27,352,230.65.

C. RP-1 AERATION MEMBRANE REPLACEMENT CONSTRUCTION
CONTRACT AWARD (Eng, Ops & WR)

Staff recommends that the Board:

1. Award a construction contract for the RP-1 Aeration Membrane
Replacement, Project No. PA17006.03, to J.F. Shea Construction Inc.,
for the not-to-exceed amount of $1,738,000; and

2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the construction contract,
subject to non-substantive changes.

D. SOLE SOURCE PURCHASE FOR CONTINUED SCADA SYSTEM
TECHNICAL SUPPORT SERVICES (Eng, Ops & WR)

Staff recommends that the Board: 

1. Approve the sole source purchase for continued services with Royal
Industrial Solutions/Rockwell Automation for a seven-year technical
support contract for a not-to-exceed amount of $1,065,320; and

2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the contract.

E. CONTRACT AWARD FOR BOILER MAINTENANCE SERVICES (Eng,

Ops & WR) 
Staff recommends that the Board: 

1. Approve the award of Contract No. 4600003063 to Powerhouse
Combustion & Mechanical Corporation to provide Boiler Maintenance
Services for a total-not-to-exceed amount of $153,260 over five years
with a fixed price for one year and potential Consumer Price Index
increases for the remainder of the contract; and

2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the service contract.



3 

F. ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION NO. 2021-9-6, AUTHORIZING IEUA TO
ENTER INTO A FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE AGREEMENT UNDER THE
STORMWATER FOR RECHARGE PILOT PROGRAM WITH
METROPOLITAN WATER DISTRICT OF SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA  
Staff recommends that the Board adopt Resolution No. 2021-9-6, 
authorizing IEUA to enter into a Financial Assistance Agreement under the 
Stormwater for Recharge Pilot Program with Metropolitan Water District of 
Southern California (MWD) for the Montclair Basin Improvements Project; 
and designating the General Manager, or his designee, as representative 
to execute and submit the MWD Stormwater for Recharge Pilot Program 
grant agreement and supporting documents. 

G. ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION NO. 2021-9-8, AMENDING THE
AGENCY’S SALARY SCHEDULE/MATRIX FOR ALL GROUPS
Staff recommends that the Board adopt Resolution No. 2021-9-8,
amending the Agency’s Salary Schedule/Matrix for all groups.

H. FISCAL YEAR 2020/21 CARRY FORWARD BUDGET AMENDMENT
(Finance & Admin)

Staff recommends that the Board:

1. Approve the carry forward of open encumbrances and non-
encumbered commitments related to budgets from FY 2020/21 to
FY 2021/22; and

2. Amend the budget in the amount of $18,485,894.

2. ACTION ITEMS

A. ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION NO. 2021-9-7, IN SUPPORT OF
METROPOLITAN WATER DISTRICT OF SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA’S
DECLARATION OF A CONDITION 2 – WATER SUPPLY ALERT
Staff recommends that the Board adopt Resolution No. 2021-9-7 in
support of Metropolitan Water District’s Declaration of a Water Supply
Alert.

B. RP-5 EXPANSION PROJECT CHANGE ORDER (Eng, Ops & WR)

Staff recommends that the Board: 

1. Approve a construction change order for the RP-5 Expansion, Project
No. EN19001, to W.M. Lyles Co., for the not-to-exceed amount of
$578,832.00 increasing the contract from $330,640,235.58 to
$331,219,067.58 (approximately 0.18% increase); and

2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the change order, subject
to non-substantive changes.



 
4 

 
C. ASSOCIATION OF CALIFORNIA WATER AGENCIES BALLOT FOR 

REGION 9 BOARD ELECTION FOR 2022/23 TERM 
 Staff recommends that the Board determine the Agency’s vote for the 

association of California Water Agencies Region 9 Board election for the 
2022/23 term by: 
  
1. Casting a vote for the slate of candidates recommended by the          

Region 9 Nominating Committee; or  
 

2.  Voting for individual Region 9 Board members. 
 
 

3. INFORMATION ITEMS 
 
A. WATER STORAGE INVESTMENT PROGRAM/CHINO BASIN 

PROGRAM UPDATE (ORAL) 
 

B. GRANTS SEMI-ANNUAL UPDATE (POWERPOINT) 
 
C. ENGINEERING AND CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT PROJECT 

UPDATES (POWERPOINT) (Eng, Ops & WR) 
 
RECEIVE AND FILE INFORMATION ITEMS 
 
D. RECYCLED WATER GROUNDWATER RECHARGE UPDATE (Eng, Ops 

& WR) 
 

E. LABORATORY SEMI-ANNUAL UPDATE (Eng, Ops & WR) 
 

F. STATE LEGISLATIVE REPORT AND MATRIX FROM WEST COAST 
ADVISORS (WRITTEN) (Community & Leg) 

 
G. FEDERAL LEGISLATIVE REPORT AND MATRIX FROM INNOVATIVE 

FEDERAL STRATEGIES (WRITTEN) (Community & Leg) 
 
H. CALIFORNIA STRATEGIES, LLC MONTHLY ACTIVITY REPORT 

(WRITTEN) (Community & Leg) 
 
I. PUBLIC OUTREACH AND COMMUNICATION (WRITTEN) (Community 

& Leg) 
 

J. RP-5 EXPANSION PROJECT UPDATE: SEPTEMBER 2021 
(POWERPOINT) (Eng, Ops & WR) 

 
K. TREASURER’S REPORT OF FINANCIAL AFFAIRS (WRITTEN/ 

POWERPOINT)  
 
L. FISCAL YEAR 2020/21 FOURTH QUARTER BUDGET VARIANCE, 

PERFORMANCE GOAL UPDATES, AND BUDGET TRANSFERS 
(WRITTEN/POWERPOINT) (Finance & Admin) 

 
 



 
5 

 
M. IEUA INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE REVIEW (POWERPOINT) 

(Finance & Admin) 
 
N. CONTRACTS AND PROCUREMENT FOLLOW-UP REVIEW OF 

RECOMMENDATION RELATED TO THE MASTER TRADE 
CONTRACTS AUDIT REPORT (WRITTEN/POWERPOINT) (Audit) 

 
O. INTERNAL AUDIT DEPARTMENT QUARTERLY STATUS REPORT 

FOR AUGUST 30, 2021 (WRITTEN/POWERPOINT) (Audit) 
 
P. INTERIM REPORT: ACCOUNTS PAYABLE OPERATIONAL AND 

INTERNAL CONTROL AUDIT (WRITTEN/POWERPOINT) (Audit) 
 

 

4. AGENCY REPRESENTATIVES’ REPORTS  
 

A. SANTA ANA WATERSHED PROJECT AUTHORITY REPORT 
(WRITTEN) 
September 7, 2021 SAWPA Commission meeting  

 

B. METROPOLITAN WATER DISTRICT OF SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA 
REPORT (WRITTEN) 
September 14, 2021 MWD Board meeting 
 

C. REGIONAL SEWERAGE PROGRAM POLICY COMMITTEE REPORT 
(WRITTEN)  
September 2, 2021 Regional Sewerage Program Policy Committee 
meeting 

 

D. CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER REPORT  
The next meeting of the CBWM is September 23, 2021 
 

E. CHINO BASIN DESALTER AUTHORITY REPORT (WRITTEN)  
September 2, 2021 Special CDA Board meeting 
 

F. INLAND EMPIRE REGIONAL COMPOSTING AUTHORITY REPORT  
The next meeting of the IERCA Board is November 1, 2021  

 
 

5. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (WRITTEN) 
 

 
6. BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ REQUESTED FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

 
 

7. DIRECTORS’ COMMENTS 
 

A. CONFERENCE REPORTS 
 

 

This is the time and place for the Members of the Board to report on prescheduled Committee/District 
Representative Assignment meetings, which were held since the last regular Board meeting, and/or any 
other items of interest. 
 

 
 



 
6 

 

8. CLOSED SESSION 
 

A. PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54957 AND 54957.6 – 
PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION  

1. Manager of Internal Audit 
 

ADJOURN 
 

 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in 
this meeting, please contact the Board Secretary/Office Manager (909) 993-1736, 48 hours prior to the 
scheduled meeting so that the Agency can make reasonable arrangements. 
 

 

 

 
                     Declaration of Posting 

 
I, Denise Garzaro, Board Secretary/Office Manager of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency*, a Municipal Water District, 
hereby certify that a copy of this agenda has been posted by 5:30 p.m. on the Agency’s website at www.ieua.org and 
at the Agency’s main office, 6075 Kimball Avenue, Building A, Chino, CA on Thursday, September 9, 2021. 

 

 
Denise Garzaro, CMC 

http://www.ieua.org/


       CONSENT 
    CALENDAR 

ITEM 

1A 



 

 
*A Municipal Water District 
 

1

 
MINUTES OF THE  

SPECIAL WORKSHOP OF THE 
INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY  

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 4, 2021 
9:00 A.M. 

 
DIRECTORS PRESENT via video/teleconference: 

Jasmin A. Hall, President 
Michael Camacho, Vice President 
Steven J. Elie, Secretary/Treasurer 
Marco Tule 
 

DIRECTORS ABSENT: 
Paul Hofer 
 

STAFF PRESENT: 
Christiana Daisy, Deputy General Manager 
Denise Garzaro, Board Secretary/Office Manager  
Wilson To, Technology Specialist II 
 

STAFF PRESENT via video/teleconference: 
Shivaji Deshmukh, General Manager  
Kathy Besser, Executive Manager of External & Government Affairs/AGM 
Christina Valencia, Executive Manager of Finance & Administration/AGM 
Sharon Acosta-Grijalva, Human Resources Analyst II 
Tony Arellano, Safety Officer 
Jerry Burke, Manager of Engineering 
Andrea Carruthers, Manager of External Affairs 
Robert Delgado, Manager of Operations & Maintenance 
Lisa Dye, Manager of Human Resources 
Warren Green, Manager of Contracts & Procurement 
Don Hamlett, Acting Deputy Manager of Information System Services 
Jennifer Hy-Luk, Administrative Assistant II  
Nolan King, Network Administrator 
Cathleen Pieroni, Manager of Inter-Agency Relations 
Jesse Pompa, Manager of Grants 
Teresa Velarde, Manager of Internal Audit 
 

OTHERS PRESENT via video/teleconference: 
Jean Cihigoyenetche, JC Law Firm 

 



 

 
*A Municipal Water District 
 

2

A special meeting of the Board of Directors of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency* was held at the 
office of the Agency, 6075 Kimball Avenue, Building A, Chino, California and via 
video/teleconference on the above date. 
 
President Hall called the meeting to order at 9:00 a.m. Executive Assistant Laura Mantilla led the 
Pledge of Allegiance.   
 
Board Secretary/Office Manager Denise Garzaro took a roll call to establish a quorum. A quorum 
was present. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
There were no public comments.  
 
ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA 
There were no changes/additions/deletions to the agenda. 
 
1. WORKSHOP 

 
A. UPDATE ON AGENCY SECURITY, SAFETY AND CYBERSECURITY 

Manager of Contracts & Procurement Warren Green; Safety Officer Tony Arellano; and 
Network Administrator Nolan King provided the staff presentation.  
 
Directors Elie and Tule asked questions regarding the safety components presented by 
staff.  
 

     INFORMATION ITEM ONLY; NO ACTION TAKEN 
 
 

2. GENERAL MANAGER’S COMMENTS 
General Manager Shivaji Deshmukh stated that on July 30, 2021 a contractor working on 
the 10-freeway widening project punctured IEUA’s 42” recycled water line. IEUA staff from 
Engineering, Operations, and an emergency contractor (W.A. Rasic) responded. Over the 
next 72 hours the leak was repaired, 2 broken valves were removed, and the system was 
placed back online. The estimated contractor’s cost for the repairs is $240,000. IEUA’s 
team will begin the design to replace the 2 broken valves in a future contract. 
 
In May 2021, IEUA became a signatory agency of IE Works, a regional collaborative of 
water/wastewater agencies dedicated to addressing the industry’s workforce challenges. 
The newly formed IE Works is currently in the process of developing its governance 
structure and has requested that each signatory agency appoint a representative to serve 
on the IE Works Board of Directors. President Hall will serve as the IEUA representative 
on the IE Works Board of Directors and staff will provide support as needed. 
 
As of July 23, the Inland Empire Regional Composting Facility team marked two years 
with no recordable injuries or lost-time incidents. 

 
 

3. BOARD OF DIRECTORS REQUESTED FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS  
There were no future requested agenda items from the Board of Directors. 
 



 

 
*A Municipal Water District 
 

3

4. DIRECTORS’ COMMENTS  
There were no Directors comments. 
 
 

5. CLOSED SESSION 
 The Board recessed to Closed Session at 9:40 a.m.: 
 

A. PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54957(a) – THREAT TO 
PUBLIC SERVICES OR FACILITIES 
Consultation with Manager of Contracts and Procurement 

 
The meeting resumed at 10:00 a.m., and General Counsel Jean Cihigoyenetche stated 
that the Board discussed item 5A and took no reportable action. 

 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
With no further business, President Hall adjourned the meeting at 10:01 a.m.  
 
 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Steven J. Elie, Secretary/Treasurer 
 
 
APPROVED:  SEPTEMBER 15, 2021 



 

 
*A Municipal Water District 
 

1

 
 

MINUTES  
REGULAR MEETING OF THE 

INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 18, 2021 

10:00 A.M. 
 
DIRECTORS PRESENT: 

Jasmin A. Hall, President 
Steven J. Elie, Secretary/Treasurer 
 

DIRECTORS PRESENT via Video/Teleconference: 
Michael Camacho, Vice President 
Paul Hofer 
Marco Tule 
 

STAFF PRESENT: 
Shivaji Deshmukh, General Manager 
Christiana Daisy, Deputy General Manager 
Denise Garzaro, Board Secretary/Office Manager 
Daniel Solorzano, Technology Specialist I 
Wilson To, Technology Specialist II 
  

STAFF PRESENT via Video/Teleconference: 
Kathy Besser, Executive Manager of External & Government Affairs/AGM 
Christina Valencia, Executive Manager of Finance & Administration/AGM  
Randy Lee, Executive Manager of Operations/AGM 
Adham Almasri, Principal Engineer 
Jerry Burke, Manager of Engineering & Construction Management 
Andy Campbell, Groundwater Recharge Coordinator/Hydrogeologist 
Francis Concemino, Senior Associate Engineer 
Robert Delgado, Manager of Operations & Maintenance 
Lisa Dye, Manager of Human Resources 
Warren Green, Manager of Contracts, Procurement & Risk Services  
Don Hamlett, Acting Deputy Manager of Integrated Systems Services  
Jennifer Hy-Luk, Administrative Assistant II 
Eddie Lin, Associate Engineer 
Sylvie Lee, Manager of Strategic Planning & Resources 
Jason Marseilles, Deputy Manager of Engineering & Construction Management 
Ken Monfore, Manager of Asset Management 
Cathleen Pieroni, Manager of Inter-Agency Relations 
Jesse Pompa, Manager of Grants 
Sushmitha Reddy, Manager of Laboratories 
Jeanina Romero, Executive Assistant 
Travis Sprague, Principal Engineer 
Ken Tam, Deputy Manager of Strategic Planning & Resources 



 

 
*A Municipal Water District 
 

2

Teresa Velarde, Manager of Internal Audit 
Brian Wilson, Senior Engineer 
Jeff Ziegenbein, Manager of Regional Compost Operations 

 
OTHERS PRESENT: 

Jean Cihigoyenetche, JC Law Firm  
 
A meeting of the Board of Directors of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency* was held at the office 
of the Agency, 6075 Kimball Avenue, Building A, Chino, California and via video/teleconference 
on the above date. 
 
President Hall called the meeting to order at 10:00 a.m. Deputy Manager of Operations              
Ryan Love led the Pledge of Allegiance. Board Secretary/Office Manager Denise Garzaro took 
roll call and established a quorum.    
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
There were no public comments.  
 
 
ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA 
There were no changes/additions/deletions to the agenda. 
 
 
1. CLOSED SESSION 
 The Board recessed to Closed Session at 10:04 a.m.: 
 

A. PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54956.9(a) – 
CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 

1. Romero vs. IEUA, Case No. CIVDS 2008043 
 
2. Spicer vs. W.A. Rasic Construction, Case No. CIVDS 1711812 
 

B. PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54957 AND 54957.6 – 
PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION  

1. General Manager 
 

The meeting resumed at 10:47 a.m., and General Counsel Jean Cihigoyenetche stated 
that the Board took no reportable actions in Closed Session. 
 

 
2.  CONSENT ITEMS 
 

A. MINUTES 
 
B. REPORT ON GENERAL DISBURSEMENTS  
 
C. CONTRACT AWARD FOR VICTORIA BASIN INFILTRATION RESTORATION 

  
D. CONDITION ASSESSMENT SERVICES MASTER SERVICE CONTRACT AWARD  

 



 

 
*A Municipal Water District 
 

3

MOVED BY DIRECTOR ELIE, SECONDED BY DIRECTOR 
TULE, AGENDA ITEM NOS. 2A THROUGH 2D 
APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED BELOW, BY THE 
FOLLOWING VOTE: 
 

    Ayes:   Camacho, Elie, Hall, Hofer, Tule 
 
    Noes:  None 
 
    Absent: None 
 

Abstain: None  
 

 
o Approved the minutes of the July 7, 2021 and July 21, 2021 Board Meetings. 

 
o Approved the total disbursements for the month of June 2021, in the amount  

of $31,211,620.12. 
 

o Approved Contract No. 4600003061 to Jeremy Harris Construction, Inc for the 
Victoria Basin Infiltration Restoration Services for a not-to-exceed amount of 
$122,581; and authorized the General Manager to execute the contract. 

 
o Awarded aggregate master service consultant contracts for condition assessment 

services to V&A Consulting Engineering Inc., HDR Engineering, Inc., Corrpro 
Companies, Inc., and Project X Engineers for a total aggregate not-to-exceed 
amount of $750,000 over a three-year period, with two, one-year options to 
extend; and authorized the General Manager to approve and execute the master 
service contracts, subject to non-substantive changes. 

 
 
3. ACTION ITEMS 

 
A. ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION NO. 2021-8-1, ESTABLISHING THE REVISED 

APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT FOR FISCAL YEAR 2021/22 
Executive Manager of Finance & Administration Christina Valencia provided 
the staff presentation. 
 
 

MOVED BY DIRECTOR CAMACHO, SECONDED BY 
DIRECTOR ELIE, AGENDA ITEM NO. 3A APPROVED, 
ADOPTING RESOLUTION NO. 2021-8-1, ESTABLISHING 
THE APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT FOR FISCAL YEAR 
2021/22, BY THE FOLLOWING VOTE: 
 

    Ayes:   Camacho, Elie, Hall, Hofer, Tule 
 
    Noes:  None 
 
    Absent: None 
 

Abstain: None  
 



 

 
*A Municipal Water District 
 

4

 
B. EASTSIDE WATER TREATMENT PLANT CAPACITY RIGHT AGREEMENT 

Deputy Manager of Strategic Planning & Resources Ken Tam provided the 
staff presentation.   

 
MOVED BY DIRECTOR ELIE, SECONDED BY DIRECTOR 
CAMACHO, THE BOARD APPROVED THE SALE OF 
TWO (2) BRINE LINE CAPACITY UNITS TO THE CITY OF 
CHINO FOR $430,000; AND AUTHORIZING THE 
GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE CAPACITY 
RIGHT AGREEMENT, SUBJECT TO NON-SUBSTANTIVE 
CHANGES, BY THE FOLLOWING VOTE: 
 

    Ayes:   Camacho, Elie, Hall, Hofer, Tule 
 
    Noes:  None 
 
    Absent: None 
 

Abstain: None  
 
 

C. GENERAL MANAGER PERFORMANCE AWARD 
General Counsel Jean Cihigoyenetche stated that the General Manager’s 
employment contract allows for the Board to grant an annual performance 
award based on a favorable performance review. The General Manager’s 
performance was discussed by the Board in Closed Session.  
 
Director Elie made a motion to utilize the Board’s discretion to grant General 
Manager Shivaji Deshmukh the maximum allowable performance award of ten 
percent of his current base salary for outstanding performance throughout the 
past year.  
 

MOVED BY DIRECTOR ELIE, SECONDED BY DIRECTOR 
TULE, THE BOARD APPROVED GRANTING GENERAL 
MANAGER SHIVAJI DESHMUKH AN ANNUAL 
PERFORMANCE AWARD OF TEN PERCENT OF HIS 
BASE SALARY FOR SUCCESSFULLY COMPLETING 
ESTABLISHED GOALS AND OBJECTIVES 
THROUGHOUT THE PAST YEAR, BY THE FOLLOWING 
VOTE: 
 

    Ayes:   Camacho, Elie, Hall, Hofer, Tule 
 
    Noes:  None 
 
    Absent: None 
 

Abstain: None  
 
 

 
4. INFORMATION ITEMS 



 

 
*A Municipal Water District 
 

5

 
A. WATER STORAGE INVESTMENT PROGRAM (WSIP)/CHINO BASIN PROGRAM 

(CBP) UPDATE 
General Manager Shivaji Deshmukh stated that staff continues to meet with interested 
local agencies to further refine the proposed WSIP | CBP program. On Monday, 
August 16, a workgroup meeting was held to discuss potential rate impacts and 
funding alternatives. Discussions were focused on how to allocate program costs 
between regional benefits and participating agencies. Staff is coordinating with 
stakeholders to hold a joint IEUA Board and Policy workshop in September. 

 
B. DROUGHT MESSAGING UPDATE 

Executive Manager of External & Government Affairs/AGM, Kathy Besser provided an 
update on IEUA’s drought messaging efforts.  
 

C. ENGINEERING AND CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT PROJECT UPDATES  
Manager of Engineering Jerry Burke provided updates on the following projects: 
Regional Sewer System Haven Avenue Repair and Replacement; RP-4 Affluent 
Screen Replacement; 1158 West Reservoir Re-coating and Upgrades; and NSNT 
Sewer Siphon Replacement. 

 
 

THE FOLLOWING ITEMS WERE RECEIVED AND FILED BY THE BOARD 
 

D. STATE LEGISLATIVE REPORT AND MATRIX FROM WEST COAST ADVISORS  
 

E. FEDERAL LEGISLATIVE REPORT AND MATRIX FROM INNOVATIVE FEDERAL 
STRATEGIES  

 
F. CALIFORNIA STRATEGIES, LLC MONTHLY ACTIVITY REPORT  
 
G. PUBLIC OUTREACH AND COMMUNICATION  

 
H. RP-5 EXPANSION PROJECT UPDATE: AUGUST 2021  

 
I. TREASURER’S REPORT OF FINANCIAL AFFAIRS  

 
 

5. AGENCY REPRESENTATIVES’ REPORTS  
 

A. SANTA ANA WATERSHED PROJECT AUTHORITY REPORT 
President Hall reported that at the August 3 Commission Meeting, the SAWPA 
Commission adopted a resolution recognizing Hope Smythe for her contributions at 
the Regional Board upon her retirement. The commission heard a proposal for Grant 
Application & Administrative Support for Small Community water/wastewater systems 
serving disadvantaged communities in the Santa Ana River Watershed. SAWPA 
General Manager Jeff Mosher also provided an update on his 100-day plan. 

 
She noted that at the August 17 Commission Meeting, the SAWPA Commission 
provided direction to SAWPA staff regarding the implementation of the grant 
application assistance program for small community water/wastewater systems 
serving disadvantaged communities in the Santa Ana River Watershed by 
implementing two (2) phases: 



 

 
*A Municipal Water District 
 

6

Phase 1 – Proceed with an initial assessment funded by equal shares of $5,000 per 
SAWPA member agency, and Phase 2 – Proportionate contributions by member 
agencies totaling up to $125,000 based on the needs of small community systems 
within the member agencies service areas identified in Phase 1.  She added that the 
Commission also approved a resolution to support Orange County Water District’s 
first Vice President Cathy Green as a candidate for the Office of Vice President of 
the Association of California Water Agencies (ACWA). 

 
B. METROPOLITAN WATER DISTRICT OF SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA REPORT 

General Manager Deshmukh noted that on Monday, August 16, the United States 
Bureau of Reclamation declared a Level 1 Shortage Condition at Lake Mead for the 
first time ever, which will reduce water allocations to Arizona, Nevada, and Mexico. 
Lake Mead is now about 35% full, the lowest since the lake was filled after the Hoover 
Dam was completed in the 1930s. California is not expected to be impacted in 2022, 
but a second tier of cuts could come as soon as 2023 if water levels in Lake Mead 
decrease further. At its August 17 meeting, the MWD Board unanimously approved an 
action to advance to “Condition 2 – Drought Alert”. That action “encourages all cities, 
counties, member and retail water agencies to review their past drought response 
measures and their newly-adopted state Water Shortage Contingency Plans and 
implement voluntary conservation measures that support retail customer in reducing 
their water use and continue to preserve regional storage reserves”. Staff plans to 
provide a more in-depth presentation next month on the drought situation, potentially 
along with related recommended action.  He added that on August 17, Governor Gavin 
Newsom stated that he may put in place mandatory water restrictions within the next 
six weeks as the state’s drought conditions continue to get worse.  

 
C. REGIONAL SEWERAGE PROGRAM POLICY COMMITTEE REPORT 

General Manager Deshmukh reported that at the August 5 Committee meeting, the 
following information items were presented: Engineering and Construction 
Management Project Updates, Regional Contract Negotiation Update, Operations 
Division Quarterly Update, 2021 Sewer System Management Plan Audit Report 
Update, Building Activity Report, Recycled Water Distribution – Operations Summary, 
Wastewater Connection Fee Rates, and Updated Regional Contract Negotiations 
Milestone schedule. 

 
D. CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER REPORT 

Director Elie reported that at the July 22 meeting, the Watermaster Board adopted the 
scope and budget amendment for the Safe Yield Recalculation Methodology 
Evaluation, with direction to staff to work with the Advisory Committee members 
toward resolution of any outstanding scope items.  

 
E. CHINO BASIN DESALTER AUTHORITY REPORT 

Director Tule reported that at the August 5 meeting, the CDA Board approved the 
acceptance of a grant of pipeline easement between TDC Remington Partners LLC 
and CDA. 

 
F. INLAND EMPIRE REGIONAL COMPOSTING AUTHORITY REPORT 

President Hall reported that at the August 2 meeting, the IERCA Board considered 
routine matters. 

 
 
 
 



 

 
*A Municipal Water District 
 

7

 
 
6. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 

General Manager Deshmukh thanked the Board for allowing him to continue to serve in 
his position. He also stated that President Hall was installed as President of the California 
Association of Sanitation Agencies (CASA) at its Annual Conference held August 11 
through August 13, 2021.  

 
7. BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ REQUESTED FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

There were no requested future agenda items. 
 
8. DIRECTORS’ COMMENTS AND CONFERENCE REPORTS 

Director Elie stated that he attended the SCWC Quarterly Luncheon on July 23, noting 
that the event served as the kickoff for the Equity, Access and Affordability Task force with 
a panel discussion. He also attended the BIA Southern California Water Conference on 
August 13. On August 11, he provided an update of IEUA projects at the Chino Valley 
Independent Fire District Board meeting. He added that he joined Senator Josh Newman 
on August 5 for an overview of IEUA and a tour of the RP-5 Expansion Project.    

 
Director Hofer and Director Tule expressed appreciation to General Manager Deshmukh 
for his guidance and performance.  

 
President Hall stated that she attended the Asian American Architects/Engineers 
Association Industry Insights: Women Leaders in Water webinar on July 29; and the CASA 
66th Annual Conference from August 11 to August 13 in San Diego; and the Association 
of San Bernardino County Special Districts Membership Meeting on August 16. President 
Hall thanked General Manager Deshmukh for his leadership at IEUA and his willingness 
to address issues of great importance to the region.  

 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
With no further business, President Hall adjourned the meeting at 11:40 a.m.  
 
 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Steven J. Elie, Secretary/Treasurer 
 
 
APPROVED:  SEPTEMBER 15, 2021 



       CONSENT 
    CALENDAR 

ITEM 

1B 



General Manager

Budget Impact 

September 15, 2021

Report on General Disbursements

Total disbursements for the month of July 2021were $27,352,230.65. Disbursement activity
included check payments of $368,995.21 to vendors and $17,693.80 for worker’s compensation
related costs. Electronic payments included the Automated Clearing House (ACH) of
$15,330,110.82 and wire transfers (excluding payroll) of $9,198,279.40. The total payroll was
$2,430,528.68 for employees and $6,622.74 for the Board of Directors.

Approve the total disbursements for the month of July 2021 in the amount of $27,352,230.65.

09/08/21Finance & Administration

Christina Valencia, Executive Manager of Finance & Administration/AGM

N N

Executive Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

The report on general disbursements is consistent with the Agency’s Business Goal of Fiscal
Responsibility in providing financial reporting that accounts for general disbursements
associated with operating requirements.

On August 18, 2021 the Board of Directors approved the June 2021 Report on General
Disbursements totaling $31,211,620.12.

Attachment 1 - Background
Attachment 2 - Details of General Disbursements
Attachment 3 - PowerPoint

Not Applicable

21215



Page 1 of 1

Background
Subject: Report on General Disbursements 

Table 1 summarizes the disbursements detailed in each of the six attachments affixed to this letter.
Table 2 lists the disbursements in excess of an aggregated $500,000 per vendor and is presented 
in largest to smallest dollar value.

Table 1:  Disbursement Details 

Attachment Payment Type Amount
2A Vendor Checks $ 368,995.21 
2B Workers' Comp Checks $ 17,693.80 
2C Vendor ACHs $ 15,330,110.82
2D Vendor Wires (excludes Payroll) $ 9,198,279.40 
2E Payroll-Net Pay-Directors $ 6,622.74 
2F Payroll-Net Pay-Employees $ 2,430,528.68

Total Disbursements $27,352,230.65

Table 2:  Disbursements in Excess of $500,000 per Vendor

Vendor Amount Description

WM LYLES COMPANY $ 5,923,774.65

Professional Svc’s for EN17110-RP-4 Process 
Improvements; EN17043 – RP-4 Primary Clarifier 
Rehabilitation; EN18006 RP-1 Flare Improvements; 
EN19001- RP-5 Expansion to 30 mgd; EN19006- RP-5
Biosolids Facility; EN19043 – RP-1 Centrifuge Foul Air 
Line.

MWD $ 4,170,956.19 May 2021 Water Purchases

CALPERS $ 3,397,318.00 FY 2021/22 Unfunded Liability

ALLIANT INSURANCE 
SERVICES INC $ 753,841.50

FY 2021/22 Insurance premium for 
Commercial Liability, Commercial Crime, 
Equipment Floater and Workers Compensation, 

California Sanitation Risk 
Management Authority 
(CSRMA)

$ 749,987.28 FY 2021/22 Property Insurance Premium

INTERNAL REVENUE 
SERVICE $ 735,743.27 PP#13 & #14 Payroll Taxes; Dir PP# 7 Taxes

PERS $ 706,756.77 07/21 Health Ins / P/R 13, 14 Def Comp, and

SO CALIF EDISON $ 631,452.14 06/17/21 – 07/18/21 Electricity
INLAND EMPIRE 
REGIONAL COMPOSTING
AUTHORITY

$ 525,913.92 05/21 RP-1 Biosolids
06/21 RP-1 and RP-2 Biosolids































































































































































   CONSENT 
    CALENDAR 

ITEM 

1C 



General Manager

Budget Impact 

September 15, 2021

RP-1 Aeration Membrane Replacement Construction Contract Award

The fine bubble diffusers within the aeration basins at Regional Water Recycling Plant No. 1
(RP-1) are currently six years old and have exceeded their life expectancy of five years. The air
produced by these diffusers is critical to maintain a healthy biology within the secondary
treatment process and necessary to maintain the requirements of the wastewater discharge
permit. Over time, the diffusers become less efficient due to deterioration and clogging.
Consequently, the blower system output increases to satisfy the air demand, directly increasing
the electricity usage.

The replacement diffusers are only available from one source; therefore, the Board of Directors
approved the sole source procurement of Parkson diffusers in January 2021. This project will
replace the existing RP-1 aeration diffusers with the pre-purchased and procured material.

On July 20, 2021, Inland Empire Utilities Agency (IEUA) received five contractor bids from a
total of seven prequalified general contractors. J.F. Shea Construction Inc. was the lowest,
responsive, responsible bidder with a bid of $1,738,000. The bid was below the engineer's
estimate of $2,150,000.

1. Award a construction contract for the RP-1 Aeration Membrane Replacement, Project No.
PA17006.03, to J.F. Shea Construction Inc., for the not-to-exceed amount of $1,738,000; and

2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the construction contract, subject to
non-substantive changes.

PA17006.03/RP-1 Aeration Membrane Replacement

None.

1000 127151 10800 540000 PA17006

09/08/21Engineering, Operations & Water Resources 

Christiana Daisy, Deputy General Manager

Y N

Executive Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

The RP-1 Aeration Membrane Replacement Project is consistent with IEUA’s business goal of
Wastewater Management, specifically the Asset Management objective that IEUA will ensure
the treatment facilities are well maintained, upgraded to meet evolving requirements,
sustainability managed, and can accommodate changes in regional water use.

On January 21, 2021, the Board of Directors awarded a material procurement as a sole source 
through Parkson Corporation for the not-to-exceed amount of $470,944.

CEQA exempts a variety of projects from compliance with the statute. This project qualifies for
the Common Sense Exemption as defined in Section 15061(b)(3) of the State CEQA Guidelines.

Attachment 1 - PowerPoint
Attachment 2 - Construction Contract

Statutory Exemption

21208



 

 

Attachment 1 



RP-1 Aeration Membrane Replacement 
Construction Contract Award

Project PA17006.03

Victoria Salazar
Associate Engineer

September 2021



2

Project Location: Regional Plant 1 

Aeration Basins



• Six-year old aeration membrane diffusers
• Reduced aeration process performance and reliability
• Increased process electricity usage
• Replace 822 aeration panels with new diffuser material
• Drain and clean existing aeration basins prior to work
• Sole Source pre-purchase of material on January 21, 2021 

3

The Project 

Existing RP-1 Diffuser Membranes Pre-Purchased Membranes



4

Contractor Selection 

Bidder’s Name Final Bid Amount

J.F. Shea Construction, Inc. $1,738,000
J.R. Filanc Construction Co., Inc. $1,798,800
Rice Lake Construction Group $2,239,000
W.A. Rasic Construction Co., Inc. $2,483,388
SCW Contracting Corp. $2,850,000

Engineer’s Estimate $2,150,000

Five bids were received on July 20, 2021:



5

Project Budget and Schedule

Project Milestone Date

Construction

Construction Contract Award September 2021

Construction Completion October 2022

Description
Estimated Cost

PA17006
Design Services $30,385

IEUA Design Services  (actuals) $30,385
Construction Services $86,900

IEUA Construction Services (~5%) $86,900
Construction $2,382,744

Construction Contract (this action) $1,738,000
Contingency (~10%) $173,800
Pre-purchased Membranes $470,944

Total Project Cost (This Project) $2,500,029
Total Project Cost (Past Aeration Projects) $5,902,394
Total Project Cost $8,402,423
Total Project Budget: $8,859,000



• Award a construction contract for the RP-1 Aeration Membrane Replacement, Project No. 
PA17006.03, to J.F. Shea Construction Inc., for the not-to-exceed amount of $1,738,000; and

• Authorize the General Manager to execute the construction contract, subject to non-
substantive changes. 

6

Recommendation 

The RP-1 Aeration Membrane Replacement Project is consistent with IEUA’s business goal of Wastewater Management, 
specifically the Asset Management objective that IEUA will ensure the treatment facilities are well maintained, upgraded to 

meet evolving requirements, sustainability managed, and can accommodate changes in regional water use.



 

 

Attachment 2 



1

SECTION D - CONTRACT AND RELEVANT DOCUMENTS 

1.0 CONTRACT 

THIS CONTRACT, made and entered into this _15__day of_September_, 2021, by
and between __J.F. Shea Construction, Inc. ___, hereinafter referred to as
"CONTRACTOR," and The Inland Empire Utilities Agency, a Municipal Water 
District, located in San Bernardino County, California, hereinafter referred to as 
"IEUA". 

WITNESSETH: 

That for and in consideration of the promises and agreements hereinafter made and 
exchanged, IEUA and the CONTRACTOR agree as follows: 

A. CONTRACTOR agrees to perform and complete in a workmanlike manner, all
Work required under these Bid Documents FOR ___RP-1 Aeration Membrane
Replacement, Project No. PA17006.03___, in accordance with the Bid
Documents, and to furnish at their own expense, all labor, materials, equipment,
tools, and services necessary, except such materials, equipment, and services
as may be stipulated in said Bid Documents to be furnished by IEUA, and to do
everything required by this Contract and the said Bid Documents.

B. For furnishing all said labor, materials, equipment, tools, and services, furnishing
and removing all plant, temporary structures, tools and equipment, and doing
everything required by this Contract and said Bid Documents; also for all loss and
damage arising out of the nature of the Work aforesaid, or from the action of the
elements, or from any unforeseen difficulties which may arise during the
prosecution of the Work until its acceptance by IEUA, and for all risks of every
description connected with the Work; also for all expenses resulting from the
suspension or discontinuance of Work, except as in the said Bid Documents are
expressly stipulated to be borne by IEUA; and for completing the Work in
accordance with the requirements of said Bid Documents, IEUA will pay and said
CONTRACTOR shall receive, in full compensation therefore, the price(s) set forth
in this Contract.

C. That IEUA will pay the CONTRACTOR progress payments and the final
payment, in accordance with the provisions of the Contract Documents, with
warrants drawn on the appropriate fund or funds as required, at the prices bid in
the Bidding and Contract Requirements, Section C - Bid Forms and accepted by
IEUA, and set forth in this below.

Total Bid Price $__One Million, Seven Hundred Thirty-Eight Thousand____ 
Dollars. 

and _______Zero_________________ Cents.

4600003069

DocuSign Envelope ID: 417683EA-8061-4D4F-9F9B-E4CCA0A5ED99



2

D. IEUA hereby employs the CONTRACTOR to perform the Work according to the 
terms of this Contract for the above-mentioned price(s), and agrees to pay the 
same at the time, in the manner, and upon the conditions stipulated in the said 
Bid Documents; and the said parties for themselves, their heirs, executors, 
administrators, successors, and assigns, do hereby agree to the full performance 
of the covenants herein contained.

E. The Notice Inviting Bids, Instructions to Bidders, Bid Forms, Information Required 
of Bidder, Performance Bond, Payment Bond, Contractor’s License Declaration, 
Specifications, Drawings, all General Conditions Special Conditions and all 
Project Requirements, and all Addenda issued by IEUA with respect to the 
foregoing prior to the opening of bids, are hereby incorporated in and made part 
of this Contract, as if fully set forth.

F. The CONTRACTOR agrees to commence Work under this Contract on or before 
the date to be specified in a written "Notice To Proceed" and to complete said 
Work to the satisfaction of IEUA  three hundred sixty-five (365) calendar days 
after award of the Contract. All Work shall be completed before final payment is 
made.

G. Time is of the essence on this Contract.

H. CONTRACTOR agrees that in case the Work is not completed before or upon the 
expiration of the Contract Time, damage will be sustained by IEUA, and that it is 
and will be impracticable to determine the actual damage which IEUA will sustain 
in the event and by reason of such delay, and it is therefore agreed that the 
CONTRACTOR shall pay to IEUA the amounts as set forth in General Conditions, 
Section C – Changes to the Contract for each day of delay, which shall be the 
period between the expiration of the Contract Time and the date of final 
acceptance by IEUA, as liquidated damages and not as a penalty.  It is further 
agreed that the amount stipulated for liquidated damages per day of delay is a 
reasonable estimate of the damages that would be sustained by IEUA, and the 
CONTRACTOR agrees to pay such liquidated damages as herein provided. In 
case the liquidated damages are not paid, the CONTRACTOR agrees that IEUA 
may deduct the amount thereof from any money due or that may become due to 
the CONTRACTOR by progress payments or otherwise under the Contract, or if 
said amount is not sufficient, recover the total amount.

I. In addition to the liquidated damages, which may be imposed if the 
CONTRACTOR fails to complete the Work within the time agreed upon, IEUA may 
also deduct from any sums due or to become due to the CONTRACTOR, penalties 
and fines for violations of applicable local, state, and federal law.

J. That the CONTRACTOR shall carry Workers' Compensation Insurance and 
require all subcontractors to carry Workers' Compensation Insurance as required 
by the California Labor Code.

K. That the CONTRACTOR shall have furnished, prior to execution of the Contract, 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 417683EA-8061-4D4F-9F9B-E4CCA0A5ED99



two bonds approved by IEUA, one in the amount of one hundred (100) percent of 
the Contract Price, to guarantee the faithful performance of the Work, and one in 
the amount of one hundred (100) percent of the Contract Price to guarantee 
payment of all claims for labor and materials furnished. 

L. The CONTRACTOR hereby agrees to protect, defend, indemnify and hold IEUA
and its employees, Engineer, agents, officers, directors, servants and volunteers
free and harmless from any and all liability, claims, judgments, costs and
demands, including demands arising from injuries or death of persons (including
employees of IEUA and the CONTRACTOR) and damage to property, arising
directly or indirectly out of the obligation herein undertaken or out of the
operations conducted by the CONTRACTOR, its employees agents,
representatives or subcontractors under or in connection with this Contract to
the fullest extent permitted by law.

The CONTRACTOR further agrees to investigate, handle, respond to, 
provide defense for and defend any such claims, demands or suit at the sole 
expense of the CONTRACTOR. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, The CONTRACTOR and the General Manager of 
Inland Empire Utilities Agency*, thereunto duly authorized, have caused the 
names of said parties to be affixed hereto, each in duplicate, the day and year 
first above written. 

M. The CONTRACTOR, by signing the contract does swear under penalty of perjury
that no more than one final unappeasable finding of contempt of court by a
Federal court has been issued against the CONTRACTOR within the
immediately preceding two year period because of the CONTRACTOR’s failure
to comply with an order of a Federal court which orders the CONTRACTOR to
comply with an order of the National Labor Relations Board (Public Contract
Code 10296).

Inland Empire Utilities Agency*,  CONTRACTOR 
San Bernardino County, California.    

By __________________________ By _______________________ 
 General Manager 

   _______________________ 
Title 

* A Municipal Water District

3 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 417683EA-8061-4D4F-9F9B-E4CCA0A5ED99

executive vice president



   CONSENT 
    CALENDAR 

ITEM 

1D



General Manager

Budget Impact 

RCA: 20200 211112 210000 521410



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

21184





















































































   CONSENT 
    CALENDAR 

ITEM 

1E



General Manager

Budget Impact 

N/A



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

21205

https://www.dropbox.com/s/mrc21hqnkhtyjet/Boiler%20Maintenance%20Service%20Contract.pdf?dl=0


Boiler Maintenance Services Contract

Joshua Oelrich
Deputy Manager of Maintenance

September 15, 2021



2

Background

Agency owns, operates, and maintains
four industrial hot water boilers:

• Two boilers located at RP-1
• Two boilers located at RP-2

Periodically, boilers require:
• Inspection
• Preventive Maintenance
• Repairs



3

Background

• Safety

• Reliability

• Essential to the anaerobic digestion

• Competitive cost

• Reputable and highly qualified service provider

• Asset Management Program



4

Boiler Maintenance Services Bid 
Proposals

Bids Received 

Bidder’s Name Annual Cost

Powerhouse Combustion & 
Mechanical Corporation $30,652

California Boiler $57,475

Heat Transfer Solutions, Inc. $16,295

Mertz Enterprises, Inc. $151,856

Total-Western, Inc $63,640

Five proposals were received on March 25, 2021:

Proposals were scored based on the
pre-determined weighted criteria.

Selection Criteria 
• Contractor Qualifications

• Methodology 

• Qualifications, Experiences, and Skill Set

• References

• Exceptions Taken to Proposed Contract Terms 

• Project Fee Schedule/Rate Structure



5

Powerhouse Combustion & 
Mechanical Corporation 

• Recommendation:
—Powerhouse Combustion & Mechanical Corporation 

• Best Value: Reasonable pricing, methodology, experience, interview, and references 
• Turnkey service provider for boiler maintenance
• Local to service area and able to provide rapid emergency response 



Recommendation

6

• Approve the award of Contract No. 4600003063 to Powerhouse Combustion &
Mechanical Corporation to provide Boiler Maintenance Services for a total not-to-exceed
amount of $153,260 over five years with a fixed price for one year and potential
Consumer Price Index increases for the remainder of the contract; and

• Authorize the General Manager to execute the service contract.

The Agency’s Boiler Maintenance Services Contract is consistent with the IEUA's Business Goal of Wastewater Management, specifically the Asset 
Management objective, that IEUA will ensure the regional sewer system and treatment facilities are well maintained, upgraded to meet evolving requirements, 

sustainably managed, and can accommodate changes in regional water use.



CONSENT 
    CALENDAR 

ITEM 

1F



General Manager

Budget Impact 

September 15, 2021

Adoption of Resolution No. 2021-9-6, Authorizing IEUA to Enter into a Financial 
Assistance Agreement under the Stormwater for Recharge Pilot Program with 
Metropolitan Water District of Southern California

On March 27, 2020, Metropolitan Water District of Southern California (MWD) released a 
grant funding opportunity for the Stormwater for Recharge Pilot Program.  The objective of this 
funding opportunity is to encourage development and monitoring of new and existing 
stormwater recharge projects to enhance understanding of actual stormwater runoff capture 
volumes, actual quantity of water recharged, costs, and project performance. IEUA applied for a 
grant under this program in conjunction with the Chino Basin Water Conservation District 
(CBWCD), as both agencies have projects currently in design within the Montclair Basin. The
IEUA project improvements will enhance the stormwater capture capability in the Montclair 
Basin by approximately 96 acre-feet per year. 

The MWD Board approved the award of a grant to IEUA and CBWCD. IEUA and CBWCD 
will be responsible for the implementation of their own project, but IEUA will be responsible 
for the administration and accounting of the grant agreement. The grant award will total 
$987,485, with IEUA receiving $666,585 in funding from MWD for the construction of the 
Montclair Basin Improvements Project and post-construction monitoring reporting efforts.

Adopt Resolution No. 2021-9-6, authorizing IEUA to enter into a Financial Assistance
Agreement under the Stormwater for Recharge Pilot Program with Metropolitan Water District
of Southern California (MWD) for the Montclair Basin Improvements Project; and designating
the General Manager, or his designee, as representative to execute and submit the MWD
Stormwater for Recharge Pilot Program grant agreement and supporting documents.

$ 0

RW15003.3 - Montclair Basin Improvements

The MWD grant will reimburse a portion of IEUA's costs for the Montclair Basin Improvements
Project. IEUA’s current fiscal year 2021/2022 budget for the RMPU projects, RW15003.00 of
which Montclair Basins sub-project RW15003.03, will be adjusted by the amount of the award.
All costs will be reimbursed by either the grant or by the Chino Basin Watermaster.

Kathy Besser, Executive Manager of Ext. & Government Affairs/AGM

Y N

Executive Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

This action supports the Agency’s Business Goals of fiscal responsibility and water reliability.

None.

The environmental compliance requirements were completed for the Facilities Master Plan
Program Environmental Impact Report. One of the master plans considered was the Recharge
Master Plan Update (RMPU). The RMPU examined alternatives for increasing stormwater and
recycled water recharge by 7,091 acre-feet per year to the Chino Groundwater Basin aquifer.

1. Background
2. Resolution 2021-9-6
3. Grant Administration Agreement by and between IEUA and CBWCD

Project Environmental Impact Report

21212



Page 1 of 1 

Background 
Subject: Adoption of Resolution No. 2021-9-6,  Authorizing IEUA to Enter into a Financial 
Assistance Agreement under the Stormwater for Recharge Pilot Program with 
Metropolitan Water District of Southern California 

On March 27, 2020, the Metropolitan Water District of Southern California (MWD) released a 
notice of a grant funding opportunity for the Stormwater for Recharge Pilot Program (Program). 
The primary purpose of the Program is to collect data from several region-wide stormwater 
projects. The data collected will provide MWD with a better understanding of actual stormwater 
recharge project benefits by monitoring actual stormwater runoff capture volumes, actual quantity 
of water recharged, costs, and project performance.  

On October 20, 2020, IEUA, in conjunction with the Chino Basin Water Conservation District 
(CBWCD), applied for a grant under this program for two separate projects that will both be 
implemented in the Montclair Basin. The grant application for the Program combines IEUA’s 
project, the Montclair Basin Improvement Project that is part of the Recharge Master Plan Update 
(RMPU) Program, and CBWCD’s project that is expected to begin construction shortly after 
IEUA’s project is implemented.  The combined improvements will enhance the stormwater capture 
capability in the Montclair Basin by approximately 147 acre-feet per year (AFY). MWD’s Board 
approved an award to IEUA and the CBWCD under this program on June 8, 2021, in the amount 
of $1,000,000. IEUA’s share of this award will be $666,635, with the remaining amount being 
awarded to CBWCD.  

IEUA and CBWCD will both sign the MWD grant agreement and be responsible for implementing 
their respective projects. IEUA will be responsible for the administration and accounting of the 
grant agreement. In August 2020, IEUA and CBWCD entered into a Grant Administration 
Agreement (attached for reference) to clearly delineate responsibilities between the two agencies 
in the event that IEUA would administer a grant on behalf of CBWCD.  

The remaining balance for IEUA’s project costs will be funded by the Chino Basin Watermaster 
through a State Revolving Fund loan.   



RESOLUTION NO. 2021-9-6 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY*, SAN 
BERNARDINO COUNTY, CALIFORNIA, AUTHORIZING 
THE INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY TO ENTER 
INTO A FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE AGREEMENT UNDER 
THE STORMWATER FOR RECHARGE PILOT PROGRAM 
WITH THE METROPOLITAN WATER DISTRICT OF 
SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA,  

BE IT RESOLVED, that the Inland Empire Utilities Agency* (IEUA) is authorized to 
enter into a financial assistance agreement under the Stormwater for Recharge Pilot Program for 
FY 2021 with the Chino Basin Water Conservation District (CBWCD) and the Metropolitan Water 
District of Southern California (MWD) for the Recharge Master Plan Update (RMPU) Montclair 
Basin Improvements Project;   

BE IT RESOLVED, that the General Manager has reviewed and supports the application 
for the Montclair Basin Improvements Project; 

BE IT RESOLVED, that IEUA’s Board of Directors authorizes the General Manager, or 
in his absence, his designees, to execute the financial assistance agreement, any amendments, and 
any grant related documents thereto;  

BE IT RESOLVED, that IEUA will work with MWD and CBWCD to meet established 
deadlines for entering into a cooperative agreement, and;  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that IEUA’s Board of Directors hereby adopts 
Resolution No. 2021-9-6 on this 15th day of September 2021.   

________________________________ 
Jasmin A. Hall, President of the Inland 
Empire Utilities Agency* and of the Board of 
Directors thereof 

ATTEST: 

________________________________ 
Steven J. Elie, Secretary/Treasurer of the  
Inland Empire Utilities Agency* and of the  

Board of Directors thereof 

* A Municipal Water District



Resolution No. 2021-9-6 
Page 2 of 2 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA  ) 
) SS 

COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO ) 

I, Steven J. Elie, Secretary/Treasurer of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency*, DO 

HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution No. 2021-9-6 was adopted at a regular meeting 

on September 15, 2021 of said Agency* by the following vote: 

AYES: 

NOES:  

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT: 

______________________________ 
Steven J. Elie 
Secretary/Treasurer 

(SEAL) 

* A Municipal Water District













   CONSENT 
    CALENDAR 

ITEM 

1G



General Manager

Budget Impact 

September 15, 2021

Adoption of Resolution No. 2021-9-8, Amending the Agency's Salary Schedule/Matrix
for All Groups

California Code of Regulations (CCR) §570.5 establishes the requirement for California Public 
Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) agencies to have a current, duly approved & adopted 
pay schedule by the agency’s governing body. CalPERS employers may only report payrates, 
for purposes of calculating retirement benefits, that meet the definition of a Publicly Available 
Salary Schedule. Maintenance of the Agency’s salary schedule falls under the responsibility of 
the Human Resources Department, which includes presenting a revised comprehensive salary 
resolution to the Board of Directors as changes occur. The last salary schedule/matrix update for 
all the groups was approved by the Board on September 1, 2021.

Following an extensive and comprehensive classification and compensation review process 
beginning in February 2021, Human Resources staff recommends a class specification title 
change and salary range modification. This follows the completion of the required meet and 
confer process with the General Unit over changes to the bargaining unit classification. The 
parties were able to reach agreement to proceed with the classification modifications on    
August 31, 2021. Accordingly, if approved, the title for the Maintenance Planner classification 
will be changed to Maintenance Planner/Scheduler and the salary range will be adjusted from 
Range 181 to Range 182.

Adopt Resolution No. 2021-9-8, Amending the Agency's Salary Schedule/Matrix for all groups

Funding is appropriated in the FY 21/22 and 22/23 biannual budget.

Shivaji Deshmukh, General Manager

Y Y

Executive Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

Workplace Environment: IEUA is committed to providing a dynamic work environment with a
highly skilled and dedicated workforce.

On September 1, 2021, the Board of Directors adopted Resolution No. 2021-9-1, Amending the
Agency's Salary Schedule/Matrix for all groups

Attachment 1 - Resolution No. 2021-9-8, Amending the Agency's Salary Schedule/Matrix for all
groups and Exhibit 1

Not Applicable

21221







1



2



3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



CONSENT  
ITEM 

1H



General Manager

Budget Impact 

September 15, 2021

Fiscal Year 2020/21 Carry Forward Budget Amendment

The Agency’s Fiscal Control Ordinance established that all unexpended appropriations shall
lapse at the end of the Fiscal Year, unless approved by the Board to be carried forward to the
following fiscal year.

In compliance with the Agency’s Fiscal Ordinance and with Agency’s Policy A-81, Fiscal Year
End Carry Forward of Encumbrances and Related Budget, Finance staff worked with different
departments to identify open encumbrances and commitments from Fiscal Year (FY) 2020/21 to
be honored in FY 2021/22.

Open encumbrances and non-encumbered commitments to be carried forward from FY 2020/21
to FY 2021/22 total $18,485,894 and are comprised of $3,697,399 for operations and
maintenance expenses, $8,693,815 for non-capital projects, and $6,094,679 for capital projects.

Future expenditures against these carried forward commitments will reduce the reserve balances
in the respective funds as summarized in Attachment 1, Table 2.

1. Approve the carry forward of open encumbrances and non-encumbered commitments related
to budgets from FY 2020/21 to FY 2021/22; and

2. Amend the budget in the amount of $18,485,894.

$ 18,485,894

If approved, the FY 2021/22 budget will be augmented by $18,485,894, in the respective funds
and major account categories (capital and operations & maintenance) as detailed in Attachment
1, Table 2.

09/08/21Finance & Administration

Christina Valencia, Executive Manager of Finance & Administration/AGM

N Y

Executive Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

The carry forward of encumbrances at fiscal year end is consistent with the Agency's business
goal of fiscal responsibility and maintaining prudent budgetary controls.

On June 16, 2021, the Board adopted the Agency's Biennial Budget for Fiscal Years 2021/22 and
2022/23.

On September 16, 2020, the Board approved the carry forward of $19.8 million from FY
2019/20 to FY 2020/21.

Attachment 1 – Background
Attachment 2 – PowerPoint

Not Applicable

21211







* Numbers may not tie due to rounding 















ACTION  
ITEM 

2A



General Manager

Budget Impact 

September 15, 2021

Adoption of Resolution No. 2021-9-7, in Support of Metropolitan Water District of 
Southern California's Declaration of a Condition 2 – Water Supply Alert

In response to escalating drought conditions, the Board of Directors of the Metropolitan Water
District of Southern California (MWD) declared a “Condition 2 – Water Supply Alert” on
August 17, 2021, calling on cities, counties, member agencies, and retail water agencies to
implement extraordinary conservation through drought ordinances and other measures to
mitigate the use of storage reserves. This action did not trigger implementation of MWD's Water
Supply Allocation Plan - that would occur only if MWD advances to a "Condition 3 - Drought
Allocation" declaration.

By adopting the attached resolution, IEUA will join with MWD in acknowledging the
heightened urgency of potential drought impacts on imported water supplies to the IEUA
service area, and providing a launching point for IEUA's focused collaboration with its retail
agencies in support of voluntary conservation actions. These actions can help the region
preserve storage and reduce the magnitude of a potential shortage in 2022.

Adopt Resolution No. 2021-9-7 in Support of Metropolitan Water District's Declaration of a
Water Supply Alert

N/A

None anticipated.

Shivaji Deshmukh, General Manager

Y Y

Executive Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

IEUA is committed to providing a reliable and cost-effective water supply and promoting
sustainable water use throughout the region.

In April 2014, the Board adopted Resolution No. 2014-4-3 Calling for Extraordinary Water Use
Efficiency Efforts to Extend Regional Water Supplies for Inland Empire Residents and
Businesses.

Attachment 1 - Resolution 2021-09-7

Not Applicable

21218



RESOLUTION NO. 2021-09-7 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
THE INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY*, SAN 
BERNARDINO COUNTY, CALIFORNIA, IN SUPPORT OF 
A WATER SUPPLY ALERT 

WHEREAS, the Inland Empire Utilities Agency* (Agency) is a member agency of the 
Metropolitan Water District of Southern California (Metropolitan); and 

WHEREAS, Metropolitan’s two main sources of imported water, the Colorado River 
and Northern California, both of which face continuing and heightened drought conditions; and 

WHEREAS, warm temperatures and extremely dry soils have depleted the expected 
runoff water from the Upper Colorado River Basin snowpack and Northern Sierra snowpack into 
reservoirs; and 

WHEREAS, storage in Lake Powell, Lake Mead, and Lake Oroville are each at record 
low levels and that many reservoirs throughout the state are well below average conditions at this 
date; and 

WHEREAS, the California Department of Water Resources State Water Project (SWP) 
Table A Allocation for 2021 is at only five percent of contract amounts; and 

WHEREAS, a zero percent initial SWP Allocation is anticipated for 2022 due to severe 
drought conditions; and 

WHEREAS, the United States Bureau of Reclamation studies indicate a first shortage 
declaration for 2022 for the Colorado River System; and 

WHEREAS, Metropolitan, the Inland Empire Utilities Agency and its retail agencies 
have invested billions of dollars in conservation and other investments to increase the utilization 
of local supplies; and 

WHEREAS, these programs increase water supply reliability and reduce the region’s 
need to import water supplies; and 

WHEREAS, Metropolitan has made recent investments in its delivery system to add 
flexibility, allowing Metropolitan to deliver water from either of its imported water sources to 
most of the service area; and 

WHEREAS, Metropolitan has been actively adjusting system operations and partnering 
with its member agencies to minimize Metropolitan’s use of SWP supplies in order to preserve 
this water for use in areas like the Agency that are only able to take SWP supplies; and 



Resolution No. 2021-9-7 
Page 2 

WHEREAS, the Agency and its retail member agencies are increasing public messaging 
to create a heightened awareness of the region’s supply challenges; and  

WHEREAS, there are numerous resources and programs to assist us in region-wide water 
use efficiency efforts, including rebates for water saving devices and information on water-saving 
strategies at https://www.ieua.org/drought-status/, and www.bewaterwise.com.  

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Inland 
Empire Utilities Agency* that it acknowledges and supports Metropolitan’s Water Supply Alert 
condition; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Agency encourages retail water agencies in its 
service area to implement local water-use efficiency measures; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Agency is coordinating with its retail agencies 
to develop regional media and outreach campaigns to communicate the need for continued 
conservation to the general public, businesses, stakeholders, industries and public officials; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Agency will work to obtain state funding and 
other resources to accelerate conservation and supply programs. 

ADOPTED this 15th day of September 2021. 

Jasmin A. Hall 
President of the Inland Empire Utilities 
Agency* and of the Board of Directors thereof 

ATTEST: 

Steven J. Elie 
Secretary/ Treasurer of the Inland Empire 
Utilities Agency* and of the Board of  
Directors thereof 

*a Municipal Water District



Resolution No. 2021-9-7 
Page 3 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA ) 
)SS 

COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO ) 

I, Steven J. Elie, Secretary/Treasurer of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency*, DO 

HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution No. 2021-9-7, was adopted at a regular Board 

meeting on September 15, 2021, of said Agency* by the following vote: 

AYES:  

NOES:  

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT: 

________________________________ 

Steven J. Elie, Secretary/Treasurer of the 
Inland Empire Utilities Agency* and of the  

Board of Directors thereof 

(SEAL) 

* A Municipal Water District



ACTION  
ITEM 

2B



General Manager

Budget Impact 

September 15, 2021

RP-5 Expansion Project Change Order

On July 15, 2020, Inland Empire Utilities Agency (IEUA) awarded a $329,982,900 construction
contract to W.M. Lyles Co., for the Regional Water Recycling Plant No. 5 (RP-5) Expansion
Project. The RP-5 Expansion will expand the plant’s liquids treatment capacity to 22.5 MGD
and provide up to 30 MGD of solids treatment for both Carbon Canyon Water Reclamation
Facility (CCWRF) and RP-5. 
During the late stages of the design the industry standard embedded PVC lining, Ameron
T-Lock, used to protect the new concrete structure of the Influent Pumps Station (IPS) from
hydrogen sulfide (H2S) corrosion was discontinued. An epoxy coating was specified for bid
while alternative liners were investigated. The epoxy coating requires regular inspection and has
a replacement interval of 5 to 10 years. During construction, staff requested the contractor to
provide a credit for the epoxy coating and a cost to line the IPS with an HDPE liner, Agru
Sure-Grip which is an embedded product anticipated to last the life of the structure. The
contractor has submitted a cost of $578,832.00 to complete the work. Staff found the cost to be
fair and reasonable; therefore, recommends approval of the change order, in the not-to-exceed
amount of $578,832.00, increasing the current contract amount (includes previously approved
change orders) from $330,640,235.58 to $331,219,067.58 (approximately 0.18% increase).

1. Approve a construction change order for the RP-5 Expansion, Project No. EN19001, to W.M.
Lyles Co., for the not-to-exceed amount of $578,832.00 increasing the contract  from
$330,640,235.58 to $331,219,067.58 (approximately 0.18% increase); and

2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the change order, subject to non-substantive
changes.

EN19001/RP-5 Liquids Treatment Expansion

None.

1000 10900 595000 127155 EN19001/EN19006

09/08/21Engineering, Operations & Water Resources 

Christiana Daisy, Deputy General Manager

Y N

10900 595000 1271551000

Executive Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

The RP-5 Expansion Project is consistent with IEUA’s Business Goal of Wastewater
Management, specifically the Asset Management and Water Quality objectives that IEUA will
ensure that systems are well maintained, upgraded to meet evolving requirements, sustainably
managed, and can accommodate changes in regional water use to protect public health, the
environment, and meet anticipated regulatory requirements.

On July 15, 2020, the Board of Directors awarded a Construction Contract to W.M. Lyles Co., in
the amount of $329,982,900.
On November 20, 2019, the Board of Directors awarded a contract to Arcadis, for construction
management services for a not-to-exceed amount of $21,125,523.
On November 20, 2019, the Board of Directors awarded a contract amendment to Parsons, for
engineering services during construction for a not-to-exceed amount of $12,589,469.

A Finding of Consistency with IEUA's Program Environmental Impact Report and a CEQA Plus
evaluation for SRF Loan Funding have been completed.

Attachment 1 - PowerPoint

Program Environmental Impact Report (Finding of Consistency)

21209



Attachment 1 



RP-5 Expansion Project

Construction Change Order
Influent Pump Station 

HDPE Liner in Lieu of Epoxy Liner

Project No. EN19001

Brian Wilson, P.E. CCM
Senior Engineer
September 2021



2

Project Location: Regional Plant 5 

Influent Pump 
Station (IPS)

IPS Interior Surfaces



• Corrosive H2S (hydrogen sulfide), 10 ppm 
• Prevention and Protection

—Ventilation
—Protective lining or coatings 

3

The Problem

Liner Protected ConcreteUnprotected Concrete and Poor Ventilation



4

The Problem

T-Lock Lining

Coatings
• Surface applied material
• Conditional assessment regularly
• Localized damage spreads
• Replacement when failed
• Lifespan: 5 to 10 years

PVC Linings 
• Embedded into the concrete
• Industry standard for wastewater
• Lifespan: Life of structure
• Localized damage does not spread
• Patchable at failed locations
• Ameron T-Lock Discontinued 2019

• No alternative manufacturer

Failed Coating



HDPE liner
• Used in Digesters, 500ppm H2S 
• 20+ years in digesters 
• US and Canada installations
• Localized damage does not spread 
• Damage is patchable
• Lifespan: Life of structure
• Several manufactures 

5

The Opportunity

Agru Sure-Grip 
Protective Liners



6

Project Budget and Schedule

Description Estimated Cost
7-15-20

Estimated Cost 
W/ Change

Design Phase Services $26,406,753 $26,406,753
Construction Services $43,361,716 $43,361,716
Construction $376,181,190 $376,181,190

RP-5 Expansion Bid $329,982,900 $329,982,900 

Executed Change Orders $0 $657,355 

Change Order (this action) $0 $578,832 

Contingency $32,998,290 $31,762,122 

Offsite Facilities Allowance $12,000,000 $12,000,000 

Contingency $1,200,000 $1,200,000 
Total Project Cost: $445,949,659 $445,949,659 

Total Requested Project Budget: $450,000,000 $450,000,000 

Change Order Ratio: 0.37%
Contingency Remaining: 96% 

Project Milestone Date

Construction
Construction Contract Award July 15th 2021
Original Completion January 10th 2025

New Construction Completion January 10th 2025 



• Approve a construction change order for the RP-5 Expansion, Project No. EN19001, to W.M. Lyles Co., 
for the not-to-exceed amount of $578,832.00 increasing the contract from $330,640,235.58 to 
$331,219,067.58 (approximately 0.18% increase); and

• Authorize the General Manager to execute the construction change order, subject to non-substantive 
changes. 

7

Recommendation 

The RP-5 Expansion Project is consistent with IEUA’s Business Goal of Wastewater Management and Water 
Reliability, specifically the Asset Management and Water Quality objectives that IEUA will ensure that systems are well 
maintained, upgraded to meet evolving requirements, sustainably managed, and can accommodate changes in regional 

water use to protect public health, the environment, and meet anticipated regulatory requirements.



ACTION
ITEM 

2C



General Manager

Budget Impact 



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

21203





INFORMATION 
ITEM 

3B 



Grants Semi-Annual Update

Jesse Pompa
Manager of Grants

September 15, 2021



2

Grant & Loan Funding Overview 
2000 – Present

$56.4

$7.6

$67.2

$118.2

$10.1 $3.1

$20.7
$4.7

$25.7

$0.6
$7.2

$124.8

$50.8

$196.4

$0

$50

$100

$150

$200

$250

$300

Recycled Water Wastewater
Treatment

Groundwater
Management

Safe Drinking Water Water Conservation Renewable Energy

G
ra

nt
/L

oa
n 

Am
ou

nt
 ($

M
illi

on
s)

State Grant Federal Grant SRF Loan WIFIA Loan

Executed Grants + Loans = $694M
State   

Grants

$263M

Federal 
Loans

$196M

Federal 
Grants

$59M

State 
Loans

$176M



3

Funding Agreement Diversity

$240.6M

$295.0M

$398.6M

Awarded, In Negotiation

Open Funding Agreements

Completed Funding
Agreements

Total Awards = $934.2M
*Does not include WSIP funding

Funding Agencies for IEUA’s Current 
Agreements

IEUA Awards since 2000



44



5

Project Scope and Benefits
- Expand existing Liquids Treatment Facility

- Construct new Solids Treatment Facility to replace existing 
plant to be decommissioned due to raising of Prado Dam

- Ensure reliable wastewater treatment for regional projected 
growth in southern service area over next 50 years

- Ensure compliance with Title 22 recycled water standards SRF Loan, 
$101.5 M, 

23%

WIFIA - Rd 1, 
$196.4 M, 

44%

WIFIA - Rd 2, 
$24.5 M, 

5%

Pay-Go, 
$127.6 M, 

28%

Total Costs 
$450 M

72% of Project Funding from Low-Interest Loans



6

Project Scope and Benefits
- Increase non-reclaimable wastewater flow capacity 

- Replace pipeline infrastructure that has reached the end 
of its useful life

- Improve maintenance access, enhance response times 
and public safety with installation of clean-out vaults

100% of Project Funding from Low-Interest Loans

SRF,
$11.0 M, 

51%

WIFIA, 
$10.6 M, 

49%
Total Costs 

$21.6 M



7

Project Scope and Benefits
- Improve infrastructure at basins to increase recharge 

capacity

- Install pipeline and pump station to hydraulically connect 
three basins 

- Enhance regional water supply reliability while reducing 
imported water demand

- Increase storm water recharge by 2,921 acre-feet per year 
(AFY) and recycled water recharge by 2,905 AFY

100% of Project Funding from Grants/Loans

USBR Grants, 
$1.0 M, 

5% SWRCB Grant, 
$9.8 M, 

43%

SRF Loan, 
$11.7 M, 

52%

Total Costs 
$22.5 M



8

Project Scope and Benefits
- In collaboration with the Chino Desalter Authority (CDA), 

install groundwater production well, dedicated raw water 
pipeline, and treatment equipment to facilitate removal of 
trichloroethylene (TCE) from South Archibald Plume

- Remediate affected groundwater 

- Enhance regional water supply by permitting use of 
previously contaminated groundwater source

90% of Project Funding from Grants

USBR Grants, 
$12.3 M, 

47%

SWRCB Grant, 
$11.4 M, 

43%

US/ABGL 
Contribution, 

$2.5 M, 
10%

Total Costs 
$26.2 M



INFORMATION 
ITEM 

3C 



Engineering and Construction 
Management Project Updates

Jerry Burke, PE

Manager of Engineering

September 2021



2

Project 
Location

Map



3

NRW East End Flowmeter Replacement 
Project Goal: Improve Efficiency and Safety

Total Project Budget: $3.6 M
Project Completion: November 2021

Construction Percent Complete: 85%

Phase Consultant/
Contractor

Current 
Contract

Amendments/  
Change 
Orders

Design Civiltec
Engineering Inc $293 K 9%

Construction
(Current)

SCW 
Contracting $2.3 M 1.6%

West Diversion Structure

Project Management Team

Project Manager: Biesiada, Josh

Assistant/Associate Engineer: Trott, Megan

Administrative Assistant: Rodriguez, Teresa

Inspector: MWH Constructors



RP-1 Disinfection System Improvements
Project Goal: Increase Operational Efficiency

4

Total Project Budget: $8.5 M
Project Completion: August 2023
Design Percent Complete: 95%

Phase Consultant/
Contractor

Current 
Contract

Amendments/  
Change 
Orders

Design
(Current)

Carollo 
Engineering $750 K 10%

Construction TBD $0 0%

Sedimentation Basin

Project Management Team

Project Manager: Spears, James

Assistant/Associate Engineer: Salazar, Victoria 

Administrative Assistant: Olsen, Wendy

Inspector: TBD



5

CCWRF Asset Management and Improvements
Project Goal: Extend Asset Life

Total Project Budget: $27 M
Project Completion: November 2023

Design Percent Complete: 85%

Chemical Odor Scrubber at Headworks

Phase Consultant/
Contractor

Current 
Contract

Amendments/  
Change Orders

Design
(Current) CDM Smith $3.2 M -12%

Construction TBD $0 0%

Project Management Team

Project Manager: Ignacio, Joel

Assistant/Associate Engineer: Ward, Ryan

Administrative Assistant: Olsen, Wendy

Inspector: TBD



INFORMATION 
ITEM 

3D 



Recycled Water 
Ground Water Recharge Update

Andy Campbell, PG, CHG
GWR Coordinator/Hydrogeologist

September 15, 2021



22

Accumulated Monthly Stormwater



33

Accumulated Monthly Recycled Water



44

Hickory Basin Restoration and
RW Delivery



5

Groundwater Recharge Deliveries
Past 12 Months

August to November
Record Monthly RW GWR



6

Groundwater Recharge Annual History



77

Recycled Water (RW) Demand History



INFORMATION 
ITEM 

3E 



Laboratory 
Semi-Annual Update

Sushmitha Reddy

Manager of Laboratories

September 2021



Environmental Laboratory Accreditation Program (ELAP)
• New Accreditation Standard

—Annual report
—Annual internal audits
—Corrective action report within 45 days

• New Fee Structure
—Application 
—Onsite assessments (OSA)

› Third Party Assessors

2

Regulatory Impact on Laboratory Operations



Ground Water Replenishment (GWR) 
• New

—Bioanalytical Screening

› 3 sites Quarterly

—Chemicals of Emerging Concern

› 1 additional site Quarterly

3

Regulatory Impact on Laboratory Operations



• Supriti Shreshta was promoted to Laboratory
Scientist II

4

Laboratory Staffing

• Open Recruitments For
—Laboratory Scientist I
—Laboratory Supervisor



5

Laboratory Activities – Samples & Analysis

Samples Analysis

Compliance: 4,051 Compliance: 11,740

Process Control: 5,678 Process Control: 14,155

Total 9,729 Total 25,895

2021: January to June



6

Laboratory Activities – Special Projects 

• Brown Bag Series – August

• 1,2,3 Trichloropropane
—Validate data
—Source Identification

• Toxicity Accelerated Monitoring 
—001A: Prado 

—002: RP-1/RP-4

• Archibald Plume
—Same Day results for Nitrate and 

Trichloroethene



Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)

7

* Due to IEUA Lab unacceptable result

* NA – Not Analyzed 

January – June 2021
Performance Indicator Goal Actual

Sample Turnaround Time
Compliance 18 Days 15 Days

Process Control 1 Day 1 Day

Meet Sample Hold Times 99% >99%

Quality Control Failures <1% <1%

Performance Evaluation Sample Repeats* 0 7

Lost Time Accidents 0 0



Questions?
8



INFORMATION 
ITEM 

3F 



August  27, 2021 

To: Inland Empire Utilties Agency 

From:  Michael Boccadoro 

Beth Olhasso  

RE: August Report 

Overview: 

Drought conditions continue to dominate headlines and drive conversations about water conservation. 

With major reservoirs dropping into capacity levels around 20 percent or lower, regulators are starting 

to take aggressive action. The State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) issued curtailment 

orders in the Delta and a water shortage was declared on the Colorado River. Regulators and interested 

parties are trying to balance water supplies for urban and agricultural users while ensuring 

consideration for fish and habitat. A statewide drought declaration is expected from Governor Newsom 

at the end of the water year on September 30. 

As water managers try to navigate this drought, environmental groups are attacking the Voluntary 

Agreements as not doing enough to protect fish and habitat. The Newsom administration seems to still 

be committed to the process and are pushing for the VAs to be completed soon.  

The SWRCB has hit the ground running with allocating almost $1 billion in arrearage funding to 

California water and wastewater utilities. A survey has been sent to all utilities to gauge the need 

statewide. Program guidelines are expected by mid-October with the funding to be allocated by the end 

of January 2022.  

The Legislature and the administration continue to work on the final pieces of the state budget. Before 

session adjourns in September a final drought package and a three-year climate resiliency package are 

expected. Funding for recycled water and integrated regional water management are key issues looking 

for funding.     

The Legislature returned from summer recess on August 14 for the final few weeks before the 

September 10 adjournment of the first year of the two-year session. The final Appropriations 

Committee Suspense Files were taken up on August 26 and now all bills are pending on the house 

floors. Many of the bills IEUA is supporting did not have a fiscal impact, so they are already on the 

floor awaiting final action.  



Inland Empire Utilities Agency 

Status Report – August 2021 

 

Water Supply Conditions 

As expected, news on the water supply situation is increasingly negative. While Southern California 

storage is in better shape, keeping an eye on the statewide situation is imperative to anticipate the water 

supply situation in the coming years. There is so little water in Oroville and San Luis Reservoir, it will 

take a major snowpack in the winter of 2021/spring 2022 to bring northern California reservoir levels 

back to comfortable levels.  

 

Current reservoir levels are bleak. San Luis Reservoir, the main south-of-Delta storage facility for the 

State Water Project, is at 34 percent of average for this time of the year and 15 percent capacity. Lake 

Oroville is at 34 percent of average and 23 percent capacity. Finally, over 88 percent of the state is in 

extreme drought conditions, and over 47 percent of the state is in “exceptional drought” conditions, the 

most extreme condition measured.  

 

When the water year ends on September 30, it is expected that Governor Newsom (should he still be 

Governor) will issue a statewide drought declaration, setting the State Water Resources Control Board 

(SWRCB) on a path to call for water reductions throughout California. The SWRCB will hold an 

informational webinar on August 31 to provide an overview of the recent curtailment and reporting 

orders in the Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta watershed. While not specifically impacting IEUA, the 

unprecedented August 20 curtailment order to over 4,500 water rights holders on top of the first-ever 

declared water shortage on the Colorado River is indicative of the extreme drought conditions facing 

California and the West. Predictions of a very dry fall and early winter are also adding to increased 

concern among water managers and regulators.  

 

 



 

 

 

 
  

 

Arrearage Funding 

The first step in administering the CA Water and Wastewater Arrearage Payment Program to distribute 

the $985 million is for community water systems to complete a State Water Resources Control Board 

survey about the extent of the shortfalls at each local agency. Agencies have until Sept. 10 to complete 

the survey.  

 

Program guidelines must be adopted by October and the funding has to be allocated by January 31, 

2021.  

 

Environmental Groups Express Opposition to Voluntary Agreements 

A group of 20 environmental, tribal and fishing groups have sent a letter to the Legislature opposing 

$466 million in state funding designated for the Voluntary Agreements (VAs) concerning Sacramento 

River flows and water quality objectives.  

 

Signers include the Sierra Club, CA Coastkeeper, National Resources Defense Council, and others. 

The letter states that the VA process is just a stall tactic by water users and that the ideas being 

discussed in the negotiations have no chance of helping improve conditions for critically endangered 

salmon.  

 

By all accounts, the Newsom Administration is still committed to the VA process.  

 

Environmental groups aren’t stopping at a letter to legislators. CalMatters recently published an 

opinion piece by Sandi Satsumoto and Julie Zimmerman of The Nature Conservancy supporting the 



SWRCB curtailment orders, but calling for protections of environmental water as well. Groups have 

been highlighting how current water supply allocations are going to be insufficient to protect salmon 

this fall because of not enough cold water in the river system.  

 

 State Budget Update 

As mentioned in pervious reports, the state budget process has been uncharacteristically long and 

drawn out this year. The state continues to struggle with how to spend unprecedented budget surplus 

and federal stimulus funds totaling about $100 billion. Legislators met their constitutional deadline of 

passing a budget by June 15, but what they passed didn’t have the support of the Governor. They 

passed a “budget bill junior” on June 28 which contained more of a compromise reached by the 

Legislature and the Governor but still left out key aspects of the budget that are yet to be worked out 

between the Legislature and the Governor. Chief among them is a $750 million- $2  billion drought 

relief package and a $3 billion three-year climate package.  

 

While work continues on the upcoming drought and climate packages, there is also work continuing on 

the funding from the “budget bill junior.” A provision was included that limited over $600 funding 

allocated to the Department of Water Resources to only be available in counties that have a declared 

drought emergency, essentially excluding Southern California from accessing the funding. The 

exclusion is particularly concerning for IRWM, which now faces diminished opportunities. 

 

There are efforts to not only ensure similar language isn’t included in the upcoming drought package, 

but potentially correcting the limitation. The Assmebly Budget Committee has noticed hearings 

September 2 and September 7 with the end of the legislative session on September 10. 

 

If the drought and climate resilience packages are successfully negotiated between the administration 

and legislative leaders, it is expected that the language will be introduced and voted on within 72 

hours, leaving no opportunity for public input.  

 

Legislative Update 

Members left for summer recess on July 15 and returned on August 16 for the final weeks of the first 

year of the two-year session, ending on September 10. On August 26 both Appropriations Committees 

took up their respective Suspense Files- the final step for legislation before it hits the floor of each 

house. From August 30 to September 10 members will only be working on bills that have reached the 

house floor. Once the legislature gavels the session closed on September 10, members will not return 

to Sacramento until January. 

 

Updates on Priority Bills  

 

• AB 818 (Bloom)- Solid Waste: premoistened nonwoven disposable wipes: Co-Sponsored by 

CASA and disposable wipes industry. Would require specific “Do Not Flush” labeling on 

specific disposable wipes. The bill has been sailing through the process and is sitting on the 

Senate floor consent calendar.  

 

• SB 273 (Hertzberg) Water Quality: municipal wastewater agencies: This legislation, sponsored 

by CASA, would authorize a wastewater agency to capture and treat stormwater utilizing 

ratepayer funds. The bill sailed through the Senate on the Consent Calendar and has had little 

trouble in the Assembly where it is currently on the Consent Calendar.  
 



• SB 372 (Leyva) medium and heavy-duty fleet purchasing assistance program: zero emission 

vehicles. The bill, while still a work in progress, seeks to make financing tools available to help 

transition medium and heavy-duty truck fleets to zero emission vehicles. The Senator took 

amendments as it came out of the Appropriations Committee to include construction or earth-

moving equipment as eligible under the program. The bill has easily moved through the 

Assembly and is not on the Assembly floor. 

 

• AB 361 (R. Rivas): Sponsored by the California Special Districts Association would allow for 

public agencies to use teleconferencing without complying with certain Brown Act 

teleconferencing requirements provide that a teleconference location is accessible to the public, 

a quorum of members participate at the jurisdiction and the public has access to the legislative 

body at a specified location. These rules would only apply during a local or state emergency. 

The bill is on the Senate Floor.  

 



IEUA BILLS—July 30, 2021 BILLS WITH POSITIONS 
Bill 

Number 

Author/Sponsor Title and/or Summary Summary IEUA Position/ Bill 

Location 

Positions Taken by 

Associations & 

Regional Agencies 

AB 361 Asm R. Rivas Open Meetings: 

Local Agencies: 

Teleconferences 

Would authorize a local agency to use 

teleconferencing without complying with the 

teleconferencing requirements imposed by the Ralph 

M. Brown Act when a legislative body of a local 

agency holds a meeting for the purpose of declaring or 

ratifying a local emergency, during a declared state or 

local emergency, as those terms are defined, when 

state or local health officials have imposed or 

recommended measures to promote social distancing, 

and during a declared local emergency provided the 

legislative body makes certain determinations by 

majority vote. 

 

 

Senate Floor  

Sponsored by 

CSDA 

AB 377 Asm. R. Rivas/ 

CA Coastkeeper 

Water quality: 

impaired waters 

Would require all California surface waters to be 

fishable, swimmable, and drinkable by January 1, 

2050, as prescribed. The bill would prohibit the state 

board and regional boards from authorizing an NPDES 

discharge, waste discharge requirement, or waiver of a 

waste discharge requirement that causes or contributes 

to an exceedance of a water quality standard, or from 

authorizing a best management practice permit term to 

authorize a discharge that causes or contributes to an 

exceedance of a water quality standard in receiving 

waters. The bill would prohibit, on or after January 1, 

2030, a regional water quality control plan from 

including a schedule for implementation for achieving 

a water quality standard that was adopted as of January 

1, 2021, and would prohibit a regional water quality 

control plan from including a schedule for 

implementation of a water quality standard that is 

adopted after January 1, 2021, unless specified 

conditions are met. 

Oppose 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Two-Year Bill 

Opposed by 

SAWPA, MWD, 

CASA, ACWA 

AB 703 Rubio/ Three 

Valleys 

Municipal Water 

District  

Open Meetings: 

Local Agencies: 

Teleconferences 

Current law, by Executive Order N-29-20, suspends 

the Ralph M. Brown Act’s requirements for 

teleconferencing during the COVID-19 pandemic, 

provided that notice requirements are met, the ability 

 

 

 

 

 



of the public to observe and comment is preserved, as 

specified, and that a local agency permitting 

teleconferencing have a procedure for receiving and 

swiftly resolving requests for reasonable 

accommodation for individuals with disabilities, as 

specified. This bill would remove the requirements of 

the act particular to teleconferencing and allow for 

teleconferencing subject to existing provisions 

regarding the posting of notice of an agenda and the 

ability of the public to observe the meeting and 

provide public comment. The bill would require that, 

in each instance in which notice of the time of the 

teleconferenced meeting is otherwise given or the 

agenda for the meeting is otherwise posted, the local 

agency also give notice of the means by which 

members of the public may observe the meeting and 

offer public comment and that the legislative body 

have and implement a procedure for receiving and 

swiftly resolving requests for reasonable 

accommodation for individuals with disabilities, 

consistent with the federal Americans with Disabilities 

Act, as provided. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Two-Year Bill 

AB 818 Asm. Bloom/ 

CASA 

Solid Waste: 

premoistened 

nonwoven 

disposable wipes 

Would require, except as provided, certain 

premoistened nonwoven disposable wipes 

manufactured on or after July 1, 2022, to be labeled 

clearly and conspicuously with the phrase “Do Not 

Flush” and a related symbol, as specified. The bill 

would prohibit a covered entity, as defined, from 

making a representation about the flushable attributes, 

benefits, performance, or efficacy of those 

premoistened nonwoven disposable wipes, as 

provided. The bill would establish enforcement 

provisions, including authorizing a civil penalty not to 

exceed $2,500 per day, up to a maximum of $100,000 

per violation, to be imposed on a covered entity who 

violates those provisions. 

SUPPORT 

 

 

 

 

 

Senate Floor 

Supported by 

CASA, ACWA, 

MWD 



AB 

1434 

Asm. Friedman  Urban water use 

objectives: Indoor 

water use 

Would establish, beginning January 1, 2023, until 

January 1, 2025, the standard for indoor residential 

water use as 48 gallons per capita daily. The bill would 

establish, beginning January 1, 2025, the standard as 

44 gallons per capita daily and, beginning January 1, 

2030, 40 gallons per capita daily. The bill would 

eliminate the requirement that the department, in 

coordination with the state board, conduct necessary 

studies and investigations and jointly recommend to 

the Legislature a standard for indoor residential water 

use. 

OPPOSE 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Two-Year Bill 

OPPOSED by 

ACWA, CASA, 

WatReuse, 

CSDA 

AB 

1500 

Asms. E. 

Garcia/Mullin 

Safe Drinking 

Water, Wildfire 

Prevention, Drought 

Preparation, Flood 

Protection, Extreme 

Heat Mitigation, and 

Workforce 

Development Bond 

Act of 2022 

Would enact the Safe Drinking Water, Wildfire 

Prevention, Drought Preparation, Flood Protection, 

Extreme Heat Mitigation, and Workforce 

Development Bond Act of 2022, which, if approved by 

the voters, would authorize the issuance of bonds in 

the amount of $6,700,000,000 pursuant to the State 

General Obligation Bond Law to finance projects for 

safe drinking water, wildfire prevention, drought 

preparation, flood protection, extreme heat mitigation, 

and workforce development programs. 

SUPPORT IF 

AMENDED 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Assembly Rules 

Committee 

 

SB 45 Sen. Portantino Wildfire Prevention, 

Safe Drinking 

Water, Drought 

Preparation, and 

Flood Protection 

Bond act of 2022 

Would enact the Wildfire Prevention, Safe Drinking 

Water, Drought Preparation, and Flood Protection 

Bond Act of 2022, which, if approved by the voters, 

would authorize the issuance of bonds in the amount of 

$5,510,000,000 pursuant to the State General 

Obligation Bond Law to finance projects for a wildfire 

prevention, safe drinking water, drought preparation, 

and flood protection program. 

SUPPORT IF 

AMENDED 

 

 

 

SEN Floor 

 

SB 222 Sen. Dodd Water Affordability 

Assistance Program 

Would establish the Water Affordability Assistance 

Fund in the State Treasury to help provide water 

affordability assistance, for both drinking water and 

wastewater services, to low-income ratepayers and 

ratepayers experiencing economic hardship in 

California. The bill would make moneys in the fund 

available upon appropriation by the Legislature to the 

state board to provide, as part of the Water 

Affordability Assistance Program established by the 

 

 

Asm Floor 

Opposed by 

ACWA 



bill, direct water bill assistance, water bill credits, 

water crisis assistance, affordability assistance, and 

short-term assistance to public water systems to 

administer program components. 

SB 223 Sen. Dodd Discontinuation of 

residential water 

service 

Current law prohibits an urban and community water 

system, defined as a public water system that supplies 

water to more than 200 service connections, from 

discontinuing residential water service for nonpayment 

until a payment by a customer has been delinquent for 

at least 60 days. Current law requires an urban and 

community water system to have a written policy on 

discontinuation of residential service for nonpayment, 

including, among other things, specified options for 

addressing the nonpayment. Current law requires an 

urban and community water system to provide notice 

of that policy to customers, as provided. This bill 

would apply those provisions, on and after July 1, 

2022, to a very small community water system, 

defined as a public water system that supplies water to 

200 or fewer service connections used by year-long 

residents. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Two-Year Bill 

Opposed by 

ACWA 

SB 230 Sen. Portantino/ 

CMUA & MWD 

State Water 

Resources Control 

Board: Constituents 

of Emerging 

Concern 

Would require the State Water Resources Control 

Board to establish, maintain, and direct an ongoing, 

dedicated program called the Constituents of Emerging 

Concern Program to assess the state of information and 

recommend areas for further study on, among other 

things, the occurrence of constituents of emerging 

concern (CEC) in drinking water sources and treated 

drinking water. The bill would require the state board 

to convene, by an unspecified date, the Science 

Advisory Panel to review and provide 

recommendations to the state board on CEC for further 

action, among other duties. The bill would require the 

state board to provide an annual report to the 

Legislature on the ongoing work conducted by the 

panel. 

SUPPORT 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NOT MOVING 

IN 2021: TWO-

YEAR BILL 

 



SB 273 Sen. Hertzberg/ 

CASA 

Water quality: 

municipal 

wastewater agencies 

Would authorize a municipal wastewater agency, as 

defined, to enter into agreements with entities 

responsible for stormwater management for the 

purpose of managing stormwater and dry weather 

runoff, to acquire, construct, expand, operate, 

maintain, and provide facilities for specified purposes 

relating to managing stormwater and dry weather 

runoff, and to levy taxes, fees, and charges consistent 

with the municipal wastewater agency’s existing 

authority in order to fund projects undertaken pursuant 

to the bill. The bill would require the exercise of any 

new authority granted under the bill to comply with the 

Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Government 

Reorganization Act of 2000. To the extent this 

requirement would impose new duties on local agency 

formation commissions, the bill would impose a state-

mandated local program. 

SUPPORT 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Asm Floor 

Supported by 

CASA, ACWA 

SB 372 Sen Leyva/ 

NRDC 

Medium and heavy-

duty fleet purchasing 

assistance program: 

zero-emission 

vehicles 

Would require an unspecified agency to establish a 

program to make financing tools and nonfinancial 

supports available to the operators of medium- and 

heavy-duty vehicle fleets to enable those operators to 

transition their fleets to zero-emission vehicles. The 

bill would require the agency to consult with various 

state agencies and stakeholders in the development and 

implementation of the program. 

SUPPORT 

 

Asm Floor 

 

 



INFORMATION 
ITEM 

3G 



INNOVATIVE FEDERAL STRATEGIES, LLC 
              Comprehensive Government Relations 

511 C Street, NE • Washington, DC 20002 • 202-347-5990 • Fax 202-347-5941 

MEMORANDUM 

To: IEUA Community and Legislative Affairs Committee  

From: Letitia White, Jean Denton, Drew Tatum, and Sarah Persichetti 

Date: August 27, 2021 

Re: August Monthly Legislative Update  

Senate Passes Bipartisan Infrastructure Bill 
The Senate on Tuesday, August 10 passed a roughly $1 trillion bipartisan infrastructure deal, a 
significant win for President Biden and the first step on his top legislative priority. 

Senators voted 69-30 on the bill, which was spearheaded by a bipartisan group of senators led by 
Senators Kyrsten Sinema (D-AZ) and Rob Portman (R-OH). Nineteen GOP senators voted with 
all Democrats to pass the legislation. 

The Senate’s passage of the bipartisan measure gives a victory for Biden and the centrist-minded 
group that led the legislation, and placed big bets and months of time on the ability to get a 
bipartisan deal on infrastructure. 

“Congress has talked about truly modernizing our nation’s infrastructure for as long as we can 
remember. The United States Senate delivered so that we can finally give the American people 
the safe, reliable, and modern infrastructure they deserve," Portman, Sinema and the eight other 
senators who were the core negotiators said in a joint statement after the vote. 

The bipartisan deal includes roughly $550 billion in new funding, making it substantially smaller 
than the $2.6 trillion proposed by Biden earlier this year. 

It includes money for new investments for infrastructure projects like roads, bridges, broadband, 
water and rail. According to a Congressional Budget Office (CBO) analysis, the bill would add 
$256 billion to the deficit, though negotiators argue that “hard” infrastructure projects pay for 
themselves over time and that CBO didn’t give them full credit for their work. 

“The new spending under the bill is offset through a combination of new revenue and savings, 
some of which is reflected in the formal CBO score and some of which is reflected in other 
savings and additional revenue identified in estimates, as CBO is limited in what it can include in 
its formal score,” Senators Sinema and Portman said in a joint statement on the analysis. 

To pass the bill through the Senate, Democrats needed at least 10 GOP votes. Though they got 
several more than that, they also lost GOP senators who had helped advance the bill over earlier 
procedural hurdles. 



Innovative Federal Strategies LLC 
 

IFS Monthly Report 2 | P a g e  
 

Senator Todd Young (R-IN), who is up for reelection next year, announced before the vote that 
he could no longer support the deal. 
 
“Having reviewed the Congressional Budget Office’s (CBO) estimated fiscal impact of this 
legislation as currently constructed, and frankly still not being comfortable with a number of the 
Democratic priorities contained in this version, I will vote ‘no,’” Young said in a statement. 
 
The bill is now heading to the House, where it faces an uncertain future and skepticism from 
progressives. Speaker Nancy Pelosi (D-CA) had vowed she won’t take it up until the Senate 
passes the second part of its infrastructure two step, a sweeping $3.5 trillion spending package 
that includes Democrats’ top priorities. During negotiations over consideration of the Concurrent 
Budget Resolution in the House, Democrats agreed to bring the bipartisan infrastructure 
legislation to the floor by September 27—ahead of the expiration of the current surface 
transportation authorization legislation. 
 
 
House, Senate Democrats Approve Budget Resolution, Teeing Up $3.5T Spending Plan 
Senate Democrats then approved a budget resolution in the early morning hours of August 11 
that will allow them to pass a $3.5 trillion spending plan without GOP support later this year. 
 
The Senate voted 50-49 to adopt the resolution, capping off a chaotic, hours-long debate on the 
floor during which senators voted on dozens of largely nonbinding amendments that offer a 
preview of the fight to come on the spending bill. 
 
Senator Mike Rounds (R-SD) was absent for votes, meaning the vote of Vice President Kamala 
Harris was not necessary to break a tie. 
 
Though the budget resolution doesn’t get signed into law, it's the first step toward bypassing the 
60-vote threshold required to pass most legislation in the Senate. Democrats will try to unify 
their entire 50-member caucus to pass the spending bill on their own as soon as late September. 
The package is expected to include top Democratic priorities like immigration reform, combating 
climate change and universal pre-K. 
 
The Senate’s vote on the budget comes less than a day after they passed a roughly $1 trillion 
infrastructure bill that was negotiated by a bipartisan group of senators and the White House. 
 
The votes fulfill Senate Majority Leader Charles Schumer’s (D-NY) pledge to make progress on 
both pieces of President Biden’s infrastructure plan — the bipartisan bill and the Democratic-
only measure — before letting senators leave for their August recess. 
 
“So despite this long road we’ve taken, we have finally, finally reached the finish line. Of course, 
we Democrats believe we need to do much more. The bipartisan infrastructure bill is a very 
significant bill, but our country has other very significant, very important challenges. ... We are 
moving on to a second track which will make generational transformation,” Schumer said on 
Tuesday. 
 



Innovative Federal Strategies LLC 
 

IFS Monthly Report 3 | P a g e  
 

Though 19 Republicans helped pass the bipartisan infrastructure bill, Democrats approved the 
budget resolution without any GOP support and are expected to go it alone to pass their $3.5 
trillion spending package that sparks fierce opposition from Republicans. 
 
Senate Minority Leader Mitch McConnell (R-KY) accused Democrats of “playing Russian 
roulette” with the country. 
 
“This new reckless taxing and spending spree will fall like a hammer blow on workers and 
middle-class families. Fewer jobs, lower wages, more inflation, pushing costs higher and higher. 
What our colleagues are proposing and planning is absolutely jaw-dropping,” Minority Leader 
McConnell said. 
 
The budget resolution includes few details about what will be in the Democratic spending plan, 
instead providing broad top lines that committees will need to start formally drafting their bills. 
 
But the subsequent spending package it greenlights, according to a memo sent to Democratic 
senators this week, will be a sweeping bill that touches on almost every facet of American life, 
including child care, health care, housing, education, job training and manufacturing. 
 
It will tackle big Democratic priorities that outside of the budget process would likely fail to 
defeat the filibuster, including immigration reform, combating climate change and free 
community college. 
 
Democrats still need to hash out many of the details, a balancing act that will require them to 
craft a bill that can win over centrists like Senator Joe Manchin (D-WV) and Senator Kyrsten 
Sinema (D-AZ) without losing progressives like Senator Bernie Sanders (D-VT) and Senator 
Elizabeth Warren (D-MA). 
 
Senator Manchin said in a statement that he has "serious concerns about the grave consequences 
... if Congress decides to spend another $3.5 trillion." 
 
“Given the current state of the economic recovery, it is simply irresponsible to continue spending 
at levels more suited to respond to a Great Depression or Great Recession — not an economy 
that is on the verge of overheating," Manchin said. 
 
Democrats for example are expected to include “lawful permanent status for qualified 
immigrants” and border security measures in the spending package, according to the memo to 
Democratic offices, but they haven’t specified who would qualify. And the budget resolution 
provides even less clarity, only providing the Senate Judiciary Committee with a price tag for its 
bill but no guidance on what should be included in it. 
 
Democrats are proposing to pay for the bill, in part, by increasing taxes on wealthy earners and 
some corporations. 
 



Innovative Federal Strategies LLC 
 

IFS Monthly Report 4 | P a g e  
 

Unity on the spending package later this year isn’t guaranteed. Sinema has raised concerns about 
the price tag, and Manchin has expressed concerns both about the debt and some of the energy 
language. 
 
Even though the House left for its traditional August recess in late July, Majority Leader Steny 
Hoyer (D-MD) announced in a letter to lawmakers that they would return on August 23 to 
consider the budget resolution and "will remain in session until our business for the week is 
concluded." 
 
As expected the House returned on Monday, August 23, but leadership had not yet secured the 
votes from a block of moderate Democrats led by House Problem Solvers Caucus Co-Chairman 
Josh Gottheimer (D-NJ). Gottheimer and a block that grew to 9 other Democrats threatened to 
withhold their support from the Senate-passed Concurrent Budget Resolution unless they first 
were able to vote on the bipartisan infrastructure bill.  
 
Democrats held multiple closed-door caucus meetings on Monday and Tuesday as their leaders 
attempted to work to a compromise to secure the votes to pass the rule to set up floor 
consideration of the legislation later in the week.  
 
In the end, the moderate block of Democrats dropped their demand for a vote on the 
infrastructure legislation first, instead opting allow the budget resolution to pass upon adoption 
of the rule, which also set a deadline of September 27 for the House to vote on the infrastructure 
package.  
 
All 220 Democrats voted for a $3.5 trillion budget resolution embedded in a House rule.  
 
Committees in the House and Senate now have an informal deadline of September 15 to report 
out legislation that comports with the reconciliation instructions included in the budget 
resolution.  
 
 
Senate Panel Advances First Three Spending Bills 
The Senate Appropriations Committee on Wednesday, August 4 advanced its first spending bills 
for fiscal 2022 as senators prepare for their fall recess and the deadline to avert a government 
shutdown quickly approaches. 
 
The panel passed appropriations bills to fund the departments of Energy, Agriculture and 
Veteran Affairs (VA) among other agencies, marking the passage of three of the 12 
appropriations bills the committee has to send to the full chamber for consideration. 
 
The legislation includes discretionary funding of $25.855 billion for the Department of 
Agriculture and Food and Drug Administration, a $2.5 billion increase over spending levels for 
the agencies in the previous fiscal year. 
 



Innovative Federal Strategies LLC 
 

IFS Monthly Report 5 | P a g e  
 

The fiscal 2022 Energy and Water Development bill passed by the panel contains $53.625 billion 
in discretionary budget authority, an amount that met President Biden’s budget request and 
exceeded the previous year’s spending levels by $1.873 billion.  
 
The bill would provide record funding of more than $8.7 billion for the Army Corps of 
Engineers’ Civil Works program and set a high-water mark for funding for the Energy 
Department’s Office of Energy Efficiency and Renewable Energy. 
 
Sec. 505 of the bill provides for $450M in “emergency” funding for the Bureau of Reclamation 
Water and Related Resources Account that will remain available until expended for activities to 
address drought, as determined by the Secretary of Interior.  
  
Funding Levels (report):  
Program House 

Recommendation 
Senate 
Recommendation 

WIIN 4007 Water Storage Program $67M $134M 
Drought Contingency Plan for the Lower Colorado 
River Basin 

$50M $40M 

Funding for Reclamation canals where operations 
conveyance capacity has been seriously impaired 
by age and/or land subsidence  

No callout for 
funding 

$10M 

WaterSMART Grants $75M $48M 
Water Conservation Field Services Program  $2.318M $2.318M 
Cooperative Watershed Management $10M $2.25M 
Basin Studies $15M $13.5M 
Drought Response & Comprehensive Drought 
Plans 

$25M $25M 

Title XVI Water Reclamation and Reuse $63.617M $32M 
  
The bill also includes language encouraging the Bureau of Reclamation to prioritize eligible 
water conservation projects that will provide water supplies to meet the needs of threatened and 
endangered species. 
 
The legislation also includes the following language on drought resiliency: 

The Committee remains intently focused on the need for improving drought resiliency as 
well as in finding opportunities for agencies to combine water supply benefits with other 
mission priorities. The impacts of the current severe drought in the west display there is 
more work to be done. The Committee continues to invest in the drought resiliency 
programs authorized in the WIIN Act and believes a solution to these chronic droughts is 
a combination of additional storage, substantial investments in desalination and recycling, 
improved conveyance, and increased efficiencies in the uses of water both for agriculture 
and potable purposes. As the West has consistently been the fastest growing part of the 
country, it is incumbent on Reclamation to lead the way in increasing the water that is 
available from year to year and to incentivize more efficient use of the water that is 
available. 

 



Innovative Federal Strategies LLC 
 

IFS Monthly Report 6 | P a g e  
 

Sen. Patrick Leahy (D-VT), who chairs the Senate Appropriations Committee, said in opening 
statements at the first markup of the fiscal year that, typically, the chairman “would bring a 
recommended allocation for each of the 12 appropriations bills before the Committee, and seek a 
vote on that recommendation.” 
 
“The Budget Control Act has expired for Fiscal Year 2022, so there are no spending caps set in 
law, and the Senate has not yet passed a Budget Resolution establishing a 302(a) allocation for 
this Committee,” Leahy said.  
 
Chairman Leahy said he would put forward an allocation in the absence of a top-line figure 
because he believed that “would only divide” and delay its bipartisan efforts. However, he also 
said he didn’t want the lack of a top-line or allocation to keep the panel from making progress on 
its bills. 
 
“The Committee should do its work, and the end of the fiscal year is rapidly approaching. I am 
glad that we could reach agreement to consider these three important bills today,” he said. 
 
Though the legislation saw bipartisan support, with each measure seeing backing from Senate 
Appropriations Committee Vice Chairman Richard Shelby (R-AL) upon passage so far, the 
panel’s progress on the bills without a larger deal on spending did not go without warning from 
Senate Minority Leader Mitch McConnell (R-KY). 
 
“When it comes to floor consideration, we cannot and will not start planting individual trees 
before we have bipartisan consensus on the shape of the forest,” Senator McConnell said. 
 
 
Supreme Court Lifts Biden’s Eviction Pause 
The Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) on Tuesday, August 3 issued a 
moratorium on evictions targeting areas of the country with high levels of COVID-19 
transmission, extending an eviction ban for much of the nation just days after a blanket 
moratorium had expired. 
 
President Biden acknowledged at a news conference that the CDC order may not hold up in 
court. But he argued it would minimally buy time for state and local governments to distribute 
aid to renters and landlords. 
 
The U.S. Supreme Court lifted the Biden administration’s moratorium on evictions on Thursday, 
August 26, ending protections for millions of people who have fallen behind on rent payments 
during the Covid-19 pandemic. Siding with landlords who said they were being subjected to 
unwarranted hardships, the court said the moratorium exceeded the authority of the Centers for 
Disease Control and Prevention. The court had left intact a previous CDC moratorium in June, 
but Justice Brett Kavanaugh said at the time that congressional authorization would be required 
for any further extension. 
 



Innovative Federal Strategies LLC 
 

IFS Monthly Report 7 | P a g e  
 

The court issued an eight-page majority opinion, an unusual move in a ruling on an application 
for emergency relief, where terse orders are more common. The court’s three liberal justices 
dissented. 
 
The majority opinion, which was unsigned, said the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention 
had exceeded its authority. 
 
“The C.D.C. has imposed a nationwide moratorium on evictions in reliance on a decades-old 
statute that authorizes it to implement measures like fumigation and pest extermination,” the 
opinion said. “It strains credulity to believe that this statute grants the C.D.C. the sweeping 
authority that it asserts.” 
 
Justice Stephen G. Breyer, writing for the three dissenting justices, faulted the court for its haste 
during a public health crisis. 
 
“These questions call for considered decision-making, informed by full briefing and argument,” 
he wrote. “Their answers impact the health of millions. We should not set aside the C.D.C.’s 
eviction moratorium in this summary proceeding.” 
 
The majority said the issues were fully considered and straightforward. “It is indisputable that 
the public has a strong interest in combating the spread of the Covid-19 Delta variant,” the 
opinion said. “But our system does not permit agencies to act unlawfully even in pursuit of 
desirable ends.” 
 
“If a federally imposed eviction moratorium is to continue,” the opinion said, “Congress must 
specifically authorize it.” 
 
Rep. Maxine Waters (D-CA), who leads the House Financial Services Committee, said she 
would “immediately set to work on a legislative solution to address issues with the slow 
implementation of the emergency rental assistance program.” “My new proposal would ensure 
that both renters and landlords can independently apply for emergency rental assistance so that 
landlords get paid their back rent, and that the program works with less bureaucracy and red 
tape,” Waters said in a statement issued after the ruling.  
 
 
House Passes Voting Rights Legislation  
House lawmakers approved new legislation aimed at protecting the right to vote on Tuesday, 
August 24, amid a wave of what they call restrictive new elections laws from Republican-
controlled state legislatures. 
 
The bill is named for the Georgia congressman and civil rights leader John Lewis, who died last 
year. 
 
"Old battles have become new again," said Alabama Democratic Rep. Terri Sewell, who 
introduced the legislation. "I want you to know that the modern day barriers to voting are no less 



Innovative Federal Strategies LLC 
 

IFS Monthly Report 8 | P a g e  
 

pernicious than those literacy tests and those poll taxes. And what we must do, as we did back in 
the '60s, is when we see states running amok, we need federal oversight." 
 
Democrats say the bill, known as H.R. 4, would strengthen the Voting Rights Act of 1965, which 
had been weakened by a pair of Supreme Court rulings over the course of the last decade. Its 
supporters say that would make it more difficult for states to restrict future voting access. 
 
In the Shelby County decision seven years ago, the Supreme Court made preclearance provisions 
of the Voting Rights Act of 1965 unenforceable due to what it found to be an outdated formula 
used to determine which states had to seek permission to make certain election changes. This 
legislation creates a new coverage formula that applies to all states and hinges on a finding of 
repeated voting rights violations in the preceding 25 years, which “rolls” or continuously moves 
to keep up with current conditions.  
 
The legislation would also establish a targeted process for reviewing voting changes in 
jurisdictions nationwide, focused on measures that have historically been used to discriminate 
against voters. The process for reviewing changes in voting is limited to a set of measures, such 
as the institution of a voter ID law or the reduction of multilingual voting materials – practices 
Democrats say have historically been found to have the greatest discriminatory impact.  
 
The legislation passed the House along party lines, with 219 Democrats in favor and all 212 
Republicans opposed. The bill will now face steep GOP opposition in the evenly divided Senate. 
Republicans have characterized the legislation as a federal overreach into the state's role in 
election processes. 
 
Republicans have already opposed and blocked the consideration of a separate sweeping 
elections and voting bill known as the For The People Act. That legislation seeks to end 
gerrymandering of congressional districts, set mandates for early and mail-in voting and increase 
transparency in campaign financing. Senate Majority Leader Chuck Schumer (D-NY) has said 
that the Senate will turn to voting rights legislation when lawmakers return to Washington in 
September. 
 



Bill Number  Sponsors  Title and/or Summary  Summary/Status  Latest Action 

H.R. 4502  Rep. Rosa DeLauro (D‐CT) 

Labor, HHS, Education, Agriculture, 
Rural Development, Energy and 
Water, Financial Services and 
General Government, Interior, 

Environment, Military Construction 
and VA, Transportation‐HUD 
Appropriations Act, 2022 

The legislation combines 7 of the annual 
spending bills into one package.  

The legislation passed the House on 
Thursday, July 29 by a vote of 219 – 
208 on party lines.    

H.R. 4505 

Rep. Matt Cartwright (D‐
PA) 

Commerce, Justice, Science, and 
Related Agencies Appropriations Act, 

2022 

The legislation provides FY2022 
appropriations to the Department of 
Commerce, the Department of Justice 
(DOJ), the science agencies, and several 
related agencies including the Office of 
Science and Technology Policy, the 
National Space Council, NASA, and the 
National Science Foundation. 

The legislation was reported out of 
committee on July 19, 2021 and was 
set to be considered on the House 
floor during the week of July 26. 
Policy language surrounding funding 
for the police caused Democratic 
leaders to pull the legislation from 
the floor. It is unclear when it may be 
brought back to the House floor.  

H.R.4431 

Rep. Lucille Roybal‐Allard 
(D‐CA) 

Department of Homeland Security 
Appropriations Act, 2022 

The legislation provides FY2022 
appropriations for the Department of 
Homeland Security. 

The legislation was reported out of 
committee on July 15, 2021. The bill 
is not expected to be considered on 
the House floor until after the August 
recess, if at all.  

XX  President Joe Biden  American Families Plan 

The American Families Plan calls for $1 
trillion in new spending and $800 billion 
in new tax credits. The plan would 
provide $200 billion program offering 
universal pre‐k; $109 billion for tuition‐
free community college; $85 billion to 
increase Pell Grants to benefit low‐
income and minority students; and 
more than $4 billion in funding for 
larger scholarships, certification and 
support programs for teachers. 

President Biden unveiled the 
companion package to the American 
Jobs Plan on April 28th prior to his 
address to a Joint Session of 
Congress.  
 
Legislative text for the proposal has 
not yet been developed, but 
Congressional Democrats hope to 
use the budget reconciliation process 
to pass elements of the plan due to 
lack of support from Republicans.  



Senate 
Amendment 
to H.R.3684 

President Joe Biden & 
Bipartisan Group of 

Senators including Sens. 
Krysten Sinema (D‐AZ) 

and Rob Portman (R‐OH) 

Bipartisan Infrastructure Framework 
 

(“Infrastructure Investment and Jobs 
Act”) 

The framework includes $550 billion in 
new spending for a total around $1.2 
trillion over eight years. 
 
Total “new spending” includes:  
$110 billion for roads, bridges and 
major projects; $73 billion for electric 
grid upgrades; $66 billion for rail and 
Amtrak improvements; $65 billion for 
broadband expansion; $55 billion for 
clean drinking water; $39 billion for 
transit; $17 billion for ports and $25 
billion for airports; and $7.5 billion for 
electric vehicle chargers. 

President Biden announced that he'd 
reached an infrastructure deal with a 
group of Republican and Democratic 
Senators on Thursday, June 24. 
 
Following a month of negotiations on 
legislative text, the Senate passed 
the package on Tuesday, August 10, 
2021. 
 
The deal faces the challenge of 
convincing progressives to support 
the deal ‐ Speaker of the House 
Nancy Pelosi has expressed that the 
House would not vote on a 
bipartisan bill until the Senate passes 
a larger set of Democratic priorities 
though budget reconciliation.  
 
The House has agreed to vote on the 
legislation by September 27, 2021 in 
a deal reached between the 
Democratic leadership and moderate 
members of the Democratic caucus.  

S.Con.Res.14  Sen. Bernie Sanders (I‐VT)  Concurrent Budget Resolution 

The Budget Resolution includes 
reconciliation instructions that instructs 
certain committees in the House and 
Senate by what amount would be 
allowed for them to report legislation 
that would raise the deficit. Committees 
are required to submit their 
reconciliation recommendations to the 
House and Senate Budget Committees 
by September 15, 2021. 
 

The agreement calls for the $3.5 trillion 
in long‐term investments to be fully 
offset by a combination of new tax 
revenues, health care savings, and long‐
term economic growth. In addition, the 
agreement would prohibit new taxes on 

The resolution was introduced on 
August 9. Following the Senate 
passage of the Bipartisan 
Infrastructure Framework on August 
10th, the Senate proceeded to a 
“vote‐a‐rama” in which they took a 
number of amendment votes 
overnight, passing the resolution 
early in the morning of August 11th.   
 
The Resolution passed by a vote of 
50‐49. Senator Mike Rounds (R‐SD) 
was absent for the votes.  
 
The House passed the resolution via 
a self‐executing provision of a rule to 
consider other legislation on the 
floor. The adoption through the rule 



families making less than $400,000 per 
year, and on small businesses and 
family farms. 

meant that lawmakers did not have 
to take a separate vote on the 
budget resolution.  

H.R. 3684 

Rep. Peter DeFazio (D‐
OR) 

INVEST in America Act 

The legislation addresses provisions 
related to federal‐aid highway, transit, 
highway safety, motor carrier, research, 
hazardous materials, and rail programs 
of the Department of Transportation 
(DOT). 
 
The Legislation has also incorporated 
the Water Quality Protection and Job 
Creation Act of 2021 and Assistance, 
Quality, and Affordability Act of 2021 
which reauthorize clean and drinking 
water provisions.  

Chairman of the House 
Transportation and Infrastructure 
Committee Peter DeFazio introduced 
the legislation on June 4, 2021. 
 
Markups were held on the legislation 
on June 9‐10th and the legislation 
passed out of committee on June 
10th by a vote of 38‐26. 
 
The legislation passed the House on 
July 1, 2021 by a vote of 221‐201. 
 
This legislation and the associated 
local transportation priorities likely 
won’t move forward since the 
bipartisan infrastructure proposal 
also includes the 5‐year surface 
transportation reauthorization bill.  

S. 29 / H.R. 
2008 

Sen. Amy Klobuchar (D‐
MN) / Rep. Angie Craig 

(D‐MN) 
Local Water Protection Act 

A bill to amend the 
Federal Water Pollution Control Act to 
reauthorize certain programs relating to 
nonpoint source management, and for 
other purposes. 

The Senate legislation was 
introduced on January 22, 2021 and 
referred to the Committee on 
Environment and Public Works. 
 
The legislation in the House was 
introduced on March 18, 2021 and 
passed the House under suspension 
of the rules on June 15.  



H.R 1563  Rep. Mike Garcia (R‐CA) 

To extend the authorities under the 
Water Infrastructure 

Improvements for the Nation Act of 
2016 providing operational 

flexibility, drought relief, and other 
benefits to 

the State of California 

The legislation would extend the 
authorities under the Water 
Infrastructure Improvements for the 
Nation Act of 2016 providing 
operational flexibility, drought relief, 
and other benefits to the State of 
California. The legislation would extend 
4007 authorities through January 1, 
2028. 

The legislation was introduced on 
March 3, 2021 and was referred to 
the House Committees on Natural 
Resources and Science, Space, and 
Technology. 

H.R.1915 

Rep. Peter DeFazio (D‐
OR) / Rep. Grace 
Napolitano (D‐CA) 

Water Quality Protection and Job 
Creation Act of 2021 

The legislation would reauthorize the 
Alternative Water Source Grants Pilot 
Program, which authorizes the U.S. 
Environmental Protection Agency to 
grant up to $200 million per year to 
state, interstate, and intrastate water 
resource development agencies to 
engineer, design, construct, and test 
water reuse projects throughout the 
country. 

The legislation was introduced on 
March 16, 2021. 
 
The Committee on Transportation 
and Infrastructure held a mark‐up 
session on June 9‐10th and the 
legislation was passed out of 
committee on June 10th by a vote of 
42‐25. 
 
The legislation was incorporated into 
the INVEST in America Act, which 
passed the House on July 1, 2021. 

H.R.2238 

Sen. Jeff Merkley (D‐OR) / 
Rep. Alan Lowenthal (D‐

CA) 

Break Free from Plastic Pollutions 
Act 

The comprehensive legislation would 
require corporations to take 
responsibility for pollution, incentivize 
corporations to make reusable products 
and items that can be recycled, create a 
nationwide beverage container refund 
program, and other items to promote 
recycling and other investments in U.S. 
domestic recycling. 

The legislation was introduced on 
March 25, 2021.  



H.R 866  Rep. Ken Calvert (R‐CA)  FISH Act 

This bill gives the Fish and Wildlife 
Service (FWS) the sole authority to 
protect endangered or threatened 
species that are anadromous species 
(species of fish that spawn in fresh or 
estuarine waters and that migrate to 
ocean waters) or catadromous species 
(species of fish that spawn in ocean 
waters and migrate to fresh waters). 
Currently, the FWS shares this authority 
with the National Marine Fisheries 
Service. 

The legislation was introduced on 
February 5, 2021 and referred to the 
House Committee on Natural 
Resources. 

H.R. 1015 

Rep. Grace Napolitano 
(D‐CA) 

Water Recycling Investment and 
Improvement Act 

This bill makes permanent, and 
otherwise revises, the Bureau of 
Reclamation's grant program for the 
funding of water recycling and reuse 
projects. Specifically, the bill removes 
priority under the program for projects 
in areas that, in the preceding four‐year 
period, have been (1) identified as 
experiencing severe, extreme, or 
exceptional drought; or (2) designated 
as a disaster area by a state. 
Additionally, the bill increases through 
FY2025 the authorization of 
appropriations for the program and 
otherwise revises provisions related to 
program funding. 

The legislation was introduced on 
February 11, 2021, and referred to 
the House Committee on Natural 
Resources.  

H.R.4099 

Rep. Grace Napolitano 
(D‐CA) 

Large Scale Water Recycling Project 
Investment Act 

Created a competitive grant program 
for large‐scale water recycling and reuse 
projects. Large‐scale water recycling 
projects are those estimated to cost 
$500 million or greater. $750 million 
would be authorized over 5 fiscal years 
beginning in FY23.  

The legislation was introduced on 
June 23, 2021 and referred to the 
Committee on Natural Resources. 
The Water Subcommittee held a 
hearing on the legislation on 
Tuesday, June 29, 2021.  
 
The House Natural Resources 
Subcommittee on Water, Oceans, 
and Wildlife held a hearing on the 
legislation on June 29, 2021. 



H.R.1881 

Rep. John Garamendi (D‐
CA) 

To amend the Federal Water 
Pollution Control Act with respect to 

permitting terms, and for other 
purposes. 

The legislation would extend permit 
terms for publicly owned water 
infrastructure projects under the 
National Pollutant  
Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) 
from 5 years to a maximum of 10 years.  

The legislation was introduced on 
March 12, 2021 and referred to the 
Committee on Transportation and 
Infrastructure.  

S.914 

Sen. Tammy Duckworth 
(D‐IL) 

Drinking Water and Wastewater 
Infrastructure Act of 2021 

Authorizes more than $35 billion for 
water resource development projects 
across the country with a focus on 
upgrading aging infrastructure, 
addressing the threat of climate change, 
investing in new technologies, and 
providing assistance to marginalized 
communities. 

Introduced on March 23, 2021 and 
referred to the Senate Environment 
and Public Works Committee.  
 
The legislation passed the Senate on 
April 29, 2021 by a vote of 89‐2. 

H.R. 737 

Rep. David Valadao (R‐
CA) 

RENEW WIIN Act 

The legislation would  extend the 
authorities under the Water 
Infrastructure Improvements for the 
Nation Act of 2016 providing 
operational flexibility, drought relief, 
and other benefits to the State of 
California. 

The legislation was introduced on 
February 2, 2021, and referred the 
House Committee on Natural 
Resources.  
 
10 members of the California 
delegation have cosponsored the 
legislation. 

S.91 / 
H.R.535 

Sen. Krysten Sinema (D‐
AZ) / Rep. John 

Garamendi (D‐CA) 

Special Districts Provide Essential 
Services Act 

The legislation would include special 
districts in the coronavirus relief fund 
and direct the Secretary of the Treasury 
to include special districts as an eligible 
issuer under the Municipal Liquidity 
Facility.  

The legislation was introduced on 
January 28, 2021 in both the House 
and Senate. It has been referred to 
relevant committees in both 
chambers.  

H.R. 895 / S. 
209 

Rep. David Rouzer (R‐NC) 
/ Sen. Jeanne Shaheen 

(D‐NH) 

Emergency Assistance for Rural 
Water Systems Act 

To provide for assistance to rural water, 
wastewater, and waste disposal systems 
affected by the COVID‐19 pandemic, 
and for other purposes. 

The legislation was introduced on 
February 5, 2021, and referred to the 
House Committee on Agriculture. 
 
The Senate version of the legislation 
was introduced on February 3, 2021 
and referred to the Senate 
Committee on Agriculture. 



H.R. 2515  Rep. Garret Graves (R‐LA) 
Building U.S. Infrastructure through 
Limited Delays and Efficient Reviews 

(BUILDER) Act 

The legislation modernizes the National 
Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) and 
aims to make infrastructure project 
reviews more efficient, reduce project 
costs, and spur economic recovery. 

The legislation was introduced on 
April 14, 2021 and was referred to 
the House Committee on Natural 
Resources.  
 
The legislation's 46 cosponsors are 
all Republican, including members of 
GOP leadership. 

H.R. 939  Rep. Doug LaMalfa (D‐CA) 
Combustion Avoidance along Rural 

Roads (CARR) Act 

The bill exempts wildfire mitigation 
activities conducted within 300 feet of a 
road from all laws governing 
environmental review of proposed 
agency actions or protection of 
endangered or threatened species. 
Mitigation activities are those that are 
conducted by Department of the 
Interior or the Department of 
Agriculture on federal land that is 
administered by the National Park 
System, the Bureau of Land 
Management, or the Forest Service. 
Mitigation activities include forest 
thinning, hazardous fuel reduction, 
prescribed burning, and vegetation 
management. 

The legislation was introduced on 
February 8, 2021 and was referred to 
the House Committees on Natural 
Resources and Agriculture. 

H.R.3267 

Rep. Brendan Boyle (D‐
PA) 

Protect Drinking Water from PFAS 
Act 

The bill amends the Safe Drinking Water 
Act to require the Administrator of the 
Environmental Protection Agency to 
publish a maximum contaminant level 
goal and promulgate a national primary 
drinking water regulation for total per‐ 
and polyfluoroalkyl substances. 

The legislation was introduced on 
May 17, 2021 and referred to the 
House Committee on Energy and 
Commerce. 

H.R. 1512  Rep. Frank Pallone (D‐NJ) 
The Climate Leadership and 
Environmental Action for our 
Nation’s Future (CLEAN) Act 

The legislation aims to achieve net zero 
greenhouse gas pollution, combat the 
climate crisis, and create jobs. The bill 
authorizes $565 billion over ten years to 
enable deep decarbonization. 

The legislation was introduced on 
March 2, 2021, and referred to the 
relevant committees. 



S. 953   Sen. Ron Wyden (D‐OR) 
Water for Conservation and Farming 

Act 

The legislation would create a Bureau of 
Reclamation fund of $300 million to 
support water recycling projects, water‐
use efficiency projects and dam safety 
projects; the WaterSMART program to 
increase water supply reliability by 
funding infrastructure and conservation 
projects that conserves water, increases 
water use efficiency and improves the 
condition of natural water recharge 
infrastructure; Establishes a grant 
program for any Reclamation States, 
Tribes, nonprofit conservation 
organizations, irrigation or water 
districts, and regional and local 
authorities to complete habitat 
restoration projects that improve 
watershed health and mitigate climate 
change; among other actions. 

The legislation was introduced on 
March 24, 2021, and referred to the 
Committee on Energy and Natural 
Resources. 

H.R.3293 

Rep.  Lisa Blunt Rochester 
(D‐DE) 

Low‐Income Water Customer 
Assistance Programs Act 

The legislation would amend the Safe 
Drinking Water Act and the Federal 
Water Pollution Control Act to establish 
programs to assist low‐income 
households in maintaining access to 
drinking water and wastewater services. 

The legislation was introduced on 
May 18, 2021, and referred to the 
relevant committees. 
 
The legislation has passed out of the 
House Energy and Commerce 
Committee by a vote of 32‐24 and 
now moves on to consideration on 
the House floor. 



H.R.3291  Rep. Paul Tonko (D‐NY)  AQUA Act 

The legislation would invest $105 billion 
over 10 years in the nation's water 
systems including $53 billion for the 
Drinking Water State Revolving 
Fund,$45 billion to fully replace every 
lead service line, and $5 billion to 
provide assistance to systems with PFAS 
contamination. Additionally, the 
legislation would require the EPA to set 
national standards for PFAS, 1,4‐
dioxane, and microcystin toxin, and 
makes it easier for EPA to set standards 
in the future. The bill would authorize 
$4 billion emergency relief program to 
provide forgiveness for utility customers 
facing debts and unpaid fees since 
March 1, 2020. 

The legislation was introduced on 
May 18, 2021, and referred to the 
House Committee on Energy and 
Commerce. 
 
The legislation was included in the 
INVEST in America Act, which passed 
the House on July 1, 2021 by a vote 
of 221‐201. 

H.R. 3286  Rep. Raul Ruiz (D‐CA) 
Emergency Order Assurance, Safety, 
and Inspection of water Systems 

(Emergency OASIS Act) 

The legislation would require the EPA to 
establish regulations to flush a drinking 
water system if contaminants were 
present in the system for longer than six 
months, or if water stood motionless in 
the system for longer than six months.   

The legislation was introduced on 
May 17, 2021 and referred to the 
House Committee on Energy and 
Commerce. 

H.R. 3622 / 
S. 1907 

Rep. Chris Pappas (D‐NH) 
/ Sen. Kirsten Gillibrand 

(D‐NY) 
Clean Water Standards for PFAS Act 

The legislation would require the 
Administrator of the Environmental 
Protection Agency to develop effluent 
limitations guidelines and standards and 
water quality criteria for PFAS under the 
Federal Water Pollution Control Act, to 
provide Federal grants to publicly 
owned treatment works to implement 
such guidelines and standards 

The legislation was introduced in the 
House on May 28, 2021, and in the 
Senate on May 27, 2021. 
 
The legislation in the House is 
bipartisan.  

S. 2168  Sen. Mike Braun (R‐IN)  Define WOTUS Act 

The legislation would amend the 
Federal Water Pollution Control Act to 
modify the definition of navigable 
waters, and to make the definition of 
the "waters of the United States" 
permanent. 

The legislation was introduced on 
June 22, 2021, and referred to the 
Committee on Environment and 
Public Works. It was introduced in 
response to the EPA's announcement 
earlier in June of its intent to rewrite 
the Navigable Waters Protection 
rule.  



H.R. 3814 / 
S. 717 

Rep. Liz Cheney (R‐WY) / 
Sen. Mike Lee (R‐UT) 

Undoing NEPA’s Substantial Harm by 
Advancing Concepts that Kickstart 
the Liberation of the Economy Act 

(UNSHACKLE Act) 

The legislation combines the following 
five stand‐alone NEPA reform bills on 
agency process, state expansion, legal 
changes, and data reporting into one 
comprehensive text.  
‐ NEPA Agency Process Accountability 
Act 
‐ NEPA Accountability and Enforcement 
Act 
‐ NEPA State Assignment Expansion Act 
‐ NEPA Legal Reform Act 
‐ NEPA Data Transparency Act 

The Senate legislation was 
introduced on March 11, 2021, and 
referred to the Committee on 
Environment and Public Works. 
 
The House legislation was introduced 
on June 11, 2021, and referred to the 
House Committees on Natural 
Resources; Judiciary; Transportation 
and Infrastructure; and Energy and 
Commerce. 

H.R. 1352 

Rep. Brenda Lawrence (D‐
MI) 

Water Affordability, Transparency, 
Equity, and Reliability Act of 2021 

The bill would create a trust fund to 
support drinking water and clean water 
infrastructure. Additionally, the bill 
provides $34.85 billion a year to 
drinking water and wastewater 
improvements; creates a water trust 
fund; creates up to nearly 1 million jobs 
across the economy and protect 
American workers; prioritizes 
disadvantaged communities with grants 
and additional support; expands funding 
for technical assistance to small, rural, 
and indigenous communities; funds 
projects to address water 
contamination from PFAS; requires US 
EPA to study water affordability, 
shutoffs, discrimination, and civil rights 
violations by water providers; upgrades 
household wells and septic systems; 
helps homeowners replace lead service 
lines; and provides more than $1 billion 
a year to update water infrastructure in 
public schools. 

The legislation was introduced on 
February 25, 2021 and was referred 
to the relevant committees.  
 
The legislation has 86 cosponsors, 
including 14 members of the 
California delegation. 



H.R. 4647 / 
S. 2430 

Rep. Jared Huffman (D‐
CA) / Sen. Dianne 
Feinstein (D‐CA) 

Water Conservation Rebate Tax 
Parity Act 

The legislation would amend federal tax 
law so that homeowners wouldn’t pay 
income tax on rebates from water 
utilities for water conservation and 
water runoff management 
improvements 

The House legislation was introduced 
on July 22, 2021 and referred to the 
House Committee on Ways and 
Means.  The legislation in the Senate 
was introduced on July 22, 2021, and 
referred to the Senate Committee on 
Finance. 

S.2454  Sen. Alex Padilla (D‐CA)  Water Reuse and Resiliency Act 

The legislation would authorize $1 
billion over five years for the EPA’s Pilot 
Program for Alternative Water Source 
Projects grants program. This is an 
increase from the $125 million over five 
years authorized for the program in the 
Drinking Water and Wastewater 
Infrastructure Act passed by the Senate 
in April. 

The legislation was introduced on 
July 22, 2021 and referred to the 
Senate Committee on Environment 
and Public Works. 

S.2567 
Sen. Shelley Moore 

Capito (R‐WV) 
Navigable Waters Protection Act of 

2021 

The legislation would enact into law the 
Navigable Waters Protection Rule: 
Definition of ‘Waters of the United 
States’ as proposed by the EPA/USACE 
under the Trump administration.  

The legislation was introduced on 
July 29, 2021 and referred to the 
Senate Committee on Environment 
and Public Works. 

H.R.4915 
Rep. Tom McClintock (R‐

CA) 
Water Supply Permitting 

Coordination Act 

The legislation would authorize the 
Secretary of the Interior to coordinate 
Federal and State permitting processes 
related to the construction of new 
surface water storage projects on lands 
under the jurisdiction of the Secretary 
of the Interior and the Secretary of 
Agriculture and to designate the Bureau 
of Reclamation as the lead agency for 
permit processing.  

The legislation was introduced on 
August 3, 2021 and referred to the 
House Committee on Natural 
Resources. 



H.R.4979 / 
S.1783 

Rep. Rashida Tlaib (D‐MI) 
/ Rep. Jeff Merkley (D‐

OR) 

Maintaining Access to Essential 
Services Act 

The legislation provides $13.5 billion in 
low‐interest loans to public and private 
water utilities, which will be forgiven 
when the utility forgives household 
water arrears; and provides $13 billion 
in low‐interest loans to power utilities, 
which will be forgiven when the utility 
forgives household arrears. The 
legislation also provides $13 billion in 
low‐interest loans to broadband 
utilities, which will be forgiven when the 
utility forgives household arrears. The 
bill Requires loan recipients to suspend 
utility shutoffs and restore any 
disconnected service, suspend late fees 
and charges, stop the sale of household 
debt to debt collectors, stop placing or 
selling liens on households due to 
outstanding utility debt, and stop filing 
adverse reports on households due to 
unpaid utility bills to credit agencies. 

The legislation in the House was 
introduced on August 6, 2021 and 
was referred to the House 
Committees on Financial Services 
and Ways and Means. 
 
The legislation in the Senate was 
introduced on May 20, 2021 and was 
referred to the Senate Committee on 
Finance. 

H.R. 4976  Rep. Elissa Slotkin (D‐MI) 
Ensuring PFAS Cleanup Meets or 
Exceeds Stringent Standards Act 

The legislation directs the Secretary of 
Defense to ensure that removal and 
remedial actions relating to PFAS 
contamination result in levels meeting 
or exceeding certain standards. 

The legislation was introduced in the 
House on August 6, 2021, and was 
referred to the House Committees 
on Armed Services, Transportation 
and Infrastructure, and Energy and 
Commerce. 

S.2372 / 
H.R.2773 

Sen. Heinrich, Martin (D‐
NM) / Representatives 

Debbie Dingell (D‐MI) and 
Jeff Fortenberry (R‐NE) 

Recovering America’s Wildlife Act of 
2021 

The legislation would fund conservation 
efforts for more than 12,000 species of 
wildlife and plants in need of assistance 
by providing $1.3 billion in dedicated 
annual funding for proactive, on‐the‐
ground efforts across the country, 
ensure wildlife recovery efforts will be 
guided by the Congressionally‐
mandated State Wildlife Action Plans, 
which identify specific strategies to 
restore the populations of species of 
greatest conservation need, accelerate 

The legislation was introduced on 
July 15, 2021 and referred to the 
Committee on Environment and 
Public Works. 
 
The House bill was introduced on 
April 22. The House Natural 
Resources Subcommittee on Water, 
Oceans, and Wildlife held a hearing 
on the legislation on July 29, 2021.  



the recovery of 1,600 U.S. species 
already listed as threatened or 
endangered under the Endangered 
Species Act, and include improvements 
to ensure funds are appropriately 
targeted to the areas of greatest need 
and facilitate additional investments in 
protecting at‐risk plant species. 

In the Senate, RAWA also directs fees 
and penalties assessed for 
environmental violations to help fund 
RAWA, using fee and penalty amounts 
that aren’t already targeted for existing 
environmental funds. 
 

H.R.4602  Rep. Alan Lowenthal  WIPPES Act 

The legislation would direct the Federal 
Trade Commission to issue regulations 
requiring certain products to have “Do 
Not Flush” labeling 

The legislation was introduced on 
July 21st and referred to the 
Committee on Energy and 
Commerce.  
 
Rep. Lowenthal introduced the 
stand‐alone bill after introducing a 
similar amendment to the House’s 
infrastructure bill.  

 



INFORMATION 
ITEM 

3H 



4343 VON KARMAN AVENUE, THIRD FLOOR ∙  NEWPORT BEACH, CA 92660 
TELEPHONE (949) 252-8990 ∙  FACSIMILE (949) 252-8911 

WWW.CALSTRAT.COM 

Date: August 27, 2021 

To: Inland Empire Utilities Agency 

From: John Withers, Jim Brulte 

Re:             California Strategies, LLC August 2021 Activity Report 

1) This month Jim Brulte and John Withers participated in a senior staff meeting via Microsoft
Teams on August 2nd due to the Coronavirus:

2) Topics of discussion included:

a) Regional Relations
i) A general discussion with staff about various stakeholders and customers.
ii) Ongoing discussion related to Census and Redistricting was held

b) CBP/WSIP
i) Discussion was held regarding the WSIP. As a follow up, the July 21 Workgroup

Meeting Power Point deck was distributed for review and comment.
ii) Upcoming Go/No Go deadline by IEUA Board was noted.

A WSIP fact sheet of talking points for the development community and cities was
distributed and comments were forwarded to IEUA staff.

c) Regional Items
i) Recent Committee meetings and activities were discussed and reviewed with the

outstanding issues of governance and reclaimed water noted.

d) IEUA Outreach
i) Future meetings with member agency city managers will be scheduled.

e) IEUA Director dynamics
i) Board President Hall was seated as CASA President at August conference in San

Diego. John Withers attended the conference with IEUA staff.



INFORMATION 
ITEM 

3I 



General Manager

Budget Impact 

September 15, 2021

Public Outreach and Communication

In early August, staff launched a drought messaging campaign in partnership with EMWD,
WMWD and SBVMWD. This partnership (aka Inland Empire Clean Water Partnership) has
developed a scalable campaign that is flexible for all agencies with unique water supply
conditions. Messaging for this campaign recognizes the State’s conditions while highlighting
local supply conditions, as well as the efforts that continue to be made to ensure a reliable water
supply through investments and community water-use efficiency efforts. Staff is working
closely with MWD, regional and member agencies to ensure a consistent and impactful regional
message. Staff developed a toolkit for member agencies to utilize for creative outreach and the
IECWP microsite (iewaterpartners.com) has launched to include an information hub for drought
messaging.

Staff published the first “Coffee with the General Manager” video to all social media channels.
There are over 6,000 total impressions across all channels.

This is an informational item for the Board of Directors to receive and file.

09/08/21Community & Legislative Affairs

Kathy Besser, Executive Manager of Ext. & Government Affairs/AGM

Y Y

Executive Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

IEUA is committed to providing a reliable and cost-effective water supply and promoting
sustainable water use throughout the region.

IEUA is committed to enhancing and promoting environmental sustainability and the
preservation of the region's heritage.

N/A

Attachment 1 - Background

Not Applicable

21213



        Page 1 of 3 
 
 
 

Background 
Subject:  Public Outreach and Communication 
  
 
September 

 September, National Preparedness Month  
 September 4, National Wildlife Day 
 September 6, Labor Day 
 September 10 – (Tentative) Meet and Greet with MWD GM Adel Hagekhalil, IEUA 

Koopman Room, 9:00 a.m. 
 September 11, Patriot Day 
 September 15, National Online Learning Day 
 September 18, World Water Monitoring Day 
 September 19-24, Pollution Prevention Week 
 September 20-26, Climate Week 
 September 25, National Public Lands Day 
 September 26, World Rivers Day 
 September 26, World Environmental Health Day 
 September 28, Chino Hills High School Solar Cup Recognition, Chino Hills Council 

Meeting 
 
 
Media and Outreach 

 Staff began publishing drought-related outreach to encourage the community to keep up 
their water saving efforts. The creatives used in this campaign were part of the 
collaboration of the Inland Empire Clean Water Partnership. Staff continues to work 
closely with MWD, regional and member agencies to ensure a consistent and impactful 
regional drought message is communicated to the public. A communication toolkit was 
sent to member agencies the week of August 16. The IECWP website went live the week 
of August 23. This site is an information hub for member agencies to access resources 
and information on drought messaging and PFAS. 

 Staff recognized August as National Water Quality Month. Throughout the month, 
IEUA’s Water Quality Laboratory and multiple Agency staff members were highlighted 
on social media for the role they play in providing a high-quality source of water to the 
community. 

 Staff published the first “Coffee with the General Manager” video to all social media 
channels. In the video, General Manager Shivaji Deshmukh discusses IEUA’s projects 
and initiatives as it relates to the current and past fiscal year. The video has over 6,100 
impressions across all platforms.   

 The Agency continues to remind the public on what can and cannot be flushed through 
the No Wipes in the Pipes campaign.  



Page 2 of 3 
 

 The Chino Creek Wetlands and Educational Park (@chinocreekwetlands) Instagram page 
continues to publish Reels on various plants and animals found at the Park. Respectively, 
the two most recent reels have accumulated 3,328 and 3,862 views. 

 The @IEUAWater Instagram account published its first reel in the new “Day in the Life” 
series. The series will follow various IEUA employees through a “day” in their life at the 
office and highlight the great work they do, as well as provide insight into what duties 
their job description entails for potential recruitment purposes.  

 The Agency continues to publish content on LinkedIn and has gained 41 followers since 
July 2021, with 548 page views in the last 30 days.  

 August: 28 posts were published to the IEUA Facebook page, 28 tweets were sent on the 
@IEUAWater Twitter handle, 28 posts were published to IEUA’s Instagram grid, and 17 
posts were published to the IEUA LinkedIn page. 

o The top three Facebook posts, based on reach and engagement, in the month of  
August were:  
 8/19 Water Quality Laboratory Highlight 
 8/1 Water Quality Month 
 8/5 Drought Messaging 

o The top three Twitter tweets, based on reach and engagement, in the month of  
August were: 
 8/13 President Hall installment as CASA Board President 
 8/11 Coffee with the General Manager 
 8/5 Senator Newman RP-5 Tour 

o The top three Instagram posts, based on reach and engagement, in the month of 
August were: 
 8/19 MWD Water Supply Alert/Drought Message 
 8/24 Daisy Puga, RW/Groundwater Maintenance Technician, Feature- 

Water Quality Month 
 8/5 Niki Becker, Laboratory Scientist II, Feature- Water Quality Month 

o The top three LinkedIn posts, based on impressions and reactions, in the month of 
August were: 
 8/13 Jerry Burke, Manager of Engineering/CM, CMAASC Guest of 

Honor Recognition 
 8/11 Coffee with the General Manager  
 8/16 Cathleen Pieroni, Manager of Inter-Agency Relations, BIA Southern 

CA Water Conference-Water Use Efficiency Panel Moderator 
Recognition 
 

 A “Water-Wise Tips” ad ran on July 31 in the Champion newspaper. 
 A “Water-Wise Tips” ad ran on July 21 in the La Opinion newspaper. 

 
For the month of August, there were 12,221 searches for a park in IEUA’s service area on Yelp, 
where Chino Creek Wetlands and Educational Park was viewed 730 times, with 695 views 
coming from a mobile device.  
 
Education and Outreach Updates 

 IEUA and WEWAC (Water Education Water Awareness Committee) hosted a virtual 
Project WET (Water Education Today) Facilitator Training Workshop on August 23 led 



Page 3 of 3 
 

by Brian Brown, California Project WET Coordinator-Water Education Foundation.  
Participants became certified to lead activities such as Blue Planet, Seeing Watersheds, 
H2Olympics, Incredible Journey, as well as facilitate Project WET workshops. 

 Staff is preparing a “Super Road Show” for early fall to meet with District administrators 
and principals to outline the Agency’s free education program opportunities. 

 
Agency-Wide Membership Updates 

 External Affairs staff hosted a Project WET Facilitator Training Workshop with the 
Water Education Foundation on August 23. 

 Randy Lee, Executive Manager of Operations/Assistant General Manager, attended the 
National Water Research Institute (NWRI) Board of Directors Meeting on July 13. 

 Richard Lao, Senior Environmental Resources Planner, attended the California 
Association of Sanitation Agencies (CASA) Water Regulatory Workgroup Meeting on 
July 15. 

 Jeff Ziegenbein, Manager of Regional Composting Authority, attended the California 
Association of Sanitation Agencies (CASA) Regulatory Workgroup Meeting on July 15.  

 Randy Lee, Executive Manager of Operations/Assistant General Manager, attended the 
Association of California Water Agencies (ACWA) Region 3 Virtual Event on July 20. 

 Robert Delgado, Manager of Operations and Maintenance, attended the Association of 
California Water Agencies (ACWA) Understanding the Impacts of the California Air 
Resources Board’s Advanced Clean Fleets Rule, Region 2 (Virtual) on July 20.  

 Richard Lao, Senior Environmental Resources Planner, attended the Southern California 
Alliance of Publicly Owned Treatment Works (SCAP) Air Quality Committee Meeting 
on July 21. 

 Richard Lao, Senior Environmental Resources Planner, attended the California 
Association of Sanitation Agencies (CASA) Air Quality, Climate Change, and Energy 
Workgroup Meeting on July 22. 



INFORMATION 
ITEM 

3J 



RP-5 Expansion Project Update: 
September 2021

Project Nos. EN19001 and EN19006

Brian Wilson, P.E.
Senior Engineer
September 2021



2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Jul 2020 ‐ Jan 2025 Construction

Jan 12 ‐ Jun 21 Aeration Basin #4 & Blower Bldg

Jan 25 ‐ Nov 7 MBR Phase1 

Dec 14 ‐ Jul 25 MBR Phase 2

Jan 4 ‐ Sep 23 Digesters

Feb 15 ‐ Aug 16 Thickening

Jan 18 ‐ Aug 24 Dewatering

Jul 1 ‐ Jun 14 Aeration Basin #3

Construction Award

Jul 15

Biosolids Milestone

Jan 11

Project Completion

Jan 10

Day 412 of 1640 = 25.1%

Role Firm Contract This Month’s 
Payment Total Paid % Complete

Contractor WM Lyles $ 330,499,100 $15,039,050 $74,683,617 22.5%

Designer Parsons $ 33,670,711 $379,399 $27,644,054 81%
Construction 
Management Arcadis $       21,125,523 $323,067 $4,085,521 19%

Data date: 8/31/2021

RP-5: Project Status

2



3

RP-5: Project Status Changes

Amount Quantity

Original Contact $ 329,982,900 

CO $ 657,355 42
RFD $ 3,397,060 121
Changes Total (CO+RFD) 4,054,415 163
% Change of Contract 1.2%

% of Contingency 12.3%



4

RP-5: Changes over $100K 

RFD # CO# Subject Cost Reason
136 Influent Pump Station HDPE Liner in Lieu of Epoxy Liner $578,832 Requested by District
73 Generator Control Changes $380,163 Design Omission
138 Primary Clarifiers 1 & 2 HDPE Liner in Lieu of Epoxy Liner $336,815 Requested by District
61 Dewatering Conveyors Local Stations $306,107 Design Omission
78 20 Fine Screen Structure HDPE Liner in Lieu of Epoxy Liner $255,248 Requested by District
77 36 Temporary MLR Pumps $213,726 Requested by District

39 Conversion of Aeration Blower Valve Control from Foundation Fieldbus to 
HART Protocol $166,609 Requested by District

63 SCE Service Voltage for 15 KV Equipment $155,939 Design Omission
157 PCO 071 - Additional Pipe Joint Restraints $123,172 Design Omission
96 Control System Changes - Neuros (RFD 052) $122,897 Requested by District
135 Primary Clarifier Diversion Structure HDPE Liner in Lieu of Epoxy Liner $120,473 Requested by District
82 Control System Changes - Hot Water Boilers (RFD 052) $104,189 Requested by District



5

RP-5: Major Activity Areas 

Construction Staff
• WML Craft: 141
• WML Project: 29
• IEUA & CM: 16
• Total: 186



6

RP-5: Major Activities

Influent Pump Station



7

RP-5: Major Activities

Primary Clarifiers



8

RP-5: Major Activities

MBR Phase 1



9

RP-5: Major Activities

Biofilter Demolished for Main Odor Control Facility



10

RP-5: Major Activities

Acid Phase Digester Thickening Building Gas Phase Digesters



11

RP-5: Major Activities

Dewatering Building Warehouses Blower Building 2



12

RP-5: Solids South Time Lapse



13

RP-5: Solids North Time Lapse 



Questions?



INFORMATION 
ITEM 

3K 



General Manager

Budget Impact 

September 15, 2021

Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs

The Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs for the month ended July 31, 2021 is submitted in a
format consistent with the State requirements.

For the month of July 2021, total cash, investments, and restricted deposits of $521,326,015
reflects a decrease of $21,233,349 compared to the total of $542,559,364 reported for June
2021. The decrease can be attributed primarily due to the RP-5 Expansion Project expenditures.
As a result, the average days cash on hand for the month ended July 2021 decreased from 261
days to 231 days.

The unrestricted Agency investment portfolio yield in July 2021 was 0.899 percent, a slight
increase of 0.008 percent compared to the June 2021 yield of 0.891 percent. The change in yield
is attributed to an increase in earning yield in liquid investment shifted from Repurchase
Agreement to the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF).

The Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs for the month ended July 31, 2021 is an information
item for the Board of Director's review.

Interest earned on the Agency's investment portfolio increases the Agency's overall reserves.

09/08/21Finance & Administration

Christina Valencia, Executive Manager of Finance & Administration/AGM

N N

Executive Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

The Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs is consistent with the Agency's Business Goal of
Fiscal Responsibility in providing financial reporting that accounts for cash and investment
activities to fund operating requirements and to optimize investment earnings.

On August 18, 2021 the Board of Directors approved the Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs
for the month ended June 30, 2021.

Attachment 1 - Background
Attachment 2 - PowerPoint
Attachment 3 - Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs

Not Applicable

21189





https://www.ieua.org/read-our-reports/cash-and-investment/




https://www.ieua.org/read-our-reports/cash-and-investment/










INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY

July June Variance

Investments
Agency Managed

Total Agency Managed Investments

PFMManaged

Total PFMManaged Investments

Total Investments

Total Cash and Investments Available to the Agency

Restricted Deposits

Total Restricted Deposits

Total Cash, Investments, and Restricted Deposits $521,326,015 $542,559,364 ($21,233,349)
**Total reported partial as of June 2021 net of capital call

Cash, Bank Deposits, and Bank Investment Accounts

1



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY

Cash, Bank Deposits, and Bank Investment Accounts

Other Cash and Bank Accounts

US Bank Pre Investment Money Market Account

Total Cash and Bank Accounts $1,479,748

Unrestricted Investments

CBB Repurchase (Sweep) Investments

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)

California Asset Management Program (CAMP)

Subtotal Agency Managed Investment Accounts $81,945,740

Brokered Certificates of Deposit

2



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY

Unrestricted Investments Continued

Municipal Bonds

Medium Term Notes

3



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY

U.S. Treasury Notes

Unrestricted Investments Continued

U.S. Government Sponsored Entities

Subtotal PFMManaged Investment Accounts $112,236,531

Total Investments $194,182,271

Restricted Deposits

Investment Pool Accounts

Bond and Note Accounts

4



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY

2020B Construction Project Accounts

Restricted Deposits Continued

CCRA Deposits Held by Member Agencies

CalPERS

**Total reported partial as of June 2021 net of capital call

5



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY

Escrow Deposits

Total Restricted Deposits

Total Cash, Investments, and Restricted Deposits as of July 31, 2021 $521,326,015

Total Monthly Increase (Decrease)

6



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY

Cash, Bank Deposits, and Bank Investment Accounts

Citizens Business Bank (CBB)

US Bank (USB)
(Investment Mgmt.)
(Debt Service)

Petty Cash

Total Cash, Bank Deposits and
Bank Investment Accounts $1,479,748 $1,479,748 $1,479,748 $1,479,748

Investments
CBB Daily Repurchase (Sweep) Accounts

LAIF Accounts

CAMP Accounts

Subtotal Agency Managed Investment Accounts $81,945,740 $81,945,740 $81,945,740 0.19% $81,945,740

7



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY

Investments (continued)

Brokered Certificates of Deposit (CDs)

US Treasury Note

8



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY

Investments (continued)

U.S. Government Sponsored Entities

9



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY

Investments (continued)
Municipal Bonds

Medium Term Notes

Subtotal PFMManaged Investment Accounts $112,003,000 $111,947,011 $112,236,531 1.41% $114,300,577

Total Investments $193,948,740 $193,892,751 $194,182,271 $196,246,317
(Source of Investment Amortized Cost: PFM)

10



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY

Restricted Deposits

Investment Pool Accounts

Total Investment Pool Accounts

Bond and Note Accounts

Total Bond and Note Accounts

2020B Construction Project Account

Total 2020B Construction Project Accts $164,408,172 $164,408,172 $164,408,172 0.209% $164,408,172

CCRA Deposits Held by Member Agencies

Subtotal CCRA Deposits Held by Member Agencies**
**Total reported partial as of June 2021 net of capital call

11



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY

CalPERS Deposits

Escrow Deposits

Total Restricted Deposits $318,389,696 $318,389,696 $325,663,996 $325,663,996

$513,818,184 $513,762,195 $521,326,015 $523,390,061
Total Cash, Investments, and Restricted Deposits as of July 31,
2021

12



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY

July Purchases

Total Purchases 810,000$

July Investment Maturities, Calls & Sales

Total Maturities, Calls & Sales $

13



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY

Directed Investment Category Amount Invested Yield

Total Investment Portfolio $194,182,271
Investment Portfolio Rate of Return 0.899%

Restricted/Transitory/Other Accounts Amount Invested Yield

Total Restricted/Transitory/Other Accounts $327,143,744
Average Yield of Other Accounts 0.171%

Total Agency Directed Deposits $521,326,015

*Petty Cash

14



Inland Empire Utilities Agency

$518,359,213

15



Inland Empire Utilities Agency

$194,182,271

16



Inland Empire Utilities Agency

$33,335,289

17



Inland Empire Utilities Agency

Agency Investment Portfolio Maturity Distribution (Unrestricted)
$194,182,271

18



19



INFORMATION 
ITEM 

3L 



General Manager

Budget Impact 

September 15, 2021

Fiscal Year 2020/21 Fourth Quarter Budget Variance, Performance Goal Updates, and
Budget Transfers

The budget variance report presents the Agency's financial performance through the fourth
quarter ended June 30, 2021 and various analyses are provided in the attachments.

The Agency's total revenues and other funding sources were $296.1 million, or 84.7 percent of
the fiscal year to date amended budget of $349.5 million. The variance is primarily due to lower
than budgeted loan receipts for the RP-5 Expansion and Recharge Master Plan Update (RMPU)
projects.

The Agency's total expenses and other uses of funds were $292.5 million, or 77.0 percent of the
fiscal year to date amended budget of $379.6 million. Lower than budgeted administrative and
operating expenses and timing of capital project execution account for the favorable variance.

The net change of the unaudited total revenues and other funding sources over the total expenses
and other uses of funds for the quarter ended June 30, 2021 is an estimated $3.6 million.

The Fiscal Year (FY) 2020/21 fourth quarter budget variance, performance goal updates, and
budget transfers is an informational item for the Board of Directors to receive and file.

The net change of the total revenues and other funding sources over total expenses and other
uses of funds is an increase of $3.6 million for the quarter ended June 30, 2021.

09/08/21Finance & Administration

Christina Valencia, Executive Manager of Finance & Administration/AGM

N N

Executive Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

The quarterly budget variance report is consistent with the Agency's business goal of fiscal
responsibility to demonstrate the Agency has appropriately funded operational, maintenance,
and capital costs.

Attachment 1 - Background
Exhibit A - Q4 Budget Variance Summary and Detail Report
Exhibit B - Business Goals and Objectives Report by Initiatives
Exhibit C-1 - Summary of Annual Budget Transfers through the Fourth Quarter
Exhibit C-2 - Summary of the GM Contingency Account Activity
Exhibit D - Project Budget Transfers for Capital and Non-Capital Projects

Attachment 2 - Power Point

Not Applicable

21196



MWD Water Sales 

Connection Fees

Property Taxes 

Grants & Loans



Project Reimbursements and Other Revenue 

Office and Administration – 

Professional Fees & Services – 

O&M (Non-capital) and Reimbursable Projects

Operating Fees



MWD Water Purchases 

Capital Projects – 

Financial Expenses - 



                   +/- difference due to rounding 

Intra-fund O&M 

General Manager (GM) Contingency Account

Inter-fund Capital and O&M project



Exhibit A Detail

Amended
% Budget % Annual 

Amended Budget Actual Variance YTD Budget
Budget YTD YTD YTD Used Used

OPERATING REVENUES
User Charges $88,233,485 $88,233,485 $88,760,179 $526,693 100.6% 100.6%
Recycled Water 16,155,000           16,155,000           19,223,412          3,068,412           119.0% 119.0%
MWD Water Sales 46,236,000           46,236,000           45,561,349          (674,651)             98.5% 98.5%
Cost Reimbursement from JPA 7,057,798             7,057,798             6,794,028            (263,771)             96.3% 96.3%
Interest Revenue 3,928,685             3,928,685             3,212,054            (716,631)             81.8% 81.8%

TOTAL OPERATING  REVENUES $161,610,968 $161,610,968 $163,551,021 $1,940,052 101.2% 101.2%

NON-OPERATING REVENUES
Property Tax $53,934,900 $53,934,900 $66,274,703 $12,339,803 122.9% 122.9%
Connection Fees 35,734,799           35,734,799           42,390,552          6,655,753           118.6% 118.6%
Grants 14,412,372           14,412,372           20,105,671          5,693,299           139.5% 139.5%
SRF Loan Proceeds 79,646,848           79,646,848           93,419 (79,553,429)        0.1% 0.1%
Project Reimbursements 3,050,651             3,050,651             622,101               (2,428,550)          20.4% 20.4%
Other Revenue 1,148,100             1,148,100             3,108,348            1,960,248           270.7% 270.7%

TOTAL NON OPERATING  REVENUES $187,927,670 $187,927,670 $132,594,794 ($55,332,876) 70.6% 70.6%

TOTAL REVENUES $349,538,638 $349,538,638 $296,145,815 ($53,392,824) 84.7% 84.7%

ADMINISTRATIVE and OPERATING EXPENSES

EMPLOYMENT EXPENSES
Wages $27,477,731 $27,477,731 $29,977,605 ($2,499,874) 109.1% 109.1%
Benefits 24,771,301 24,771,301 21,166,164          3,605,139           85.4% 85.4%

TOTAL EMPLOYMENT EXPENSES $52,249,032 $52,249,032 $51,143,768 $1,105,265 97.9% 97.9%

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Office & Administrative $2,912,879 $2,912,879 $1,094,312 $1,818,567 37.6% 37.6%
Insurance Expenses 1,048,795 1,048,795 948,775               100,020              90.5% 90.5%
Professional Fees & Services 13,829,574 13,829,574 7,952,464            5,877,110           57.5% 57.5%
O&M Projects 24,063,169 24,063,169 $10,443,790 13,619,378          43.4% 43.4%
Reimbursable Projects 328,583 328,583 $17,134 311,449              5.2% 5.2%

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES $42,182,999 $42,182,999 $20,456,475 $21,726,524 48.5% 48.5%

Quarter Ended June 30, 2021

INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY
Fiscal Year 2020/21

CONSOLIDATED BUDGET VARIANCE ANALYSIS REPORT

Page 1



Exhibit A Detail

Amended
% Budget % Annual 

Amended Budget Actual Variance YTD Budget
Budget YTD YTD YTD Used Used

Quarter Ended June 30, 2021

INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY
Fiscal Year 2020/21

CONSOLIDATED BUDGET VARIANCE ANALYSIS REPORT

OPERATING EXPENSES
Material & Supplies/Leases $3,451,697 $3,451,697 $2,789,507 $662,190 80.8% 80.8%
Biosolids Recycling 4,848,962 4,848,962 4,630,756 218,206              95.5% 95.5%
Chemicals 5,999,747 5,999,747 5,527,042 472,705              92.1% 92.1%
MWD Water Purchases 46,236,000 46,236,000 45,561,349          674,651              98.5% 98.5%
Operating Fees/RTS Fees/Exp. Alloc. 12,791,404 12,791,404 11,197,507          1,593,897           87.5% 87.5%
Utilities 10,273,925 10,273,925 9,374,199 899,725              91.2% 91.2%

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES $83,601,736 $83,601,736 $79,080,361 $4,521,374 94.6% 94.6%

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE
and OPERATING EXPENSES $178,033,767 $178,033,767 $150,680,604 $27,353,163 84.6% 84.6%

NON-OPERATING EXPENSES

CAPITAL OUTLAY $175,641,167 $175,641,167 $111,008,957 $64,632,210 63.2% 63.2%
FINANCIAL EXPENSES

Principal, Interest, and Financial Expenditures 25,610,574 25,610,574 30,390,437 (4,779,863)          118.7% 118.7%

OTHER NON-OPERATING EXPENSES 344,052 344,052 383,949               (39,897)               111.6% 111.6%

TOTAL NON-OPERATING EXPENSES $201,595,793 $201,595,793 $141,783,344 $59,812,450 70.3% 70.3%

TOTAL EXPENSES $379,629,560 $379,629,560 $292,463,948 $87,165,613 77.0% 77.0%

REVENUES IN EXCESS/
  (UNDER) EXPENSES ($30,090,922) ($30,090,922) $3,681,866 $33,772,789
Totals may not add up due to rounding

Page 2



I. Actual vs. Budget Summary:

Quarter Ended June 30, 2021

 % of the Year 
Elapsed:100% 

 Amended Budget
Budget 

Year to Date (YTD)
Actual 

Year to Date (YTD)
Budget YTD 
vs. Actual

 % of Budget
 Used YTD

Operating Revenues 161,610,968 161,610,968 163,551,021 1,940,053 101.2%

Non-Operating (Other Sources of Fund) 187,927,670 187,927,670 132,594,794 (55,332,876) 70.6%

TOTAL FUNDING SOURCES 349,538,638 349,538,638 296,145,815 (53,392,823) 84.7%

Administrative & Operating Expense (178,033,767) (178,033,767) (150,680,604) 27,353,163 84.6%

Capital Improvement Project Expense (175,641,167) (175,641,167) (111,008,957) 64,632,210 63.2%

Debt Service and All Other Expenses (25,954,626) (25,954,626) (30,774,387) (4,819,761) 118.6%

TOTAL USES OF FUNDS (379,629,560) (379,629,560) (292,463,948) 87,165,612 77.0%

Surplus/(Deficit) (30,090,922) (30,090,922) 3,681,867 33,772,789 

EXHIBIT A

85%

85%
63%

119%

$0

$50

$100

$150

$200

$250

$300

$350

$400

Total Funding Sources Administrative & Operating Expense Capital Improvement Project Expense Debt Service and All Other Expenses

M
ill
io
ns

Actual vs. Budget YTD
For the Quarter

Ended June 30, 2021

Budget
Year to Date (YTD)

Actual
Year to Date (YTD)

Page 1



2. Actual Revenue vs. Budget:

Quarter Ended June 30, 2021
 % of the Year     
Elapsed:100%

 Amended Budget
Budget 

Year to Date (YTD)
Actual 

Year to Date (YTD)
Budget YTD 
vs. Actual

 % of Budget
 Used YTD

Operating Revenues:

  User Charges 88,233,485 88,233,485 88,760,179 526,694 100.6%

16,155,000 16,155,000 19,223,412 3,068,412 119.0%

  MWD Water Sales 46,236,000 46,236,000 45,561,349 (674,651) 98.5%

  Cost Reimbursement 7,057,798 7,057,798 6,794,028 (263,770) 96.3%

  Interest 3,928,685 3,928,685 3,212,054 (716,631) 81.8%

161,610,968 161,610,968 163,551,022 1,940,054 101.2%

Non-Operating Revenues:

    Property Tax - Debt,  Capital, Reserves 53,934,900 53,934,900 66,274,703 12,339,803 122.9%

  Connection Fees 35,734,799 35,734,799 42,390,552 6,655,753 118.6%

  Grants & Loans 94,059,220 94,059,220 20,199,090 (73,860,130) 21.5%

  Other Revenue 4,198,751 4,198,751 3,730,448 (468,303) 88.8%

NON-OPERATING REVENUES 187,927,670 187,927,670 132,594,793 (55,332,877) 70.6%

Total Revenues 349,538,638 349,538,638 296,145,815 (53,392,823) 84.7%

User Charges, 100.6%

Property Tax/ 
AdValorem, 122.9%

Recycled Water Sales, 
119%

Interest Income, 81.8%

MWD Water Sales, 98.5%

Connection Fees, 118.6%

Grants and Loans, 21.5%

Cost Reimbursements 
JPA, 96.3%

Other Revenues, 88.8%

  Recycled Water Sales

OPERATING REVENUES

Total Metropolitan Water District of Southern California (MWD) pass-through imported water revenue was $45.6 million or 98.5 percent of the year 
to date budget. Imported water deliveries were 48,349 AF, additional conjunctive use deliveries were 23,000 acre feet. Higher imported water 
demands can be attributed to warmer weather and low precipitation throughout the fiscal year.

Total connection fee receipts were $42.4 million or 118.6 percent of the year to date budget. Receipts include $36.7 million for new regional 
wastewater system connections and $5.7 million for new water connections. A total of 5,274 new equivalent dwellings unit (EDU) wastewater 
connections were reported through the fourth quarter compared to the annual budget of 4,000 new connections. A total of 3,785 meter equivalent 
units (MEU) were collected through the fourth quarter. 

Grant receipts of $20.1 million and loan receipts of $0.1 million for a combined total of $20.2 million were received through the fourth quarter.  SRF 
loan receipts received were for the Recycled Water program and are net of $10.6 million of principal forgiveness and other proceeds reclassified to 
grant revenues. Grant receipts included $8.3 million principal forgiveness for the Napa Lateral, San Sevaine, and Baseline Recycled Water Extension 
projects, $2.4 million for the Recycled Water Pump Station and Pipeline Bottleneck projects, $8.3 million for the Plume cleanup project, $1.1 
million for Recharge Master Plan Update (RMPU) projects in the Recharge Water program and water conservation projects in the Water Resources 
program. 

Total cost reimbursements were $6.8 million or 96.3 percent of the amended budget.  Reimbursements include $4.2 million from the Inland Empire 
Regional Composting Authority (IERCA) and $1.3 million from Chino Basin Desalter Authority (CDA) for the Agency's operation & maintenance of the 
IERCA Composter and CDA Desalter facilities respectively. Also included is $1.3 million for operations & maintenance costs related to the 
groundwater recharge basins, net of the Agency's pro-rata share for the recycled water recharge costs.  

User charges were $88.8 million, or 100.6 percent of the year to date budget. The category includes $71.4 million monthly sewer charges based on 
equivalent dwelling units (EDU), $9.9 million non-reclaimable wastewater fees paid by industrial and commercial users connected to the brine line 
system for disposal of non-reclaimable and industrial wastewater; and $7.5 million of monthly meter equivalent unit charges (MEU) imposed on all 
potable water connections and Readiness-to-Serve Ten Year Rolling Average (RTS TYRA) charges to meet our Readiness-to-Serve obligation to 
Metropolitan Water District (MWD).

Property tax receipts through the fourth quarter totaled $66.3 million. General ad-valorem property tax receipts from the San Bernardino County 
Tax Assessor were $40.7 million and former redevelopment agencies (RDA) pass-through tax was $25.6 million through June. Property tax receipts 
are budgeted based on valuation projected by the county, increased home sales, and anticipated adjustments in property tax distribution due to the 
dissolution of the redevelopment agencies. 

Recycled water direct sales were $9.8 million for 19,534 acre feet (AF) and groundwater recharge sales were $9.4 million for 16,253 acre feet (AF), 
for a combined total of $19.2 million for 35,787 AF. Total deliveries budgeted for the  fiscal year were 31,900 AF (19,000 AF Direct and 12,900 AF 
Recharge).  Demand for direct use and groundwater recharge varies depending on weather patterns, water use conservation efforts, reuse supply, 
and basin availability.

Interest Income was $3.2 million or 81.8 percent of the year to date budget.  The Agency earns interest income by investing funds not immediately 
required for daily operations. The Agency's average investment portfolio yield for June 2021 was 1.23%. The budgeted interest rate assumption for 
FY 2020/21 is 2.50% based on the Agency's overall fund balance which is higher than the agency's investment portfolio.

Total other revenues and project reimbursements were $3.7 million, or 88.6 percent of the year to date budget. Actuals include $1.5 million one-
time receipt from Monte Vista Water District (MVWD) for capacity rights and wastewater discharge permits to use 7 capacity units for the Etiwanda 
Wastewater Line (EWL), $0.6 million from Chino Basin Waster Master(CBWM) for their share of the 2008B Rate Variable bond debt service and fixed 
project costs, $0.3 million of miscellaneous revenues for Non-Reclaimable Wastewater leased capacity units, and $1.3 gain on investments, other 
fees, and miscellaneous reimbursements.

Page 2



3. Actual Operating and Capital Expense vs. Budget:

Quarter Ended June 30, 2021 % of the Year       
Elapsed:100%

 Amended Budget
Budget 

Year to Date (YTD)
Actual 

Year to Date (YTD)
Budget YTD 
vs. Actual

 % of Budget
 Used YTD

Operating Expenses:

  Employment 52,249,032 52,249,032 51,143,768 1,105,264 97.9%

  Admin & Operating 79,548,735 79,548,735 53,975,487 25,573,248 67.9%

  MWD Water Purchases 46,236,000 46,236,000 45,561,349 674,651 98.5%

OPERATING EXPENSES 178,033,767 178,033,767 150,680,604 27,353,163 84.6%

  Capital 175,641,167 175,641,167 111,008,957 64,632,209 63.2%

  Debt Service and All Other Expenses 25,954,626 25,954,626 30,774,386 (4,819,760) 118.6%

NON-OPERATING EXPENSES 201,595,793 201,595,793 141,783,343 59,812,449 70.3%

     Total Expenses 379,629,560 379,629,560 292,463,947 87,165,612 77.0%

Financial Expenses

Other Expenses

Total utilities expenses were $9.4 million or 91.2 percent of the year to date budget. This category includes the purchase of electricity from 
Southern California Edison (SCE) or the grid, natural gas, and purchase of renewable energy generated on site from solar and wind.  Through the 
fourth quarter, the average rate for imported electricity ranged between $0.125/kWh - $0.139/kWh compared to the budgeted rate of $0.12/kWh.

Total Metropolitan Water District of Southern California (MWD) pass-through imported water purchased was $45.6 million or 98.5 percent of the year 
to date budget. Imported water deliveries were 58,650 AF compared to the annual budget of 60,000 AF. 

Utilities, 91.2%

Non-Operating Expenses:

Employment Expenses 
net of allocation to 
projects

Chemical expenses were $5.5 million, or 92.1 percent of the annual budget. Chemicals are essential in meeting regulatory requirements, treatment 
process performance goals, and sustainment of high quality recycled water. New analyzers being used in the field are reducing the use of chemical 
solutions. 

O&M and Reimbursable Projects, 43.4% and 5.2%

Administrative & 
Operating Expenses

Office and Administrative, 37.6%

Biosolids expense through the end of the fourth quarter was $4.6 million or 99.5 percent of the year to date budget. The biosolids budget includes 
costs for hauling and disposal of biosolids and non-biological materials. Year to date tonnage of the Agency's biosolids generated from all its water 
recycling facilities shipped to IERCA was 69,687 tons with a hauling rate of $57 per ton. 

MWD Water Purchases, 98.5%

Biosolids Recycling, 95.5%

Total other expenses were $0.4 million or 111.6 percent of the amended budget. Major category expense includes the annual contribution-in-aid to
the Santa Ana Watershed Project Authority. 

Chemicals, 92.1%

Operating Fees, 87.5%

Employment, 97.9%
Employment expenses were $51.1 million or 97.9 percent of the annual budget.  At the end of the fourth quarter, a total of 266 regular positions 
were filled compared to the 286 budgeted (290 authorized) and 10 limited term positions were filled compared to the 18 budgeted positions. 
Recruitment of key positions as part of the Agency’s succession planning effort is expected to lower the vacancy factor going forward. The budget 
and actual expenses include $7.3 million payment toward unfunded retirement liabilities.

Other Expenses, 111.6%

Financial Expense, 118.7%
Total financial expenses through the fourth quarter were $30.4 million. Actual costs include $16.4 million of principal payments for the 2020A and
2017A Revenue bonds and State Revolving Fund loans. Total interest and financial administration fees were $14.0 million.

Total expenses were $7.9 million, or 57.5 percent of the year to date budget. The variance is primarily due to the continued deferral of non-critical 
contract labor and materials. As public health restrictions remained in effect for the majority of the fiscal year, contractor and consultant support 
budgets were not utilized as planned for operational response plans, energy storage projects, air quality source testing, repairs, and calibration of 
critical compliance equipment.  Other professional services such as audit and consultaning fees for the ongoing rate studies are expected to be 
incurred in the following fiscal year.  

Total expenses through the fourth quarter were $1.1 million or 37.6 percent of the amended budget. Travel, training, meeting expense, office 
supplies, obsolete inventory budget, advertising, and sponsorships remained low through the fourth quarter due to COVID 19 and the remote work 
environment. Other items such as Optimization software, and drought publications and outreach are deferred until next fiscal year. 

Professional Fees & Services, 57.5%

Materials & Supplies/Leases/Contribution, 80.8%

The combined O&M and reimbursable project costs were $10.5 million or 42.9 percent of the combined year to date budget. The favorable budget is
mainly due to project deferrals, delays, and lower spending on planning documents, various fund emergency projects, and drought related projects. 

Total expenses were $11.2 million or 87.5 percent of the year to date budget. A major part of this category are the "pass-through" fees  from Los 
Angeles County Sanitation District (LACSD) and Santa Ana Watershed Project Authority (SAWPA) for the Agency's non-reclaimable wastewater system 
(NRWS).

Expenses through the of the fourth quarter were $2.8 million or 80.8 percent of year to date budget. COVID-19 related supply shortages and long 
lead times led to departments using less materials and supplies for preventive and corrective maintenance tasks,   and operations-related repairs. 
Promotional items and large equipment purchases were deferred to following fiscal year. 

Page 3



Capital Expenses

Capital Projects Annual Budget Actual YTD  % of Budget
 Used YTD

EN17110 15,000,000 8,942,700 59.6%

EN17082 4,300,000 6,399,088 148.8%

EN19006 55,345,979 32,233,764 58.2%

EN19001 31,711,330 30,080,317 94.9%

EN20056 5,601,606 253,437 4.5%

O&M & Reimbursable Projects Annual Budget Actual YTD
 % of Budget
 Used YTD

EN19024 3,186,350 745,088 23.4%

EN19023 1,179,842 145,713 12.4%

WR18005 515,805 399,652 77.5%

RP-1 Mechanical Restoration

The project will replace all nine RAS pumps, five WAS pumps, four scum pumps, two motor control centers, five variable frequency drives, and all
ancillary piping in the RAS Buildings. The objective of the project is to ensure the treatment facilities are well maintained, upgraded to meet
evolving requirements, sustainably managed, and can accommodate changes in regional water use. The majority of the equipment was originally
anticipated to be received in FY 19/20, but was not received until FY 20/21 as a result of the COVID pandemic. Unexpected issues with existing fiber
optic cables required identification and relocation, this caused delays in scheduled electrical and control activities resulting in extended pump
bypassing. Major construction, installation of all mechanical equipment, and the end of pump bypassing was completed by the end of June 2021.
Small additions and programming work will be completed by end of first quarter 2021/22. 

 Summary of major capital and non-capital project expenses and status as of June 30, 2021

Turf Removal Rebate
This Project adds a $1 per square-foot incentive to MWD’s base-rate rebate of $2.  This Project provides supplemental funding for customers who 
replace their existing, high water-use turf with climate appropriate and water-wise plant materials for residential, commercial, industrial, and 
institutional sites. During the fourth quarter of FY 20/21, IEUA’s WUE Turf Programs have experienced an increased customer interest in the 
commercial, industrial, and institutional demographic.  With an impending drought approaching, staff anticipates these funds will be exhausted 
within the next 6-8 months.

The project was awarded to Charlies King, Co. on April 21 for 210 calendar days to complete the project. As of today, the contractor is preparing
necessary submittals for review in anticipation of a bypass operation and traffic control for the duration of the re-lining project that is scheduled for
mid-August to November.

RSS Haven Avenue Repairs

Total capital project expenditures year to date were $111.0 million or 63.2 percent of the year to date budget. The favorable variance can be 
attributed to material procurement and contract award delays as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, project scope and design delays and 
adjustments, and regulatory permit requirements.   Capital project budget related to the Regional Wastewater program is $139.3 million, or 79 
percent of the $175.6 million of the annual program budget. Recycled Water program capital project budget accounts for $5.2 million, or 3.0 
percent of the annual program budget.  

Capital Costs, 63.2%

RP-4 Process Improvements

Regional water recycling plant No. 4 improvements to extend service life of facilities and provide enhanced operation flexibility. This variance is a
result of a combination of the project being extended by several months due to longer than estimated lead time on equipment and also construction
bids coming in lower than anticipated and as a result, expenditures will be less than anticipated.

As part of the Asset Management Program, this project will develop and gather the condition of Agency assets in order to forecast, budget, and 
implement the replacement and/or repair of critical assets. The program development phase and asset condition assessment for this project 
experienced some minor delays due to personnel integration into Asset Mgt. group to manage these projects. The expenditures for fourth quarter is 
less than expected due to this delay. The project is now assigned with a full time project manager and will be in pre-design stage in the first quarter 
of the new fiscal year.

RP-5 Solids Handling Facility
The relocation of the RP-2 Solids Treatment Facility to RP-5 is required due to the facility being located on United States Army Corps of Engineers
(USACE) property, which is located in a future flood plain upon completion of USACE project to raise the Prado Dam Spillway. Foundation pours for
the thickening building, acid phase digester, gas phase digesters and building, and dewatering facility and truck loading areas are various phases of
completion. Began forming and reinforcing walls of the acid phase digesters. Excavation, subgrade installation, underground piping, and electrical
for warehouse 1 and 2 were in progress as of fiscal year end.  

RP-5 Expansion to 30 mgd
Improvements at RP-5 are expected to increase the treatment capacity of RP-5 from 15 to 22.5 MGD. W.M. Lyles construction baseline schedule was
approve in January. Excavation and shoring installation for the influent pump station is continuing and installation of the block walls for the power
center buildings 4 and 9 is complete. Power center building 6 and the blower building 2 installation of block walls is nearly complete. Offsite pump
stations design will be finalized in 2022, associate agreements, bidding, and construction will follow. 

Asset Management Plan

Collection System Asset Management
CDM Smith was awarded the contract to perform condition assessments of specified sewer lines and siphons within the Regional and Brine Sewer 
Systems. The contract includes an optimized planning system for future cleaning, inspecting and replacing sewer assets. The increase budget is part 
service contract to implement additional condition assessment efforts on critical sewer assets and optimize the Agency’s asset management plan 
towards the collection system. In September 2020, the Board approved both the service contract and the augmented project budget. The project is 
currently in pre-design, all field inspections are scheduled to completed with the second quarter of next fiscal year. The optimization efforts will be 
completed one-year after the completion of the field assessment work. 

Page 4





























Exhibit C-1

Fund Fund Name Date Cost Center GL Account Category
Amt 

Transfer Out Cost Center GL Account Category
Amount 

Transfer In Description QTR

5/12/2021 112100 521080 Professional Fees & 
Services

$15,625.00 131140 520980 Professional Fees & 
Services

$15,625.00 This request is to transfer funds from Agency Management to the Lab to 
cover expenses from MRG for professional services - leadership training.

4

511230 $6,300.00
511240 $1,050.00
511250 $12,600.00
511290 $2,100.00
513020 $7,950.00
513010 $500.00

511110 $2,000.00
511220 $250.00
511230 $900.00
511240 $650.00
511240 $4,850.00
511250 $400.00
511290 $550.00
512210 $2,300.00
513010 $6,100.00
514110 $6,500.00
511430 $7,000.00
511440 $6,500.00

5/27/2021 114100 521080 Professional Fees & 
Services

$2,500.00 119100 520980 Professional Fees & 
Services

$2,500.00

Transfer $2,500 from Cost Center 114100 to Cost Center 119100 to pay for 
an invoice from Nichols Consulting for preparation of Senate Bill 90/State 
Mandated Cost Claims for claims prepared related to Local Government 
Employee Relations for FY 2019/20. This cost was not anticipated when 
preparing for FY 2020/21 Budget.

4

511120 $1,000.00
512010 $1,600.00
513020 $4,000.00
514020 $700.00
514110 $2,700.00
511130 $12,000.00
511430 $1,000.00
511110 $1,100.00
511220 $125.00
511230 $125.00
511240 $350.00
511250 $250.00
512010 $450.00
513010 $100.00
513020 $500.00

5/12/2021 136100 136100 515030 Office & 
Administration

$30,000.00

CASA has solicited a financial contribution to fund a Cerio Study that will 
develop guidance to improve consistency and comparability for C. dubia 
test results.  The total contribution amount will be $30,000.  Funds  will be 
transferred from Travel and Conference expense accounts to Contributions 
and Sponsorships

4Office & 
Administration

Office & 
Administration

5/18/2021 520213 Professional Fees & 
Services

$36,000.00

Inland Empire Utilities Agency
Inter-Departmental / Division Transfers FY 2020/21

Budget Transfer

TRANSFER FROM TRANSFER TO

10200 Administrative Services

Transfer to ensure funds are available to process payment of legal services 
invoices

4

5/12/2021 122100 Office & 
Administration

120100 511310 Office & 
Administration

$2,500.00 To move funds to the Employee Recognition account, as there are currently 
no available funds to use within this account.

4

119100 119100

4520213 Professional Fees & 
Services

$26,000.00 To ensure available funds to process payment of legal services invoices.Office & 
Administration

6/3/2021

119100

120100

122100

119100



Exhibit C-1

Fund Fund Name Date Cost Center GL Account Category
Amt 

Transfer Out Cost Center GL Account Category
Amount 

Transfer In Description QTR

Inland Empire Utilities Agency
Inter-Departmental / Division Transfers FY 2020/21

Budget Transfer

TRANSFER FROM TRANSFER TO

6/10/2021 115100 512710 Materials & Supplies $21,000.00 115100 545311 Utilities $21,000.00
Cover expenditures for Agency's cell phone program as a result of increased 
distribution to staff, initial expense, associated monthly service fees, and 
accessories (cases, chargers).

4

6/10/2021 115100 512710 Materials & Supplies $5,000.00 115100 545310 Utilities $5,000.00
Budget transfer to cover the additional costs associated with the increase in 
Agency issued smartphones.  Cover the added costs of accessories 
including cases and chargers.

4

545310 $4,000.00

545311 $21,000.00

6/10/2021 144100 521010 Professional Fees & 
Services

$25,000.00 146100 512110 Materials & Supplies $25,000.00
Provide additional funds for budget shortfall in Process Automation and 
Control (146100) Materials & Supplies. This shortfall is preventing 
completion of invoice processing for fiscal year 2021.

4

4/5/2021 151100 545110 Utilities $90,000.00 151151 530020 Chemicals $90,000.00 Due to rising renewal costs this fiscal year a budget transfer is necessary to 
pay for chemical invoices through the end of the fiscal year.

4

6/1/2021 151100 520980 Professional Fees & 
Services

$55,000.00 151151 526310 Biosolids Recycling $55,000.00

RP-1 has produced approximately 2% more biosolids than anticipated 
during the original budgeting cycles. This increase was caused by 
operational challenges with solids thickening, digester heating, and the 
overall digestor performances.

4

151100 530028 $122,000.00

151100 530025 $10,000.00

151100 530024 $25,000.00

521010 $175,000.00 530016 $180,000.00

530020 $30,000.00

530024 $125,000.00

6/15/2021 144155 521010 Professional Fees & 
Services

$35,000.00 154100 526310 Biosolids Recycling $35,000.00

RP-2 solids loading has increased by approximately six percent in FY 20-21 
from the previous fiscal year (FY 19-20). The solids loading increase has 
resulted in a near similar increase of approximately five percent of biosolids 
sent to the Inland Empire Regional Composting Facility.

4

Total O&M Transfers 
Out $860,625

Total O&M 
Transfers In $860,625

Regional Wastewater 
Operations & Maintenance

115100

1541006/8/2021 144155 Professional Fees & 
Services521050 $160,000.00

$25,000.00Utilities5451101541006/10/2021

Utilities $157,000.00 Chemicals
10800

Utilities

Transfer to cover the additional expenses associated with the increase in 
distribution of Agency smart phones to staff throughout the Operations 
Division.  These expenses will be applied toward the purchase of the phone, 
monthly service fees and the cost of accessories. (Cases and chargers).

4

Administrative Services10200

Chemicals
Due to rising chemical renewal costs this fiscal year, a budget transfer is 
needed to supplement the chemical budget. Transfer will pay for chemical 
invoices through June 2021.

4

The cost for chemicals has increased higher than was anticipated during the 
original budgeting cycle. Specifically, Sodium Bisulfite increased by 57%, 
Ferric Chloride by 43%, and Sodium Hypochlorite by 8%.

46/1/2021 151100 545110



Exhibit C-2

Date From Expense 
Account

Amount 
Transfer Out

Receiver Fund 
Name

Receiver Fund 
Center Name

Receiver 
Project / 
Expense 
Account

Receiver Project / 
Expense Account 

Name

Amount 
Transfer In Balance Justification

Beginning Balance, July 1, 2020 $300,000

No Activity

Balance, September 30, 2020 $0 $300,000

12/9/2020 GM Contingency $4,005 Administrative 
Services

Agency 
Management 511310 Employee Recognition $4,005 Funds needed for Holiday Shirt order 

requested by C. Valencia

Balance, December 31, 2020 $4,005 $295,995

1/12/2021 GM Contingency $14,000

Non-
Reclaimable 
Wastewater 

program

Agency 
Management 520210 Legal - General $14,000

Funds needed to cover the legal expenses 
due to the unpredictable level of public 
records request related to the NRW system, 
the NRW Legal - General fund has used more 
than the budget funds.  

Balance, March 31, 2021 $14,000 $281,995

5/5/2021 GM Contingency $26,640 Recharge Water Agency 
Management 520230 Legal  - Litigation $26,640

This request is to transfer $26,640 from the 
GM Contingency Fund into the Legal-
Litigation fund to ensure there are enough 
funds to cover general counsel's invoices as 
there have been more costs associated with 
legal litigation this fiscal year.

Balance, June 30, 2021 $26,640 $255,355

Administrative Services program $4,005
Recharge Water program $26,640
Non-Reclaimable Wastewater pro $14,000
Recycled Water program -                
Regional Wastewater O&M progra -                
Regional Wastewater Capital prog -                
Water Resources program -                

Total GM Contingency Transfers $44,645

GM Contingency Transfers Summary by Fund

Inland Empire Utilities Agency
FY 2020/21 General Manager Contingency Account Activity

Budget Transfer



Inland Empire Utilities Agency
Changes in Total Project Budget: Inter-Departmental/Division Capital & O&M Transfers FY 2020/21

Exhibit D

Fund Transfer 
Date

Project 
Number Project Title

Adopted Total 
Project (TP) 

Budget

Prior TP 
Changes in 
Current FY

Amt. of 
Transfer In / 

(Out)
New TP Budget Annual Project 

Budget

Annual Proj. 
Budget 
Change

New Annual 
Project 
Budget

Project 
Transferred 
To/(From)

Justification

EN21049 Main HDQ Improvement $140,000 $0 ($30,000) $110,000 $140,000 ($30,000) $110,000 IS21022

IS21022 SAP Host Server 
Replacement $0 $0 $30,000 $30,000 $0 $30,000 $30,000 EN21049

IS21006 Replace RP-1 Trailer $200,000 $70,000 ($45,000) $225,000 $270,000 ($45,000) $225,000 IS20003

IS20003 BIZ Infrastructure 
Replacement $410,500 $0 $45,000 $455,500 $138,820 $45,000 $183,820 IS21006

Subtotal General Administrative (GG): $750,500 $820,500 $548,820 $548,820

EN21046 CCWRF Filter Automatic 
Valves $388,000 ($250,000) ($50,000) $88,000 $138,000 ($50,000) $88,000 EN20058

EN20058 RP-1/TP-1 Waste Wash 
Water Basin Pumps $650,000 $100,000 $50,000 $800,000 $610,000 $50,000 $660,000 EN21046

Subtotal Regional Wastewater Operations & Maint. (RO): $1,038,000 $888,000 $748,000 $748,000

Adopted Amended Adopted Amended
$1,788,500 $1,708,500 $1,296,820 $1,296,820

EN21036 WC On-Call Small Projects $150,000 $0 ($40,000) $110,000 $150,000 ($40,000) $110,000 EN21017

WR21017 Residential Pressure 
Regulation Program $150,000 $0 $40,000 $190,000 $150,000 $40,000 $190,000 EN21036

Subtotal Recycled Water (WC): $300,000 $300,000 $300,000 $300,000

WR20013 Sponsorships & Public 
Outreach $174,500 $0 ($145,276) $29,224 $150,281 ($145,276) $5,005 WR21024

WR21024 WUE Research and 
Evaluation $40,000 $0 $145,276 $185,276 $40,000 $145,276 $185,276 WR20013

WR20007 Residential Rebate Incentive $100,000 $0 ($15,669) $84,331 $65,634 ($15,669) $49,965 WR21007

WR21007 Residential Rebate Incentive $100,000 $0 $15,669 $115,669 $100,000 $15,669 $115,669 WR20007

Subtotal Water Resources (WW): $414,500 $414,500 $355,915 $355,915

Adopted Amended Adopted Amended
$414,500 $414,500 $355,915 $355,915

O&M Total Project Budget Total Annual O&M Project Budget

Capital Total Project Budget Total Annual Capital Budget

This transfer is providing additional funds to the WR21007 Residential 
Rebate Project. Staff continues to receive costs associated with MWD 
residential rebates and expects to see an increase in activity in FY 21/22. 
The transfer is occurring from WR20007.00 to WR21007.00 for a total 
amount of $15,669.

O&M Projects

10700

5/25/21

This transfer is providing additional funds to the WR21024 WUE 
Research and Evaluation Project.  Staff are planning to implement an 
indoor leak detection program in FY 21/22.The transfer is occurring from 
WR20013.00 to WR21024.00 for a total amount of $145,276.00.

10600 4/22/21

Transfer $40,000 from WC On-Call/Small Projects FY 20/21, Project 
No. EN21036 to the WC Emergency Projects FY 20/21, Project 
EN21017. There is currently one additional emergency recycled water 
project that has occurred, which will require additional budget. 

6/29/21

10800 4/22/21

Transfer FY 20/21 and Total Project Budget in the amount of $50,000 
from the CCWRF Filter Automatic Valves, Project No. EN21046 to the 
RP-1 TP-1 Waste Wash Water Basin Pumps Replacement, Project 
EN20058. The project will need a budget transfer to cover the cost of the 
change orders, anticipated final invoices, and staff labor to close out the 
project. The change orders are a result of added scope required to 
completed the installation of the new pumps and a request from 
operations to replace additional valves.

Capital Projects

5/5/21
Transfer funds for the purchase of new SAP server hardware, operating 
system, and database licenses that will replace the existing server that is 
approaching end of useful life.

10200

6/9/21 The transfer will fund 20 laptops, docking stations, and monitors to 
support new hire staff currently in recruitment by HR.







*Other operating revenues includes contract cost reimbursement and interest revenue



*Other non-operating revenues includes project reimbursements, lease revenue, and miscellaneous sales.



*Other operating expenses includes insurance, operating fees, chemicals, biosolids, materials & supplies, and office & admin.



*Other non-operating expenses includes SAWPA member contribution and other miscellaneous expenses.



The Budget Variance Analysis report is consistent with 
the Agency’s business goal of fiscal responsibility to 

ensure actual revenues and expenditures are consistent 
with those approved by the Board of Directors.





INFORMATION 
ITEM 

3M 



Client Management Team

Sarah Meacham, Managing Director

Richard Babbe, CCM, Senior Managing Consultant

601 South Figueroa, Suite 4500

Los Angeles, CA 90017

213-489-4075

PFM Asset Management LLC

213 Market Street    

Harrisburg, PA 17101-2141

717-232-2723Joseph Creason, Portfolio Manager

Rachael Miller, Client Consultant

Investment Performance Review 
For the Quarter Ended June 30, 2021

INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY



Market Update



For the Quarter Ended June 30, 2021

INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY

PFM Asset Management LLC

6.4%

10.0%

7.0%

5.0%

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

2021

U.S. GDP Forecasts
Annualized Rate

Bloomberg Average 
forecasts

■ Fully open

■ Opened in June

■ Opening in July

■ Criteria but no date set

Reopening Status of U.S. States

Reopening Economy Drives GDP Growth

Sources: New York Times (left) and Bloomberg (right), Bureau of Economic Analysis, as of June 30, 2021.

Market Update

1



For the Quarter Ended June 30, 2021

PFM Asset Management LLC

19.1%

-1.0%

5.2%

-25%

-20%

-15%

-10%

-5%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

J
a
n

-2
0

F
e
b
-2

0

M
a
r-

2
0

A
p
r-

2
0

M
a
y
-2

0

J
u
n

-2
0

J
u
l-
2

0

A
u
g
-2

0

S
e
p
-2

0

O
c
t-

2
0

N
o
v
-2

0

D
e
c
-2

0

J
a
n

-2
1

F
e
b
-2

1

M
a
r-

2
1

A
p
r-

2
1

M
a
y
-2

1

Personal Consumption Expenditures (MoM)
Normalized as of January 31, 2020

Goods Services Total

Goods purchases have stagnated 
in favor of spending on services.

While spending on services has yet to fully recover, 
consumers are increasingly taking advantage of 

dining out, going to live events, and other services.

Market Update

Consumer Spending Experiencing a Shift to Services

Source: Bloomberg, Bureau of Economic Analysis, as of June 30, 2021..

INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY

2



For the Quarter Ended June 30, 2021

PFM Asset Management LLC

0

5

10

15

20

25

Jun-19 Dec-19 Jun-20 Dec-20 Jun-21

M
il
li
o

n
s

Job Openings vs. Unemployed Workers

Unemployed US Job Openings

1,600

384

288

286

171

147

87

86

77

61

33

26

10

1

Leisure & hospitality

Government

Education & health svcs.

Professional & business svcs.

Other svcs.

Retail trade

Manufacturing

Wholesale trade

Information

Transportation & warehousing

Natural Resources & Mining

Financial & Insurance

Construction

Utilities

Change in Total Nonfarm Employment since 
December 2020 (thousands)

these sectors have made 

the greatest headway in 

jobs growth since the 

beginning of the year

Source: Bloomberg, Bureau of Labor Statistics, as of June 30, 2021..

Job Openings Hit Record High; Service Sector Leads Jobs Recovery

Market UpdateINLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY

3



For the Quarter Ended June 30, 2021
INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY

PFM Asset Management LLC

2.2% 2.0% 2.1% 2.0%

3.4%

2.1% 2.2% 2.0%

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

2021 2022 2023 Longer
Run

Federal Reserve Projections
Core PCE Inflation

March Projections June Projections

2.3%

2.5%

0%

1%

2%

3%

Dec-19 Mar-20 Jun-20 Sep-20 Dec-20 Mar-21 Jun-21

Breakeven Inflation Rates

10 Yr. 5 Yr.

.Market Update

Source: Bloomberg, as of June 30, 2021.
.

Inflation Strengthens but Driven by a Few Key Sectors

45.2%

7.0%
4.9% 4.5% 3.3% 2.6% 1.0% 1.0%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

40%

45%

50%

U
se

d 
C

ar
s 

& 
Tr

uc
ks

To
ba

cc
o 

& 
Sm

ok
in

g 
Pr

od
.

Ap
pa

re
l

C
or

e 
C

PI
 Y

oY

N
ew

 C
ar

s

Sh
el

te
r

Ai
rli

ne
 F

ar
e

M
ed

ic
al

 C
ar

e

YOY Price Change in Key Consumer Price Index 
Components (June 2021)

4



For the Quarter Ended June 30, 2021

PFM Asset Management LLC

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

Fed Participants’ Assessments of “Appropriate” Monetary Policy

June-21 FOMC Projections

June-21 Median

2021 Longer Term2022 2023

wide dispersion between Fed 
participants’ views on 

monetary policy

Market Update

Source: Federal Reserve and Bloomberg. Individual dots represent each Fed members’ judgement of the midpoint of the appropriate targe t range for the federal funds rate at each year end. 

.

Fed’s “Dot Plot” Reflects Evolving Monetary Policy Views

INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY

5



For the Quarter Ended June 30, 2021

PFM Asset Management LLC

0.04%

0.89%

1.47%

2.09%

0.00%

0.50%

1.00%

1.50%

2.00%

2.50%

3.00%

3
M

1
Y

2
Y

3
Y

4
Y

5
Y

10
Y

30
Y

Y
ie

ld

Maturity

June 30, 2021

March 31, 2021

U.S. Treasury Yield Curve

0.02%

-0.03%

0.11%

0.67%

-0.25%

0.00%

0.25%

0.50%

0.75%

1
 Y

e
a
r

1
 -

 3
 Y

e
a
r

1
 -

 5
 Y

e
a
r

1
 -

 1
0
 Y

e
a
r

2021 U.S. Treasury Returns 
(2Q 2021)

Market Update

Source: Bloomberg, as of June 30, 2021.

.

Yield Curve Moves Have Differing Impacts on Performance

INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY

6



For the Quarter Ended June 30, 2021

PFM Asset Management LLC

-0.05%

0.00%

0.05%

0.10%

0.15%

0.20%

Sep-20 Dec-20 Mar-21 Jun-21

Federal Agency Yield Spreads
(September 2020 – June 2021)

0.20%

0.40%

0.60%

0.80%

1.00%

Sep-20 Dec-20 Mar-21 Jun-21

Corporate Notes A-AAA Yield Spreads
(September 2020 – June 2021)

0.20%

0.30%

0.40%

0.50%

Sep-20 Dec-20 Mar-21 Jun-21

Asset-Backed Securities (ABS)
Yield Spreads

(September 2020 – June 2021)

-0.25%

0.00%

0.25%

0.50%

0.75%

1.00%

1.25%

1.50%

Sep-20 Dec-20 Mar-21 Jun-21

Mortgage-Backed Securities (MBS)
Yield Spreads

(September 2020 – June 2021)

Agency MBS AAA CMBS Index

Market Update

Source: ICE BofAML 1-3 year Indices via Bloomberg, MarketAxess, and PFM as of June 30, 2021. Spreads on ABS and MBS are option-adjusted spreads of 0-3 year indices based on weighted average life; 

spreads on agencies are relative to comparable-maturity Treasuries. CMBS is Commercial Mortgage-Backed Securities.

Spread Sectors Remain near Record Tight Levels (1-3 Year)

INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY

7



Investment Strategy

& Portfolio Review



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY

For the Quarter Ended June 30, 2021

Portfolio Review

PFM Asset Management LLC

Portfolio Recap

 Our strategy for second quarter was largely carried forward from the first quarter and encompassed the following:

• We maintained core allocations in most sectors while we opportunistically trimmed non-Treasury allocations in certain
sectors and maturities and carefully managed risk as we considered inflationary pressures and Fed policy uncertainty.

• The federal agency sector experienced 1 to 2 basis points (0.01% to 0.02%) of spread widening, concentrated in the 4-
to 5-year area of the curve. Allocations to the sector were reduced selectively, locking in strong performance from
agencies previously purchased over a year ago when spreads were wider.

• Investment-grade corporates were aided over the quarter by the prospect of economic recovery, helped by further fiscal
stimulus and supportive monetary policy globally. Credit spreads achieved new tights versus comparable-maturity
Treasuries despite an active new issue market as investors continued to reach for yield. Like the agency sector, PFM
engaged in opportunistic selling, reduced corporate bond holdings that had reached very rich levels—largely those with
less than two years remaining until maturity—and reinvesting in longer corporate issues, which captured value along the
steeper portions of the curve.

• The taxable municipal sector once again provided a boost to relative portfolio performance over the quarter as strong
demand for new issues and the general market reach for yield pressured spreads tighter still. PFM generally maintained
allocations to the sector and participated in new issues where offering levels were relatively attractive.

• Short-term credit (negotiable CDs) yields continued to decline over the quarter with some of the shortest tenors
continuing to offer low absolute yields while still offering a spread to comparable-maturity Treasuries, which have been
trading at near zero levels. Towards the end of the quarter, the yield on short-term government securities drifted higher in
response to the Fed’s adjustment of the interest rate on excess reserves (IOER) and the reverse repo rate (RRP).

8



PFM Asset Management LLC

For the Quarter Ended June 30, 2021
INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY Portfolio Compliance

 The portfolio is in compliance with the Agency’s Investment Policy and California Government Code.

Sector Allocation & Compliance

Market values, excluding accrued interest. Detail may not add to total due to rounding. Current investment policy as of April 2021.

Security Type Market Value 
as of 6/30/2021

% of 
Portfolio

% Change 
vs. 3/31/2021

Permitted by 
Policy In Compliance

U.S. Treasury $55,363,444 48.6% 8.1% 100% 

Federal Agency $33,689,294 29.5% -4.6% 100% 

Municipal Obligations $2,150,724 1.9% -0.3% 10% 

Negotiable CDs $3,171,784 2.8% -1.2% 30% 

Corporate Notes $19,640,142 17.2% -1.9% 30% 

Securities Sub-Total $114,015,389 100.0%

Accrued Interest $379,909 

Securities Total $114,395,298 100.0%

9



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY

For the Quarter Ended June 30, 2021

Portfolio Snapshot

Portfolio Statistics

As of June 30, 2021

$111,993,000 

$114,395,298 

$114,015,389 

$379,909 

 - 

   Accrued Interest:

Cash:

Par Value:

Total Market Value:

   Security Market Value:

$112,227,704 

 0.49%

 1.44%

AAAverage Credit: *

Yield at Cost:

Amortized Cost:

Yield at Market:

Effective Duration: 2.63 Years

Average Maturity: 2.73 Years

Credit Quality (S&P Ratings)**

2.5%

A

3.1%

A-

4.5%

A+

1.5%

A-1

3.6%

AA

3.4%

AA-

78.9%

AA+

1.6%

AAA

0.7%

BBB+

0.2%

Not Rated

0%

4%

8%

12%

16%

20%

24%

28%

0 - 1 Year 1 - 2 Years 2 - 3 Years 3 - 4 Years 4 - 5 Years > 5 Years

10.9%

22.5%
24.1% 24.2%

18.2%

0.0%

Maturity Distribution

Sector Allocation

17.2%

Corporate

29.6%

Federal

Agency

1.9%

Municipal

2.8%

Negotiable

CD

48.5%

U.S.

Treasury

 PFM Asset Management LLC

* An average of each security’s credit rating assigned a numeric value and adjusted for its relative weighting in the portfolio.
**Securities held in the portfolio are in compliance with California Government Code and the Agency's Investment Policy dated April 2021.

10



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY

For the Quarter Ended June 30, 2021

Portfolio Composition

Sector Allocation

June 30, 2021 March 31, 2021 December 31, 2020 September 30, 2020

% of TotalMV ($MM)Sector % of Total% of Total% of Total MV ($MM)MV ($MM)MV ($MM)

U.S. Treasury  55.4  48.5%  40.0  40.6%  36.4  37.0%  38.3  38.9%

Federal Agency  33.7  29.6%  33.7  34.1%  36.4  37.1%  35.0  35.6%

Corporate  19.6  17.2%  18.9  19.1%  19.5  19.8%  19.5  19.8%

Negotiable CD  3.2  2.8%  4.0  4.0%  4.0  4.1%  4.2  4.3%

Municipal  2.2  1.9%  2.1  2.2%  2.0  2.0%  1.4  1.4%

$114.0  100.0% $98.8  100.0% $98.3  100.0% $98.5  100.0%Total

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

June 2021 March 2021 December 2020 September 2020

Municipal

Negotiable CD

Corporate

Federal Agency

U.S. Treasury

 PFM Asset Management LLC

Detail may not add to total due to rounding.

11



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY

For the Quarter Ended June 30, 2021

Portfolio Composition

Maturity Distribution

As of June 30, 2021

>5

Years

4-5

Years

3-4

Years

2-3

Years

1-2

Years

0-1

Years
Yield

at MarketPortfolio/Benchmark

Average

Maturity

 0.49%  10.9%  22.5%  24.1%  24.2%  18.2%  0.0%2.73 yrs

 0.41%  1.6%  34.4%  27.2%  17.5%  19.3%  0.0%2.73 yrs

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

0-1 Years 1-2 Years 2-3 Years 3-4 Years 4-5 Years > 5 Years

10.9%

22.5%
24.1% 24.2%

18.2%

0.0%
1.6%

34.4%

27.2%

17.5%
19.3%

0.0%

INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY ICE BofAML 1-5 Year U.S. Treasury Index

 PFM Asset Management LLC

INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY 

ICE BofAML 1-5 Year U.S. Treasury Index

12



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY

For the Quarter Ended June 30, 2021

Portfolio Performance

Portfolio Performance (Total Return)

Effective

DurationPortfolio/Benchmark

Annualized Return

10 Year1 Year 3 Year 5 Year
Since Inception

(03/31/18) 

Current

Quarter

 2.63  0.18% -0.19% 3.51% - 3.36%

 2.60  0.11% --0.27% 3.26% - 3.04%

Difference 0.46% 0.07% 0.25% - - 0.32%

-0.5%

0.0%

0.5%

1.0%

1.5%

2.0%

2.5%

3.0%

3.5%

4.0%

 Current Quarter  1 Year  3 Year  5 Year  10 Year  Since Inception

0.18% 0.19%

3.51%
3.36%

0.11%

-0.27%

3.26%
3.04%

T
o

ta
l 
R

e
tu

rn

INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY ICE BofAML 1-5 Year U.S. Treasury Index

 PFM Asset Management LLC

INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY 

ICE BofAML 1-5 Year U.S. Treasury Index

Portfolio performance is gross of fees unless otherwise indicated.Po

13



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY

For the Quarter Ended June 30, 2021

Portfolio Performance

Portfolio Earnings

Quarter-Ended June 30, 2021

Market Value Basis Accrual (Amortized Cost) Basis

Net Purchases/Sales

Change in Value

Interest Earned

$98,822,382.02 

$15,407,951.46 

($214,944.90)

$384,692.68 

$169,747.78 

$114,015,388.58 

$96,723,780.82 

$15,407,951.46 

$95,971.94 

$384,692.68 

$480,664.62 

$112,227,704.22 

Portfolio Earnings

Beginning Value (03/31/2021)

Ending Value (06/30/2021)

 PFM Asset Management LLC 14



For the Quarter Ended June 30, 2021

PFM Asset Management LLC

Sector Our Investment Preferences Comments

C O M M E R C I A L  P A P E R

/  C D

• Commercial paper and CD rates began to rise off historical lows after the Fed

increased the IOER and RRP rates. However, issuance remained light around the end

of Q2. Pockets of opportunity may present themselves over the next several months.

T R E A S U R I E S • T-Bill yields saw some upward pressure towards the end of June, as the Federal

Reserve increased two key ultra short-term rates; it is expected that these levels will

maintain into the third quarter.

• While the Treasury yield curve continued to flatten during June—particularly between

the 2-year and 10-year—it is possible the move was overdone and will at least partially

unwind moving into the third quarter. The market expects both yields to rise and the

yield curve to steepen throughout the rest of 2021.

T-Bill

T-Note

F E D E R A L  A G E N C I E S • Agency bullet spreads tightened slightly as Treasury yields rose in the 1-5 year area of

the curve in June. With agencies trading in line with, or even through, Treasury yields

and supply expected to remain subdued, the sector is unlikely to provide material

added value over the coming months.

Bullets

Callables

S U P R A N A T I O N A L S

• Supra spreads narrowed by the end of Q2. The seasonal slowdown in issuance this

summer will limit opportunities in the sector over the near-term, as the new issue

market has been the best entry point into the sector over the last several months. As a

result, spreads will likely remain tight until issuance picks back up.

C O R P O R A T E S • Corporate spreads remain at record tights despite a more hawkish tone from the June

Fed meeting. Demand for credit is likely to remain strong, though valuations are rich.

Accommodative monetary policy, along with a positive turn in rating trends, should

continue to ensure favorable financing conditions. New issues are expected to provide

the bulk of any opportunities, as valuations across the secondary market remain rich.

Financials

Industrials

S E C U R I T I Z E D • ABS spreads tightened in June, reaching record tights for both autos and credit cards

issues. Issuance in June was the heaviest month so far in 2021. Delinquency rates

and net losses remain below expectations. Fiscal stimulus and improving employment

figures may push back any increases to later in 2021 or beyond.

• MBS spreads are tight but recently found some reprieve. While prepayments are

elevated, they are on a considerable slowing path, and this trend is expected to

continue. Lower coupon passthroughs, most susceptible to duration extension, are

likely to trail Treasuries as rates move higher. With valuations slightly more

reasonable, the sector may present better opportunities than in recent quarters.

• CMBS returns have held up well throughout the quarter. As spreads have tightened,

the relative value proposition has waned, suggesting a gradual reduction in exposure.

Asset-Backed

Agency Mortgage-Backed

Agency CMBS

M U N I C I P A L S
• While the pace of taxable issuances has slowed, overall supply remains robust, but

valuations are expensive for both new issuances and secondary markets. Both

selective additions and opportunistic selling may be warranted.

Market Update

Negative
Slightly 

Negative
Neutral

Slightly 

Positive
PositiveCurrent outlook Outlook one month ago

Fixed Income Sector Outlook – July 2021

INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY

15



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY

For the Quarter Ended June 30, 2021

Outlook

PFM Asset Management LLC

Investment Strategy Outlook

 The strong U.S. economic expansion is expected to persist, aided by a vaccine-driven reopening, pent-up consumer demand, 
and continued fiscal and monetary support. GDP expectations for 2021 have been revised upward, with current forecasts 
pointing to an annualized 6% growth this year. However, growing inflationary pressures may force the Fed’s hand when 
considering tapering its bond purchases and, ultimately, future rate increases. Given these risks, we plan to maintain the 
portfolio duration in line with the benchmark as we continue to monitor the economic recovery. 

 Our outlook for major investment-grade sectors includes the following:

• Treasuries: Current allocations provide “dry powder” to add to other sectors should spreads become more attractive.
Portfolio rebalancing and duration extension trades are focused in the steepest portions of the curve. Along with income,
yield curve roll-down should serve as a significant contributor to portfolio returns as the upside for pure price
appreciation is quite limited.

• Agencies: There is limited room for further spread tightening from current levels as spreads are in the single-digit range
across most of the curve. With spreads likely to remain near zero over the coming quarter, the sector offers very little
incremental yield compared to Treasuries. We will continue to reduce allocations, realize gains where appropriate, and
favor other sectors.

• Corporates: Continued economic recovery, supportive monetary policy, lower expected supply, and strong investor
demand for high quality yield should serve as catalysts for good performance in the corporate sector. While historically
tight spreads have encouraged us to position allocations defensively, the sector still represents a core allocation to
portfolios.

• Taxable Municipals: Taxable municipals have been a great alternative to corporates over the past year. While we still
see opportunities in the sector, we have turned more cautious due to very tight spreads. Similar to other sectors, we
may begin to opportunistically sell rich holdings while continuing to evaluate new issues that come to market.

16



Issuer Distribution



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY

For the Quarter Ended June 30, 2021

Portfolio Composition

Issuer Distribution

As of June 30, 2021

Market Value  ($) % of  PortfolioIssuer

UNITED STATES TREASURY  55,363,444  48.6%

FANNIE MAE  19,587,532  17.2%

FREDDIE MAC  8,991,003  7.9%

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANKS  5,110,759  4.5%

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON CORPORATION  2,871,626  2.5%

AMAZON.COM INC  1,524,613  1.3%

WAL-MART STORES INC  1,518,443  1.3%

NOVARTIS AG  1,470,315  1.3%

JOHNSON & JOHNSON  1,467,674  1.3%

PFIZER INC  1,340,165  1.2%

JP MORGAN CHASE & CO  1,123,907  1.0%

PACCAR FINANCIAL CORP  949,745  0.8%

SOCIETE GENERALE  943,434  0.8%

VISA INC  843,066  0.7%

BURLINGTON NORTHERN SANTA FE  830,689  0.7%

THE WALT DISNEY CORPORATION  827,420  0.7%

BANK OF AMERICA CO  817,751  0.7%

AMERICAN EXPRESS CO  811,396  0.7%

T
o

p
 5

 =
 8

0
.6

%

T
o

p
 1

0
 =

 8
7
.0

%

 PFM Asset Management LLC 17



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY

For the Quarter Ended June 30, 2021

Portfolio Composition

Market Value  ($) % of  PortfolioIssuer

AMERICAN HONDA FINANCE  799,999  0.7%

TOYOTA MOTOR CORP  764,040  0.7%

UNITEDHEALTH GROUP INC  763,258  0.7%

SUMITOMO MITSUI FINANCIAL GROUP INC  748,500  0.7%

CREDIT SUISSE GROUP RK  746,188  0.7%

DNB ASA  733,662  0.6%

FLORIDA STATE BOARD  OF ADMIN FIN CORP  727,178  0.6%

APPLE INC  569,734  0.5%

LOS ANGELES COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT  375,105  0.3%

BRISTOL-MYERS SQUIBB CO  346,301  0.3%

UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA  295,900  0.3%

STATE OF MARYLAND  250,383  0.2%

NEW JERSEY TURNPIKE AUTHORITY  204,319  0.2%

CALIFORNIA EARTHQUAKE AUTHORITY  198,769  0.2%

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF WATER RESOURCES  99,070  0.1%

 114,015,389  100.0%Grand Total:

 PFM Asset Management LLC 18



Portfolio Transactions



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY

For the Quarter Ended June 30, 2021

Portfolio Activity

 Quarterly Portfolio Transactions

Security DescriptionCUSIPPar ($) 
Settle

Date

Trade

Date

Tran.

Type

Maturity

Date
     Transact

      Amt ($)
Yield

  Realized

   G/L (BV)
Coupon

4/1/21 4/1/21  0.00 83369XDL9 SOCIETE GENERALE NY CERT DEPOSINTEREST 2/14/22 (93.50)1.80%

4/14/21 4/14/21  950,000.00 3130AJHU6 FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK NOTESINTEREST 4/14/25  2,375.00 0.50%

4/21/21 4/21/21  90,000.00 06051GFZ7 BANK OF AMERICA CORP NOTEINTEREST 10/21/22  1,126.35 2.50%

4/22/21 4/22/21  3,195,000.00 3135G03U5 FANNIE MAE NOTESINTEREST 4/22/25  9,984.38 0.62%

4/24/21 4/24/21  725,000.00 06051GJH3 BANK OF AMERICA CORP (CALLABLE) CORPORATINTEREST 10/24/24  2,985.19 0.81%

4/28/21 4/28/21  1,375,000.00 06406RAG2 BANK OF NY MELLON CORP NOTESINTEREST 4/28/23  24,062.50 3.50%

4/30/21 4/30/21  2,345,000.00 912828X70 US TREASURY NOTESINTEREST 4/30/24  23,450.00 2.00%

4/30/21 4/30/21  1,605,000.00 912828X47 US TREASURY NOTESINTEREST 4/30/22  15,046.88 1.87%

4/30/21 4/30/21  894,000.00 9128283C2 US TREASURY NOTESINTEREST 10/31/22  8,940.00 2.00%

4/30/21 4/30/21  1,100,000.00 9128283D0 US TREASURY NOTESINTEREST 10/31/24  12,375.00 2.25%

5/5/21 5/7/21  1,780,000.00 91282CBC4 US TREASURY NOTESBUY 12/31/25 (1,753,486.31)  0.73%0.37%

5/5/21 5/7/21  460,000.00 912828W89 US TREASURY NOTESSELL 3/31/22  468,400.84  10,946.56 1.87%

5/5/21 5/7/21  1,290,000.00 912828W89 US TREASURY NOTESSELL 3/31/22  1,313,558.85  31,505.60 1.87%

5/7/21 5/7/21  895,000.00 3135G06G3 FANNIE MAE NOTESINTEREST 11/7/25  2,175.35 0.50%

5/10/21 5/10/21  930,000.00 69371RP83 PACCAR FINANCIAL CORP CORP NOTESINTEREST 5/10/22  12,322.50 2.65%

5/10/21 5/12/21  560,000.00 023135BW5 AMAZON.COM INC CORPORATE NOTESBUY 5/12/24 (559,182.40)  0.50%0.45%

5/11/21 5/11/21  565,000.00 037833DV9 APPLE INC CORPORATE NOTESINTEREST 5/11/23  2,118.75 0.75%

5/11/21 5/12/21  550,000.00 912828W89 US TREASURY NOTESSELL 3/31/22  560,056.45  12,897.08 1.87%

5/15/21 5/15/21  3,450,000.00 912828WE6 US TREASURY NOTESINTEREST 11/15/23  47,437.50 2.75%

5/15/21 5/15/21  295,000.00 91412HGE7 UNIV OF CAL TXBL REV BONDSINTEREST 5/15/25  1,302.43 0.88%

 PFM Asset Management LLC 19



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY

For the Quarter Ended June 30, 2021

Portfolio Activity

Security DescriptionCUSIPPar ($) 
Settle

Date

Trade

Date

Tran.

Type

Maturity

Date
     Transact

      Amt ($)
Yield

  Realized

   G/L (BV)
Coupon

5/15/21 5/15/21  335,000.00 427866BA5 HERSHEY COMPANY CORP NOTESMATURITY 5/15/21  340,192.50  0.00 3.10%

5/17/21 5/17/21  340,000.00 912828ZT0 US TREASURY NOTESBUY 5/31/25 (335,624.34)  0.60%0.25%

5/17/21 5/17/21  435,000.00 91282CAZ4 US TREASURY NOTESBUY 11/30/25 (428,718.11)  0.74%0.37%

5/22/21 5/22/21  1,360,000.00 3135G04Q3 FANNIE MAE NOTESINTEREST 5/22/23  1,700.00 0.25%

5/24/21 5/28/21  505,000.00 9128283D0 US TREASURY NOTESSELL 10/31/24  537,150.87  19,940.59 2.25%

5/24/21 6/1/21  555,000.00 46647PCH7 JPMORGAN CHASE & CO CORPORATE NOTESBUY 6/1/25 (555,000.00)  0.82%0.82%

5/31/21 5/31/21  510,000.00 9128283J7 US TREASURY NOTESINTEREST 11/30/24  5,418.75 2.12%

5/31/21 5/31/21  340,000.00 912828ZT0 US TREASURY NOTESINTEREST 5/31/25  425.00 0.25%

5/31/21 5/31/21  2,525,000.00 912828U57 US TREASURY NOTESINTEREST 11/30/23  26,828.13 2.12%

5/31/21 5/31/21  435,000.00 91282CAZ4 US TREASURY NOTESINTEREST 11/30/25  815.63 0.37%

6/1/21 6/1/21  100,000.00 13067WRB0 CA ST DEPT WTR RES WTR SYS TXBL REV BNDSINTEREST 12/1/24  280.00 0.56%

6/2/21 6/2/21  715,000.00 23341VZT1 DNB BANK ASA/NY LT CDINTEREST 12/2/22  7,374.03 2.04%

6/2/21 6/4/21  790,000.00 91282CCF6 US TREASURY N/B NOTESBUY 5/31/26 (788,336.63)  0.79%0.75%

6/2/21 6/4/21  780,000.00 912828W89 US TREASURY NOTESSELL 3/31/22  794,297.34  17,000.44 1.87%

6/3/21 6/3/21  1,725,000.00 3130AJPU7 FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK NOTESINTEREST 6/3/22  2,156.25 0.25%

6/4/21 6/4/21  805,000.00 3137EAFA2 FREDDIE MAC NOTESINTEREST 12/4/23  1,006.25 0.25%

6/7/21 6/7/21  825,000.00 91282CCF6 US TREASURY N/B NOTESBUY 5/31/26 (823,249.20)  0.80%0.75%

6/7/21 6/7/21  815,000.00 78012UEE1 ROYAL BANK OF CANADA NY CDMATURITY 6/7/21  828,203.00  0.00 3.24%

6/8/21 6/8/21  870,000.00 3130A0F70 FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANKS NOTESINTEREST 12/8/23  14,681.25 3.37%

6/15/21 6/15/21  990,000.00 91282CBA8 US TREASURY NOTESINTEREST 12/15/23  618.75 0.12%

6/15/21 6/15/21  720,000.00 91324PDJ8 UNITEDHEALTH GROUP INC CORP NOTESINTEREST 6/15/23  12,600.00 3.50%

6/17/21 6/17/21  4,150,000.00 3135G04Z3 FANNIE MAE NOTESINTEREST 6/17/25  10,375.00 0.50%

 PFM Asset Management LLC  20



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY

For the Quarter Ended June 30, 2021

Portfolio Activity

Security DescriptionCUSIPPar ($) 
Settle

Date

Trade

Date

Tran.

Type

Maturity

Date
     Transact

      Amt ($)
Yield

  Realized

   G/L (BV)
Coupon

6/17/21 6/21/21  349,000.00 110122DN5 BRISTOL-MYERS SQUIBB CO CORPORATE 

NOTES

BUY 11/13/25 (345,800.25)  0.98%0.75%

6/17/21 6/21/21  307,000.00 110122DC9 BRISTOL-MYERS SQUIBB CO CORPORATE 

NOTES

SELL 8/15/25  346,299.84 (1,815.94)3.87%

6/18/21 6/21/21  1,880,000.00 91282CCD1 US TREASURY N/B NOTESBUY 5/31/23 (1,875,434.84)  0.25%0.12%

6/18/21 6/21/21  1,875,000.00 91282CAW1 US TREASURY NOTESBUY 11/15/23 (1,871,369.74)  0.34%0.25%

6/18/21 6/21/21  1,875,000.00 91282CAX9 US TREASURY NOTESBUY 11/30/22 (1,873,523.15)  0.18%0.12%

6/18/21 6/21/21  1,885,000.00 91282CCF6 US TREASURY N/B NOTESBUY 5/31/26 (1,871,894.57)  0.90%0.75%

6/18/21 6/21/21  1,910,000.00 91282CAZ4 US TREASURY NOTESBUY 11/30/25 (1,873,628.54)  0.82%0.37%

6/18/21 6/21/21  1,820,000.00 912828YV6 US TREASURY NOTESBUY 11/30/24 (1,878,441.39)  0.58%1.50%

6/18/21 6/21/21  1,900,000.00 912828ZT0 US TREASURY NOTESBUY 5/31/25 (1,866,503.01)  0.71%0.25%

6/18/21 6/21/21  1,885,000.00 91282CCC3 US TREASURY N/B NOTESBUY 5/15/24 (1,873,618.93)  0.47%0.25%

6/19/21 6/19/21  1,450,000.00 3137EAEN5 FREDDIE MAC NOTESINTEREST 6/19/23  19,937.50 2.75%

6/26/21 6/26/21  1,330,000.00 3137EAES4 FREDDIE MAC NOTESINTEREST 6/26/23  1,662.50 0.25%

6/30/21 6/30/21  120,000.00 9128285U0 US TREASURY NOTESINTEREST 12/31/23  1,575.00 2.62%

6/30/21 6/30/21  575,000.00 912828XX3 US TREASURY NOTESINTEREST 6/30/24  5,750.00 2.00%

6/30/21 6/30/21  2,595,000.00 91282CBC4 US TREASURY NOTESINTEREST 12/31/25  4,865.63 0.37%

6/30/21 6/30/21  1,300,000.00 912828XW5 US TREASURY NOTESINTEREST 6/30/22  11,375.00 1.75%

6/30/21 6/30/21  2,000,000.00 912828S35 US TREASURY NOTESINTEREST 6/30/23  13,750.00 1.37%

TOTALS (15,076,848.72)  90,474.33 

 PFM Asset Management LLC 21



Portfolio Holdings 



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY

For the Quarter Ended June 30, 2021

Portfolio Holdings

Managed Account Detail of Securities Held

Original 

Cost

Settle 

Date

Trade 

Date

Moody's

Rating

S&P 

Rating

Accrued

Interest

Amortized

Cost

Market

Value

  YTM 

at Cost

Security Type/Description

CUSIP ParDated Date/Coupon/Maturity

U.S. Treasury Bond / Note

AA+ Aaa 9/4/2018 9/6/2018  1,941,015.63  9,426.23  1,987,632.31  2,026,875.002.75US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 03/31/2017 1.875% 03/31/2022

912828W89  2,000,000.00

AA+ Aaa 4/16/2018 4/17/2018  1,558,480.08  5,070.14  1,595,437.22  1,628,824.302.64US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 05/01/2017 1.875% 04/30/2022

912828X47  1,605,000.00

AA+ Aaa 7/2/2018 7/5/2018  1,252,570.31  61.82  1,288,142.58  1,321,328.062.72US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 06/30/2017 1.750% 06/30/2022

912828XW5  1,300,000.00

AA+ Aaa 6/4/2018 6/6/2018  1,980,706.05  9,083.74  2,040,625.85  2,106,622.552.76US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 09/30/2015 1.750% 09/30/2022

912828L57  2,065,000.00

AA+ Aaa 5/2/2018 5/4/2018  864,176.72  3,012.39  885,149.34  916,070.632.80US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 10/31/2017 2.000% 10/31/2022

9128283C2  894,000.00

AA+ Aaa 6/18/2021 6/21/2021  1,873,388.67  198.51  1,873,419.25  1,874,121.000.18US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 11/30/2020 0.125% 11/30/2022

91282CAX9  1,875,000.00

AA+ Aaa 10/2/2018 10/4/2018  990,356.25  7,591.71  1,021,807.77  1,065,675.002.93US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 02/01/2016 1.750% 01/31/2023

912828P38  1,040,000.00

AA+ Aaa 7/2/2018 7/5/2018  293,289.06  1,554.21  304,029.70  316,684.382.74US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 02/29/2016 1.500% 02/28/2023

912828P79  310,000.00

AA+ Aaa 2/8/2019 2/12/2019  1,189,507.62  4,656.56  1,215,753.22  1,262,787.502.44US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 03/31/2016 1.500% 03/31/2023

912828Q29  1,235,000.00

AA+ Aaa 6/18/2021 6/21/2021  1,875,300.00  199.04  1,875,366.29  1,876,181.340.25US TREASURY N/B NOTES

DTD 05/31/2021 0.125% 05/31/2023

91282CCD1  1,880,000.00

AA+ Aaa 1/23/2019 1/24/2019  1,899,453.13  74.73  1,954,697.98  2,045,000.002.58US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 06/30/2016 1.375% 06/30/2023

912828S35  2,000,000.00

AA+ Aaa 2/8/2019 2/12/2019  1,196,950.78  6,569.75  1,230,602.82  1,285,790.692.44US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 08/01/2016 1.250% 07/31/2023

912828S92  1,260,000.00

AA+ Aaa 5/1/2019 5/3/2019  667,087.89  4,697.40  658,708.35  687,476.532.25US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 10/01/2018 2.875% 09/30/2023

9128285D8  650,000.00

AA+ Aaa 6/18/2021 6/21/2021  1,870,898.44  598.68  1,870,945.21  1,872,070.310.34US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 11/15/2020 0.250% 11/15/2023

91282CAW1  1,875,000.00

AA+ Aaa 3/6/2019 3/8/2019  3,484,904.30  12,117.19  3,467,666.10  3,647,296.882.52US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 11/15/2013 2.750% 11/15/2023

912828WE6  3,450,000.00

 PFM Asset Management LLC 22



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY

For the Quarter Ended June 30, 2021

Portfolio Holdings

Managed Account Detail of Securities Held

Original 

Cost

Settle 

Date

Trade 

Date

Moody's

Rating

S&P 

Rating

Accrued

Interest

Amortized

Cost

Market

Value

  YTM 

at Cost

Security Type/Description

CUSIP ParDated Date/Coupon/Maturity

U.S. Treasury Bond / Note

AA+ Aaa 1/7/2019 1/9/2019  2,479,826.17  4,544.66  2,502,691.31  2,633,890.632.52US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 11/30/2016 2.125% 11/30/2023

912828U57  2,525,000.00

AA+ Aaa 2/2/2021 2/4/2021  988,607.81  54.10  988,803.84  984,740.630.17US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 12/15/2020 0.125% 12/15/2023

91282CBA8  990,000.00

AA+ Aaa 1/30/2019 1/31/2019  120,356.25  8.56  120,181.20  126,787.502.56US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 12/31/2018 2.625% 12/31/2023

9128285U0  120,000.00

AA+ Aaa 6/3/2019 6/4/2019  2,355,534.18  7,901.63  2,351,078.32  2,449,059.381.90US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 05/01/2017 2.000% 04/30/2024

912828X70  2,345,000.00

AA+ Aaa 6/18/2021 6/21/2021  1,873,145.12  601.87  1,873,257.06  1,874,985.940.47US TREASURY N/B NOTES

DTD 05/15/2021 0.250% 05/15/2024

91282CCC3  1,885,000.00

AA+ Aaa 7/1/2019 7/3/2019  580,929.69  31.25  578,559.76  601,324.191.78US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 06/30/2017 2.000% 06/30/2024

912828XX3  575,000.00

AA+ Aaa 8/1/2019 8/9/2019  1,016,171.88  8,863.95  1,010,016.25  1,050,468.801.78US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 07/31/2017 2.125% 07/31/2024

9128282N9  1,000,000.00

AA+ Aaa 10/1/2019 10/3/2019  1,349,146.48  6,997.40  1,335,475.26  1,377,956.251.50US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 10/02/2017 2.125% 09/30/2024

9128282Y5  1,310,000.00

AA+ Aaa 11/1/2019 11/5/2019  614,453.71  2,255.50  608,004.73  628,654.691.57US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 10/31/2017 2.250% 10/31/2024

9128283D0  595,000.00

AA+ Aaa 1/3/2020 1/7/2020  521,813.67  917.93  518,241.17  537,173.411.63US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 11/30/2017 2.125% 11/30/2024

9128283J7  510,000.00

AA+ Aaa 6/18/2021 6/21/2021  1,876,875.00  2,312.30  1,876,422.89  1,878,012.500.58US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 11/30/2019 1.500% 11/30/2024

912828YV6  1,820,000.00

AA+ Aaa 6/18/2021 6/21/2021  1,866,230.47  402.33  1,866,464.98  1,867,937.500.71US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 05/31/2020 0.250% 05/31/2025

912828ZT0  1,900,000.00

AA+ Aaa 5/17/2021 5/17/2021  335,232.03  71.99  335,377.49  334,262.500.60US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 05/31/2020 0.250% 05/31/2025

912828ZT0  340,000.00

AA+ Aaa 6/18/2021 6/21/2021  1,873,217.58  606.66  1,873,444.21  1,875,381.250.82US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 11/30/2020 0.375% 11/30/2025

91282CAZ4  1,910,000.00

AA+ Aaa 5/17/2021 5/17/2021  427,965.23  138.17  428,156.16  427,115.630.74US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 11/30/2020 0.375% 11/30/2025

91282CAZ4  435,000.00

 PFM Asset Management LLC 23



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY

For the Quarter Ended June 30, 2021

Portfolio Holdings

Managed Account Detail of Securities Held

Original 

Cost

Settle 

Date

Trade 

Date

Moody's

Rating

S&P 

Rating

Accrued

Interest

Amortized

Cost

Market

Value

  YTM 

at Cost

Security Type/Description

CUSIP ParDated Date/Coupon/Maturity

U.S. Treasury Bond / Note

AA+ Aaa 5/5/2021 5/7/2021  1,751,144.53  18.14  1,752,078.64  1,746,068.750.73US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 12/31/2020 0.375% 12/31/2025

91282CBC4  1,780,000.00

AA+ Aaa 1/11/2021 1/12/2021  810,033.59  8.30  810,499.02  799,464.060.50US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 12/31/2020 0.375% 12/31/2025

91282CBC4  815,000.00

AA+ Aaa 2/26/2021 2/26/2021  514,130.86  821.22  514,885.66  514,500.000.80US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 01/31/2021 0.375% 01/31/2026

91282CBH3  525,000.00

AA+ Aaa 2/2/2021 2/4/2021  3,257,428.13  32,191.78  3,231,817.85  3,180,712.500.43US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 01/31/2019 2.625% 01/31/2026

9128286A3  2,940,000.00

AA+ Aaa 3/4/2021 3/5/2021  3,068,087.89  5,197.42  3,070,803.78  3,062,378.130.78US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 02/28/2021 0.500% 02/28/2026

91282CBQ3  3,110,000.00

AA+ Aaa 6/18/2021 6/21/2021  1,871,083.40  1,197.44  1,871,160.50  1,874,102.440.90US TREASURY N/B NOTES

DTD 05/31/2021 0.750% 05/31/2026

91282CCF6  1,885,000.00

AA+ Aaa 6/2/2021 6/4/2021  788,271.88  501.84  788,297.49  785,432.850.79US TREASURY N/B NOTES

DTD 05/31/2021 0.750% 05/31/2026

91282CCF6  790,000.00

AA+ Aaa 6/7/2021 6/7/2021  823,130.86  524.08  823,155.52  820,230.510.80US TREASURY N/B NOTES

DTD 05/31/2021 0.750% 05/31/2026

91282CCF6  825,000.00

 1.49  55,363,444.21 54,398,857.08 141,080.62 54,369,000.00  54,100,901.34Security Type Sub-Total

Municipal Bond / Note

NR NR 11/13/2020 11/24/2020  195,000.00  1,440.08  195,000.00  198,769.351.48CA ST EARTHQUAKE AUTH TXBL REV 

BONDS

DTD 11/24/2020 1.477% 07/01/2023

13017HAK2  195,000.00

AAA Aaa 7/23/2020 8/5/2020  249,930.00  531.25  249,945.85  250,382.500.52MD ST TXBL GO BONDS

DTD 08/05/2020 0.510% 08/01/2024

574193TQ1  250,000.00

AAA Aa1 7/30/2020 8/6/2020  100,000.00  46.67  100,000.00  99,070.000.56CA ST DEPT WTR RES WTR SYS TXBL 

REV BNDS

DTD 08/06/2020 0.560% 12/01/2024

13067WRB0  100,000.00

AA Aa2 7/10/2020 7/16/2020  205,000.00  231.30  205,000.00  205,625.250.88UNIV OF CAL TXBL REV BONDS

DTD 07/16/2020 0.883% 05/15/2025

91412HGE7  205,000.00

 PFM Asset Management LLC 24



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY

For the Quarter Ended June 30, 2021

Portfolio Holdings

Managed Account Detail of Securities Held

Original 

Cost

Settle 

Date

Trade 

Date

Moody's

Rating

S&P 

Rating

Accrued

Interest

Amortized

Cost

Market

Value

  YTM 

at Cost

Security Type/Description

CUSIP ParDated Date/Coupon/Maturity

Municipal Bond / Note

AA Aa2 7/14/2020 7/16/2020  90,325.80  101.54  90,260.04  90,274.500.81UNIV OF CAL TXBL REV BONDS

DTD 07/16/2020 0.883% 05/15/2025

91412HGE7  90,000.00

AA Aa3 9/3/2020 9/16/2020  201,414.00  1,258.00  201,181.16  201,994.001.11FL ST BOARD OF ADMIN TXBL REV 

BONDS

DTD 09/16/2020 1.258% 07/01/2025

341271AD6  200,000.00

AA Aa3 9/3/2020 9/16/2020  520,000.00  3,270.80  520,000.00  525,184.401.26FL ST BOARD OF ADMIN TXBL REV 

BONDS

DTD 09/16/2020 1.258% 07/01/2025

341271AD6  520,000.00

AA+ Aaa 10/30/2020 11/10/2020  375,000.00  1,207.81  375,000.00  375,105.000.77LOS ANGELES CCD, CA TXBL GO 

BONDS

DTD 11/10/2020 0.773% 08/01/2025

54438CYK2  375,000.00

A+ A2 1/22/2021 2/4/2021  205,000.00  876.43  205,000.00  204,319.401.05NJ TURNPIKE AUTHORITY TXBL REV 

BONDS

DTD 02/04/2021 1.047% 01/01/2026

646140DP5  205,000.00

 0.99  2,150,724.40 2,141,387.05 8,963.88 2,140,000.00  2,141,669.80Security Type Sub-Total

Federal Agency Bond / Note

AA+ Aaa 6/18/2020 6/19/2020  1,724,551.50  335.42  1,724,788.31  1,727,125.200.26FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK NOTES

DTD 06/12/2020 0.250% 06/03/2022

3130AJPU7  1,725,000.00

AA+ Aaa 9/5/2019 9/6/2019  886,902.80  3,909.20  888,779.21  902,953.951.49FANNIE MAE NOTES

DTD 09/06/2019 1.375% 09/06/2022

3135G0W33  890,000.00

AA+ Aaa 2/20/2020 2/21/2020  1,277,644.80  6,551.11  1,278,714.56  1,304,417.281.44FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANKS NOTES

DTD 02/21/2020 1.375% 02/17/2023

3130AJ7E3  1,280,000.00

AA+ Aaa 5/20/2020 5/22/2020  1,355,906.40  368.33  1,357,420.47  1,360,499.120.35FANNIE MAE NOTES

DTD 05/22/2020 0.250% 05/22/2023

3135G04Q3  1,360,000.00

AA+ Aaa 7/2/2018 7/5/2018  1,444,461.00  1,329.17  1,447,802.76  1,521,348.702.83FREDDIE MAC NOTES

DTD 06/11/2018 2.750% 06/19/2023

3137EAEN5  1,450,000.00

AA+ Aaa 6/24/2020 6/26/2020  1,326,116.40  46.18  1,327,428.67  1,330,248.710.35FREDDIE MAC NOTES

DTD 06/26/2020 0.250% 06/26/2023

3137EAES4  1,330,000.00

 PFM Asset Management LLC 25



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY

For the Quarter Ended June 30, 2021

Portfolio Holdings

Managed Account Detail of Securities Held

Original 

Cost

Settle 

Date

Trade 

Date

Moody's

Rating

S&P 

Rating

Accrued

Interest

Amortized

Cost

Market

Value

  YTM 

at Cost

Security Type/Description

CUSIP ParDated Date/Coupon/Maturity

Federal Agency Bond / Note

AA+ Aaa 7/8/2020 7/10/2020  1,870,968.75  2,226.56  1,872,279.37  1,874,705.630.32FANNIE MAE NOTES

DTD 07/10/2020 0.250% 07/10/2023

3135G05G4  1,875,000.00

AA+ Aaa 8/20/2020 8/21/2020  645,000.00  857.85  645,000.00  645,386.360.36FANNIE MAE NOTES (CALLABLE)

DTD 08/18/2020 0.360% 08/18/2023

3135G05V1  645,000.00

AA+ Aaa 8/19/2020 8/21/2020  884,097.30  780.52  884,355.45  884,663.700.28FREDDIE MAC NOTES

DTD 08/21/2020 0.250% 08/24/2023

3137EAEV7  885,000.00

AA+ Aaa 11/1/2018 11/5/2018  1,803,274.20  15,842.84  1,812,420.53  1,923,470.643.08FANNIE MAE NOTES

DTD 09/14/2018 2.875% 09/12/2023

3135G0U43  1,820,000.00

AA+ Aaa 12/3/2018 12/6/2018  853,272.90  7,442.66  854,203.41  903,608.462.92FANNIE MAE NOTES

DTD 09/14/2018 2.875% 09/12/2023

3135G0U43  855,000.00

AA+ Aaa 9/25/2020 9/29/2020  969,854.50  751.75  969,891.07  969,174.530.31FREDDIE MAC NOTES (CALLABLE)

DTD 09/28/2020 0.300% 09/28/2023

3134GWTL0  970,000.00

AA+ Aaa 12/2/2020 12/4/2020  804,203.05  150.94  804,355.16  803,489.020.28FREDDIE MAC NOTES

DTD 12/04/2020 0.250% 12/04/2023

3137EAFA2  805,000.00

AA+ Aaa 1/30/2019 1/31/2019  895,642.28  1,875.94  882,879.02  934,272.992.72FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANKS NOTES

DTD 12/09/2013 3.375% 12/08/2023

3130A0F70  870,000.00

AA+ Aaa 2/7/2019 2/8/2019  677,470.40  6,894.44  678,683.16  717,403.402.58FANNIE MAE NOTES

DTD 02/08/2019 2.500% 02/05/2024

3135G0V34  680,000.00

AA+ Aaa 2/14/2019 2/15/2019  189,327.40  1,820.83  189,647.11  200,539.872.58FHLB BONDS

DTD 02/15/2019 2.500% 02/13/2024

3130AFW94  190,000.00

AA+ Aaa 3/4/2020 3/5/2020  2,130,233.55  16,140.31  2,109,692.11  2,128,351.170.85FANNIE MAE NOTES

DTD 01/10/2020 1.625% 01/07/2025

3135G0X24  2,055,000.00

AA+ Aaa 2/13/2020 2/14/2020  1,214,064.45  7,036.88  1,214,322.30  1,253,689.251.52FREDDIE MAC NOTES

DTD 02/14/2020 1.500% 02/12/2025

3137EAEP0  1,215,000.00

AA+ Aaa 4/15/2020 4/16/2020  945,288.00  1,015.97  946,427.25  944,403.550.60FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK NOTES

DTD 04/16/2020 0.500% 04/14/2025

3130AJHU6  950,000.00

AA+ Aaa 6/3/2020 6/5/2020  1,432,296.00  1,707.03  1,430,695.14  1,423,245.820.52FANNIE MAE NOTES

DTD 04/24/2020 0.625% 04/22/2025

3135G03U5  1,425,000.00

AA+ Aaa 4/22/2020 4/24/2020  1,272,373.50  1,527.34  1,272,997.01  1,273,430.480.67FANNIE MAE NOTES

DTD 04/24/2020 0.625% 04/22/2025

3135G03U5  1,275,000.00

 PFM Asset Management LLC 26



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY

For the Quarter Ended June 30, 2021

Portfolio Holdings

Managed Account Detail of Securities Held

Original 

Cost

Settle 

Date

Trade 

Date

Moody's

Rating

S&P 

Rating

Accrued

Interest

Amortized

Cost

Market

Value

  YTM 

at Cost

Security Type/Description

CUSIP ParDated Date/Coupon/Maturity

Federal Agency Bond / Note

AA+ Aaa 5/21/2020 5/26/2020  496,628.55  592.97  496,264.13  494,390.660.56FANNIE MAE NOTES

DTD 04/24/2020 0.625% 04/22/2025

3135G03U5  495,000.00

AA+ Aaa 8/3/2020 8/4/2020  1,441,931.05  279.03  1,440,640.74  1,423,931.850.40FANNIE MAE NOTES

DTD 06/19/2020 0.500% 06/17/2025

3135G04Z3  1,435,000.00

AA+ Aaa 10/26/2020 10/28/2020  996,472.60  193.47  996,258.63  987,325.560.47FANNIE MAE NOTES

DTD 06/19/2020 0.500% 06/17/2025

3135G04Z3  995,000.00

AA+ Aaa 6/17/2020 6/19/2020  1,476,936.40  287.78  1,477,569.61  1,468,584.760.54FANNIE MAE NOTES

DTD 06/19/2020 0.500% 06/17/2025

3135G04Z3  1,480,000.00

AA+ Aaa 10/1/2020 10/5/2020  241,125.60  46.67  240,949.15  238,148.880.40FANNIE MAE NOTES

DTD 06/19/2020 0.500% 06/17/2025

3135G04Z3  240,000.00

AA+ Aaa 7/21/2020 7/23/2020  890,542.90  1,491.67  891,381.05  883,225.380.48FREDDIE MAC NOTES

DTD 07/23/2020 0.375% 07/21/2025

3137EAEU9  895,000.00

AA+ Aaa 8/25/2020 8/27/2020  945,554.00  1,246.88  946,304.75  936,830.150.47FANNIE MAE NOTES

DTD 08/27/2020 0.375% 08/25/2025

3135G05X7  950,000.00

AA+ Aaa 9/23/2020 9/25/2020  1,360,891.35  1,393.44  1,361,519.81  1,345,163.820.44FREDDIE MAC NOTES

DTD 09/25/2020 0.375% 09/23/2025

3137EAEX3  1,365,000.00

AA+ Aaa 11/9/2020 11/12/2020  891,795.90  671.25  892,202.35  885,265.090.57FANNIE MAE NOTES

DTD 11/12/2020 0.500% 11/07/2025

3135G06G3  895,000.00

 1.01  33,689,293.98 33,335,872.29 84,814.43 33,300,000.00  33,344,827.53Security Type Sub-Total

Corporate Note

A- A3 4/16/2018 4/18/2018  767,016.00  6,196.67  799,692.78  799,999.203.00AMERICAN HONDA FINANCE

DTD 07/12/2016 1.650% 07/12/2021

02665WBF7  800,000.00

A A1 4/16/2018 4/18/2018  1,371,048.00  14,560.00  1,395,400.15  1,417,515.403.18BANK OF NY MELLON CORP 

(CALLABLE) NOTES

DTD 02/07/2017 2.600% 02/07/2022

06406RAA5  1,400,000.00

A- A2 4/16/2018 4/18/2018  785,488.00  7,080.00  797,487.32  811,396.003.20AMERICAN EXPRESS CREDIT 

(CALLABLE) NOTES

DTD 03/03/2017 2.700% 03/03/2022

0258M0EG0  800,000.00

 PFM Asset Management LLC 27



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY

For the Quarter Ended June 30, 2021

Portfolio Holdings

Managed Account Detail of Securities Held

Original 

Cost

Settle 

Date

Trade 

Date

Moody's

Rating

S&P 

Rating

Accrued

Interest

Amortized

Cost

Market

Value

  YTM 

at Cost

Security Type/Description

CUSIP ParDated Date/Coupon/Maturity

Corporate Note

BBB+ A2 4/16/2018 4/18/2018  798,691.85  6,489.44  812,166.80  827,419.793.00WALT DISNEY COMPANY CORP 

NOTES

DTD 03/06/2017 2.450% 03/04/2022

25468PDQ6  815,000.00

A+ A1 5/3/2019 5/10/2019  929,497.80  3,491.38  929,856.58  949,744.832.67PACCAR FINANCIAL CORP CORP 

NOTES

DTD 05/10/2019 2.650% 05/10/2022

69371RP83  930,000.00

AA- Aa3 4/16/2018 4/18/2018  795,407.25  5,222.71  816,899.19  843,065.853.03VISA INC (CALLABLE) NOTE

DTD 09/11/2017 2.150% 09/15/2022

92826CAG7  825,000.00

A- A2 4/16/2018 4/18/2018  86,542.20  438.03  88,998.56  90,565.833.43BANK OF AMERICA CORP NOTE

DTD 10/21/2016 2.503% 10/21/2022

06051GFZ7  90,000.00

AA A1 4/11/2019 4/15/2019  925,995.95  8,041.00  931,159.38  965,832.562.66AMAZON.COM INC BONDS

DTD 06/06/2018 2.400% 02/22/2023

023135AW6  935,000.00

AA- A3 4/16/2018 4/18/2018  790,800.00  7,066.67  796,806.70  830,688.803.26BURLINGTN NORTH SANTA FE CORP 

NOTES

DTD 03/12/2013 3.000% 03/15/2023

12189LAM3  800,000.00

A A1 1/22/2019 1/24/2019  1,387,595.00  8,421.88  1,380,394.39  1,454,110.633.27BANK OF NY MELLON CORP NOTES

DTD 04/30/2018 3.500% 04/28/2023

06406RAG2  1,375,000.00

AA+ Aa1 5/4/2020 5/11/2020  563,463.20  588.54  564,047.04  569,733.570.84APPLE INC CORPORATE NOTES

DTD 05/11/2020 0.750% 05/11/2023

037833DV9  565,000.00

A+ A3 10/22/2019 10/24/2019  755,740.80  1,120.00  739,187.17  763,257.602.08UNITEDHEALTH GROUP INC CORP 

NOTES

DTD 06/19/2018 3.500% 06/15/2023

91324PDJ8  720,000.00

A+ A2 4/2/2019 4/4/2019  1,276,392.60  10,944.50  1,268,841.68  1,340,164.982.67PFIZER INC CORP NOTES

DTD 03/11/2019 2.950% 03/15/2024

717081ES8  1,260,000.00

AA A1 5/10/2021 5/12/2021  559,182.40  343.00  559,219.70  558,780.880.50AMAZON.COM INC CORPORATE 

NOTES

DTD 05/12/2021 0.450% 05/12/2024

023135BW5  560,000.00

AA Aa2 9/3/2019 9/5/2019  1,495,195.50  19,516.56  1,459,778.20  1,518,442.951.78WALMART INC CORPORATE NOTES

DTD 04/23/2019 2.850% 07/08/2024

931142EL3  1,425,000.00

A- A2 9/9/2020 9/16/2020  570,000.00  1,085.61  570,000.00  569,795.940.65JPMORGAN CHASE & CO 

CORPORATE NOTES

DTD 09/16/2020 0.653% 09/16/2024

46647PBS4  570,000.00

 PFM Asset Management LLC 28



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY

For the Quarter Ended June 30, 2021

Portfolio Holdings

Managed Account Detail of Securities Held

Original 

Cost

Settle 

Date

Trade 

Date

Moody's

Rating

S&P 

Rating

Accrued

Interest

Amortized

Cost

Market

Value

  YTM 

at Cost

Security Type/Description

CUSIP ParDated Date/Coupon/Maturity

Corporate Note

A- A2 10/16/2020 10/21/2020  725,000.00  1,092.94  725,000.00  727,185.150.81BANK OF AMERICA CORP (CALLABLE) 

CORPORAT

DTD 10/21/2020 0.810% 10/24/2024

06051GJH3  725,000.00

AAA Aaa 3/23/2021 3/25/2021  1,473,840.00  16,703.75  1,467,233.45  1,467,674.160.81JOHNSON & JOHNSON CORP NOTES

DTD 11/10/2017 2.625% 01/15/2025

478160CJ1  1,380,000.00

A+ A1 5/20/2020 5/26/2020  318,077.55  2,173.50  317,361.72  325,233.401.58TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORP CORP 

NOTES

DTD 02/13/2020 1.800% 02/13/2025

89236TGT6  315,000.00

A+ A1 5/20/2020 5/26/2020  429,152.25  2,932.50  428,186.44  438,806.981.58TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORP CORP 

NOTES

DTD 02/13/2020 1.800% 02/13/2025

89236TGT6  425,000.00

AA- A1 5/6/2020 5/8/2020  1,475,744.25  9,490.10  1,463,324.95  1,470,315.000.98NOVARTIS CAPITAL CORP

DTD 02/14/2020 1.750% 02/14/2025

66989HAP3  1,425,000.00

A- A2 5/24/2021 6/1/2021  555,000.00  381.10  555,000.00  554,111.450.82JPMORGAN CHASE & CO 

CORPORATE NOTES

DTD 06/01/2021 0.824% 06/01/2025

46647PCH7  555,000.00

A+ A2 6/17/2021 6/21/2021  345,523.96  349.00  345,545.60  346,300.830.98BRISTOL-MYERS SQUIBB CO 

CORPORATE NOTES

DTD 11/13/2020 0.750% 11/13/2025

110122DN5  349,000.00

 2.12  19,640,141.78 19,211,587.80 133,728.88 19,044,000.00  19,180,394.56Security Type Sub-Total

Certificate of Deposit

A-1 P-1 2/14/2020 2/19/2020  935,000.00  6,404.75  935,000.00  943,433.701.80SOCIETE GENERALE NY CERT 

DEPOS

DTD 02/19/2020 1.800% 02/14/2022

83369XDL9  935,000.00

A-1 P-1 7/10/2020 7/14/2020  745,000.00  2,520.58  745,000.00  748,500.010.70SUMITOMO MITSUI BANK NY CERT 

DEPOS

DTD 07/14/2020 0.700% 07/08/2022

86565CKU2  745,000.00

AA- Aa2 12/5/2019 12/6/2019  715,000.00  1,174.98  715,000.00  733,662.222.03DNB BANK ASA/NY LT CD

DTD 12/06/2019 2.040% 12/02/2022

23341VZT1  715,000.00

 PFM Asset Management LLC  29



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY

For the Quarter Ended June 30, 2021

Portfolio Holdings

Managed Account Detail of Securities Held

Original 

Cost

Settle 

Date

Trade 

Date

Moody's

Rating

S&P 

Rating

Accrued

Interest

Amortized

Cost

Market

Value

  YTM 

at Cost

Security Type/Description

CUSIP ParDated Date/Coupon/Maturity

Certificate of Deposit

A+ Aa3 3/19/2021 3/23/2021  745,000.00  1,220.97  745,000.00  746,188.280.59CREDIT SUISSE NEW YORK CERT 

DEPOS

DTD 03/23/2021 0.590% 03/17/2023

22552G3C2  745,000.00

 1.31  3,171,784.21 3,140,000.00 11,321.28 3,140,000.00  3,140,000.00Security Type Sub-Total

 111,907,793.23 111,993,000.00  379,909.09  112,227,704.22  114,015,388.58 1.44 Managed Account  Sub Total

$379,909.09 $112,227,704.22 $114,015,388.58 Securities Sub-Total

Accrued Interest $379,909.09 

Total Investments $114,395,297.67 

 1.44%$111,993,000.00 $111,907,793.23

Bolded items are forward settling trades.

 PFM Asset Management LLC 30



Appendix   



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY

For the Quarter Ended June 30, 2021

Appendix

IMPORTANT DISCLOSURES

This material is based on information obtained from sources generally believed to be reliable and available to the public; however, PFM Asset Management LLC cannot 

guarantee its accuracy, completeness or suitability. This material is for general information purposes only and is not intended to provide specific advice or a specific 

recommendation. All statements as to what will or may happen under certain circumstances are based on assumptions, some, but not all of which, are noted in the 

presentation. Assumptions may or may not be proven correct as actual events occur, and results may depend on events outside of your or our control. Changes in 

assumptions may have a material effect on results. Past performance does not necessarily reflect and is not a guaranty of future results. The information contained in 

this presentation is not an offer to purchase or sell any securities.

Dime

Ã Market values that include accrued interest are derived from closing bid prices as of the last business day of the month as supplied by Refinitiv, Bloomberg,  

     or Telerate. Where prices are not available from generally recognized sources, the securities are priced using a yield based matrix system to arrive at an estimated 

     market value.  

Ã In accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, information is presented on a trade date basis; forward settling purchases are included in the monthly  

     balances, and forward settling sales are excluded.

Ã Performance is presented in accordance with the CFA Institute ’s Global Investment Performance Standards (GIPS). Unless otherwise noted, performance is shown 

     gross of fees. Quarterly returns are presented on an unannualized basis. Returns for periods greater than one year are presented on an annualized basis. Past 

     performance is not indicative of future returns.

Ã Bank of America/Merrill Lynch Indices provided by Bloomberg Financial Markets.

Ã Money market fund/cash balances are included in performance and duration computations.

Ã Standard & Poorʼs is the source of the credit ratings. Distribution of credit rating is exclusive of money market fund/LGIP holdings.

Ã Callable securities in the portfolio are included in the maturity distribution analysis to their stated maturity date, although, they may be called prior to maturity.

Ã MBS maturities are represented by expected average life.

 PFM Asset Management LLC 31



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY

For the Quarter Ended June 30, 2021

Appendix

  GLOSSARY

Ã ACCRUED INTEREST: Interest that is due on a bond or other fixed income security since the last interest payment was made.

Ã AGENCIES: Federal agency securities and/or Government-sponsored enterprises.

Ã AMORTIZED COST: The original cost of the principal of the security is adjusted for the amount of the periodic reduction of any discount or premium from the purchase 

     date until the date of the report. Discount or premium with respect to short-term securities (those with less than one year to maturity at time of issuance) is amortized 

     on a straight line basis. Such discount or premium with respect to longer-term securities is amortized using the constant yield basis.

Ã BANKERS’ ACCEPTANCE: A draft or bill or exchange accepted by a bank or trust company. The accepting institution guarantees payment of the bill as well as the 

     insurer.

Ã COMMERCIAL PAPER: An unsecured obligation issued by a corporation or bank to finance its short-term credit needs, such as accounts receivable and inventory.

Ã CONTRIBUTION TO DURATION: Represents each sector or maturity range ’s relative contribution to the overall duration of the portfolio measured as a percentage

     weighting. Since duration is a key measure of interest rate sensitivity, the contribution to duration measures the relative amount or contribution of that sector or 

     maturity range to the total rate sensitivity of the portfolio.  

Ã EFFECTIVE DURATION: A measure of the sensitivity of a security’s price to a change in interest rates, stated in years.

Ã EFFECTIVE YIELD: The total yield an investor receives in relation to the nominal yield or coupon of a bond. Effective yield takes into account the power of compounding 

     on investment returns, while nominal yield does not.

Ã FDIC: Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. A federal agency that insures bank deposits to a specified amount.

Ã INTEREST RATE: Interest per year divided by principal amount and expressed as a percentage.

Ã MARKET VALUE: The value that would be received or paid for an investment in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

Ã MATURITY: The date upon which the principal or stated value of an investment becomes due and payable.

Ã NEGOTIABLE CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT: A CD with a very large denomination, usually $1 million or more, that can be traded in secondary markets.

Ã PAR VALUE: The nominal dollar face amount of a security.

Ã PASS THROUGH SECURITY: A security representing pooled debt obligations that passes income from debtors to its shareholders. The most common type is the 

     mortgage-backed security.

 PFM Asset Management LLC  32



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY

For the Quarter Ended June 30, 2021

Appendix

  GLOSSARY

Ã REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS: A holder of securities sells these securities to an investor with an agreement to repurchase them at a fixed price on a fixed date.

Ã SETTLE DATE: The date on which the transaction is settled and monies/securities are exchanged. If the settle date of the transaction (i.e., coupon payments and 

     maturity proceeds) occurs on a non-business day, the funds are exchanged on the next business day.

Ã TRADE DATE: The date on which the transaction occurred; however, the final consummation of the security transaction and payment has not yet taken place.

Ã UNSETTLED TRADE: A trade which has been executed; however, the final consummation of the security transaction and payment has not yet taken place.

Ã U.S. TREASURY: The department of the U.S. government that issues Treasury securities.

Ã YIELD: The rate of return based on the current market value, the annual interest receipts, maturity value, and the time period remaining until maturity, stated as a 

     percentage on an annualized basis.

Ã YTM AT COST: The yield to maturity at cost is the expected rate of return based on the original cost, the annual interest receipts, maturity value, and the time period from 

     purchase date to maturity, stated as a percentage on an annualized basis.

Ã YTM AT MARKET: The yield to maturity at market is the rate of return based on the current market value, the annual interest receipts, maturity value, and the time 

     period remaining until maturity, stated as a percentage on an annualized basis.

 PFM Asset Management LLC 33



INFORMATION 
ITEM 

3N 



Budget Impact 

June 16, 2021

Contracts and Procurement Follow-Up Review of recommendations related to the
Master Trade Contracts Audit Report

The Board approved Internal Audit Charter states that IA should perform follow up reviews on
prior recommendations provided by IA to ensure corrective actions are taken. IA worked with
the Contracts and Procurement Department to evaluate the implementation status of the
outstanding recommendations from the original Master Trade Contracts Audit of 2016. The
original audit evaluated compliance with procurement policies and procedures and how work is
approved, issued and verified. This follow up review noted that all five outstanding
recommendations are now considered implemented or closed. Specifically, staff implemented
procedures to ensure selection process contract evaluation documentation is centrally retained
and available for review. Staff also implemented an automated report that serves as a control to
notify staff when total contract spending limits and expiration dates are approaching.
Additionally, the department supports ongoing training related to ethics topics for staff and also
is available to provide and enhance communications related to ethics topics as they relate to
procurement activities for all Agency employees, vendors and contractors. Lastly, the
department has implemented practices to ensure their staff is cross-trained to ensure
continuation of services. IA commends the CAP department for their efforts in implementing the
recommendations and appreciates staff for their cooperation and assistance during this review.

This is an information item.

N/A

N/A

06/07/21Audit

Teresa Velarde, Manager of Internal Audit

Y N

Manager Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

The Contracts and Procurement Follow-Up Review of recommendations related to the Master
Trade Contracts Audit is consistent with the Agency's Business Goals of Fiscal Responsibility,
Workplace Environment, and Business Practices by ensuring that IA's evaluations provide
recommendations for efficiencies, improving and safeguarding the Agency's fiscal health,
promoting a strong control environment and assisting the Board and Agency management in
achieving compliance with policies and fulfill organizational goals and objectives.

On September 21, 2016, the Board of Directors received and filed the original Master Trade
Contracts Audit & Response audit report which provided six recommendations to tighten
controls and improve processes.

Attachment 1 - Audit Report: Contracts and Procurement Follow-Up Review of
recommendations related to the Master Trade Contracts Audit Report
Attachment 2 - PowerPoint

Not Applicable

21133



 
 

 

 
DATE:   May 27, 2021 
  
TO:  Shivaji Deshmukh 
  General Manager 
   

   
 FROM:   Teresa V. Velarde 
  Manager of Internal Audit 
 
SUBJECT:  Follow-Up Review:  Contracts and Procurement Recommendations 

related to the Master Trade Contracts Audit Report 
 
Audit Authority 
The Inland Empire Utilities Agency (IEUA or Agency) Internal Audit Department (IA) has 
performed a follow-up review of the five open audit recommendations from the Master 
Trade Contracts Audit & Response.  This review was performed under the authority given 
by the Board of Directors in the approved Fiscal Year 2020/21 Annual Audit Plan and IA’s 
Charter. The Charter states that follow up reviews will be performed on recommendations 
provided by IA to ensure corrective actions are taken.  
 
Audit Scope 
The objectives of the Master Trade Contracts Audit in 2016 were to evaluate compliance 
with policies and procedures, evaluate how work is issued, verified and approved, and to 
evaluate if processes follow the Agency’s procurement policies. Six recommendations 
were provided in 2016.  One recommendation was deemed implemented in 2020.  The 
purpose of this follow up review was to evaluate the implementation status of the five 
remaining outstanding recommendations.  
 
Audit Techniques: 
Audit techniques included:  

• Discussions with Agency staff 

• Review of Agency policies and department procedures  

• Review and analysis of supporting documents 
  



Follow Up Review of  
Master Trade Contracts Audit  
May 27, 2021 
Page 2 of 10 
 

 
 

Audit Results - Executive Summary 
As a result of this 2021 review, all five remaining recommendations from the original audit 
are now considered implemented or closed and no longer applicable. The attached report 
provides details of IAs review, the bullet points below provide a summary of the results: 
 

• Contract Evaluation Documentation: During the original audit in 2016, IA 
suggested that CAP retain sufficient and consistent supporting documentation for 
the selection process of the Master Trade Contracts. IA found that the 
documentation retained differed by the user departments and suggested CAP be 
the central filing location. Additionally, the audit identified that the information 
communicated through the Board Letter was not consistent with the final contract 
terms. IA recommended that CAP ensure the information communicated to the 
Board agree to the terms of the contract. 
 
For this 2021, IA randomly selected for review five contracts. The audit noted that 
the final documentation related to the executed contracts is retained in the 
Agency’s financial system (SAP).   The review also found that CAP now retains 
supporting documentation for the proposal and selection process in their 
department files; or the documentation is retained at the user-department level.  
Retention of records in a centralized location is considered a best practice because 
it provides accessibility and visibility. 
 

• Automated Report: During the original audit, IA recommended the implementation 
of a control to assist or notify staff when total contract spending reached the 
approved limit to ensure spending limits are not exceeded. IA recommended to 
research automated and/or built-in tools within SAP to ensure contract spending 
does not exceed Board-approved limits. In 2019, CAP worked closely with 
Business Information Services and together they developed the Contract 
Expiration Report to monitor contract spending and contract expiration dates.  The 
report identifies contracts expiring within the upcoming 30 through 120 days, 
contract actuals and total values and is considered an effective tool to monitor 
spending for individual contracts by project managers and staff.  
 

• Agency’s Ethics Outreach Plan: During the original audit, IA suggested that CAP 
work with other Agency departments to enhance communications about the ethical 
responsibilities with regards to procurement activities, to all Agency employees, 
vendors, and contractors. In 2021, Human Resources initiated a Personnel Policy 
Review project that includes a comprehensive review of the Agency’s 
Administrative Policies including related ethics policy documents. Due to the 
current evaluation of all Agency policies, this recommendation is closed and will 
be evaluated during a future audit once the new policies and documents are 
approved by Executive Management and available to all Agency staff.  
 



Follow Up Review of  
Master Trade Contracts Audit  
May 27, 2021 
Page 3 of 10 
 

 
 

• Ethics Training: The original audit recommended that CAP staff participate in 
ongoing training related to ethics topics specific to their job responsibilities to stay 
current and informed of new trends and risks. CAP is supportive and staff receives 
ethics and fraud awareness training (in-person and/or virtual) through professional 
associations and the Agency’s Safety Tailgate program.  
 

• Cross-Training: The original audit recommended that CAP consider cross training 
staff to ensure adequate coverage of services to assist employees during CAP 
staff absences or changes.  CAP has had staff turnover and retirements since the 
original audit was completed. CAP indicated that staff had to be cross trained to 
ensure continuation of services to all Agency departments.  
 

All recommendations are considered implemented or closed.  IA commends CAP for their 
efforts in implementing the original recommendations.   
 
The CAP recommendations related to the Master Trade Contracts Audit & Response 
Follow-Up review is consistent with the Agency’s Business Goals of Fiscal Responsibility, 
Workplace Environment, and Business Practices by ensuring that IA’s evaluations 
provide recommendations for efficiencies, improving and safeguarding the Agency’s 
fiscal health, promoting a strong control environment and assisting the Board and Agency 
management in achieving organizational goals and objectives. 
 
Acknowledgements 
IA would like to extend our appreciation to the Contracts and Procurement staff for their 
cooperation and assistance during this review. 
 
Discussions with Management 
IA provided the results of this follow-up review to Christina Valencia, Executive Manager 
Finance and Administration/Assistant General Manager, Warren Green, Manager of 
CAP, and Susannah Shoaf, CAP Supervisor on May 11, 2021, for their review and 
comments prior to finalizing this report, their responses have been incorporated.  
 
 
TV:sn  

 



Follow Up Review of  
Master Trade Contracts Audit  
May 27, 2021 
Page 4 of 10 
 

 
 

Background 
 
The Contracts and Procurement Department (CAP) provides the following services: 
contract administration, procurement oversight, risk management and oversees the 
Agency’s safety program. CAP assists the departments in the acquisition of Agency’s 
goods and services, including equipment, materials, supplies, and professional services. 
CAP assists the Agency in implementing the Agency’s Board-approved Procurement 
Ordinance. 
 
In 2016, Internal Audit (IA) performed an audit to assess oversight over procurement 
processes for Master Trade Contracts. The objectives of the original audit were to 
evaluate whether processes followed the requirements of Agency’s approved 
procurement policies for these types of contracts, Master Trade Contracts.  
 
The Master Trade Contracts are groups of contracts pre-established to make 
procurement of trade services more efficient. The intent is to save time and resources 
and ensure only the most qualified contractors able to provide the best overall value, are 
selected.  Master Trade Contracts are used for smaller maintenance and repairs with 
specific trades that include corrosion assessment, painting, roofing, fencing and asphalt 
repair.  Master Trade Contracts are administered by CFS primarily on behalf of the 
Maintenance Department. Most of the contracts are limited to a maximum of $100,000 in 
services over the contract term and involve a competitive process of pre-selecting 
contractors in each trade to establish the contracts. The responsibility for the bidding 
process has varied with Maintenance rather than CFS. The contracts for the “trade” or 
“craft” are generally established for a specific amount of time (3 – 5 years) and the not to 
exceed dollar amount. The trade or crafts include:  roofing, fencing, asphalt, painting, etc. 
 
This follow up evaluation was not limited to evaluating the processes to establish and 
monitor Master Trade Contracts.  The scope of this follow up evaluation included 
evaluating processes withing the Contracts and Procurement Department.  
 
Six recommendations were provided during the original audit in 2016. In 2020, one was 
determined to be fully implemented. This follow-up review evaluated the 5 outstanding 
recommendations.  All five recommendations are now considered to be fully implemented 
or closed and no longer applicable.  
 
Note: At the time of the original audit, the department responsible for establishing Master 
Trade Contracts was called Contracts and Facilities Services Department (CFS). The 
department has been renamed to Contracts and Procurement Department (CAP). This 
report refers to both “CFS” and/or “CAP” to indicate the responsibilities of the current CAP 
department.   
 
 
  



Follow Up Review of  
Master Trade Contracts Audit  
May 27, 2021 
Page 5 of 10 
 

 
 

Follow-Up Review to the  
Master Trade Contracts Audit Report dated September 1, 2016 

 
Original Recommendation #1: 
IA recommends that even in instances where a different department has primary 
responsibility for the proposal evaluation process, CFS [CAP] work with the end-user 
department to ensure the information is communicated to the Board of Directors 
accurately reflects the signed contract terms. Additionally, CFS [CAP] should determine 
the need to request from the evaluating department the evaluation documentation, or a 
staff memo summarizing the selection process and have it available/filed.  
 
Status: Implemented 
 
The original 2016 audit found the proposal evaluation process and the retention of 
documents for Master Trade Contracts varied by the nature of the services being 
requested and by the department completing the evaluation. IA noted instances where 
CAP was not the responsible party for the communication (through the Board Letter) to 
the Board of Directors, but the information communicated to the Board was incomplete or 
was not entirely in agreement with the terms of the final, signed contract. IA recommended 
that CAP and Agency departments work together to establish consistency in the process 
and records retained to ensure the information communicated to the Board represents 
the final contract terms. In addition, IA suggested that CAP request and retain 
documentation from Agency department about the selection process.  
 
In this 2021 follow-up evaluation, IA randomly selected 5 recent contracts and noted that 
the final documentation related to the executed contracts is retained in the Agency’s 
financial system (SAP). The review also found that CAP now retains supporting 
documentation for the proposal and selection process in their department files; or the 
documentation is retained at the user-department level. And retained according to the 
Agency’s Records Retention schedule. CAP works closely with all departments and 
provides guidance to ensure sufficient supporting documentation is retained and filed 
where readily accessible for review. Retention of records in a centralized location is 
considered a best practice because it provides accessibility, visibility and ensures 
continuity of services. IA encourages CAP to fully utilize the Agency’s financial system 
(SAP) to retain contract related documents for greater transparency and accessibility. 
 
Based on the results of the audit, the recommendation is now considered implemented.  
 
 
Original Recommendation #2: 
IA recommends that CFS [CAP] work with BIS to research built-in tools within SAP to 
implement automated controls necessary to ensure that spending on contracts and 
groups of contracts do not exceed Board approved limits and determine the cost benefit 
of implementing those monitoring tools. 



Follow Up Review of  
Master Trade Contracts Audit  
May 27, 2021 
Page 6 of 10 
 

 
 

 
Status: Implemented 
 
During the original 2016 audit, IA observed that a control was necessary to alert staff 
when the total contract spending is near the approved limit to ensure spending limits are 
not exceeded. IA noted there were instances where the contract limits vary or are set on 
the group of contracts instead of the individual contract, which can complicate monitoring 
the contract. At the time of the original review, the only mechanism used to track contract 
spending was a spreadsheet, which required a periodic reconciliation to be performed 
manually, additional time and detail. 
 
In January 2019, in coordination with CAP, Business Information Services developed the 
“Contract Expiration Forecast” report, which lists all the contracts that are about to 
expire within the next 30, 60, 90 and 120 days.  The purpose of the “Contract Expiration 
Forecast” is to provide adequate notice of contracts that are expiring within specific 
category of dates and to allow for timely actions to be taken, by the respective project 
managers, without disruption to business operations.  The report is generated from SAP 
monthly and emailed to all Agency managers. The benefits of the monthly report are:  
 

• Provides visibility and highlights contracts that are expiring in the short-term. 

• Creates on-going communication between CAP staff and Project Managers for 
contracts that are reaching the maximum dollar limit or end date. 

• No longer requires manual reconciliation of contract spending through various 
reconciliation techniques. 

• Generated and sent to all managers and supervisors on the 3rd Thursday of every 
month.  

• Compiled using the data available from the Agency’s financial system (SAP).  
 
An example of the Contract Expiration Forecast circulated on April 15, 2021 is below. The 
information populated in this report includes project manager name, contract number, 
vendor name, CAP buyer, contract period, number of days remaining, contract amount, 
contract balance and purchase order balance.  
 
This report serves as an automated tool that assists staff with monitoring the amount 
procured on Agency contracts and helps ensure contract spending does not exceed 
Board-approved limits and provides notice before the contract expires. The 
implementation of the Contract Expiration Forecast Report satisfies the original 
recommendation.  



Follow Up Review of  
Master Trade Contracts Audit  
May 27, 2021 
Page 7 of 10 
 

 
 

 
Original Recommendation #4: 
IA recommends that CFS [CAP] enhance communications about the Agency’s ethical 
procurement responsibilities and expectations to all Agency employees as well as Agency 
vendors and contractors to actively foster an ethical procurement environment. CFS 
[CAP] should consider creating an ethics outreach plan and developing an approach with 
Agency Executive Management and Human Resources about reinforcing the “tone at the 
top” to actively remind employees and contractors/ vendors about the Agency’s ethical 
expectations including once again providing annual notifications of ethical guidelines to 
vendors and staff. Agency management may also want to incorporate references to the 
Agency’s Ethics Hotline and Ethics Point “FAQs” in that communication. 
 
Status:  Closed.  No Longer Applicable 
 
During the original audit in 2016, IA recommended that to promote a stronger ethical 
environment, communications should be enhanced about the Agency’s Ethics Policy, 
expectations of ethical behavior and responsibilities of employees, vendors and 
contractors, specific to procurement activities. When the original evaluation was 
performed, IA observed that reference was made to the topic of ethical guidelines with 
information found in multiple locations on the Agency’s intranet and external webpage as 
well as various Agency policies.  
 
During the original audit, CAP maintained ethical guidelines on the Agency’s intranet 
under the department’s internal webpage.  Additionally, the Agency’s website referred to 
the Ethics Resolution and 8 related Agency policies and directed readers to the Ethics-
Point website, and all employees are required to review annually the Agency’s Ethics 
Resolution and policy as part of the Safety Tailgate Topics program. 



Follow Up Review of  
Master Trade Contracts Audit  
May 27, 2021 
Page 8 of 10 
 

 
 

 
CAP’s position is that ethical behavior is very important and fostering an ethical 
environment is the responsibility of everyone at the Agency. CAP stated they can 
communicate the ethical guidelines and highlight its importance related to procurement 
activities, but the CAP department does not have enforcement power; nor can they hold 
employees accountable to the Agency’s ethical guidelines. Ethics and ethical behavior 
and guidelines should be established, governed, and communicated through the 
Agency’s culture of a top-down approach. IA’s position is that every department and every 
employee have some level of responsibility to understand and promote ethical behavior. 
CAP’s position is to promote ethical responsibilities within procurement processes by 
observing the Procurement Ordinance and requirements that govern fair procurement 
practices. CAP stated that they will uphold those policies and requirements in the course 
of procurement transactions.  
 
The table below outlines all the documents and locations where the Agency addresses 
the various topics within ethics, including conflict of interest, fraud, procurement, etc.  
 

Source Webpage Location 
Title of the Section/ 

Name of Document 

Agency’s Intranet Policies and Procedures A-28 Standard of Ethics 

Agency’s Intranet Finance and Administration Purchasing Ethics 

Agency’s Intranet Governance and Legal Ethics/Fraud Hotline 

Agency’s Intranet Governance and Legal IEUA Administrative Handbook (2017) 

Agency’s Intranet Governance and Legal Conflict of Interest Code (Adopted February 17, 2021) 

Agency’s Website Main Page  EthicsPoint (bottom of the page) 

Agency’s Website About Us/Transparency EthicsPoint 

Agency’s Website About Us/Transparency IEUA Administrative Handbook (2018) 

 
The Agency has multiple documents in multiple locations (both internally and externally) 
that touch on the topic of Ethics, Fraud Hotline, and Conflict of Interest. Having multiple 
sources of information in many different locations can create confusion about the 
Agency’s message. Agency management should determine if this is the best way to 
communicate and foster the desired ethical climate and environment.  
 
Currently, the Human Resources (HR) Department has undertaken a project to have all 
Administrative policies be reviewed by an independent consultant (approved by the Board 
in January 2021) and to provide feedback on how to improve the Agency’s policies and 
documents. HR anticipates the following will be addressed through the policy review 
project: 
 

• Distinguish and separate personnel policies versus non-personnel policies. 

• Create and/or emphasize what employees are expected to know and do.  

• Remove policies that are more reflective of a department SOP, not an Agency-
wide policy. 

 



Follow Up Review of  
Master Trade Contracts Audit  
May 27, 2021 
Page 9 of 10 
 

 
 

According to HR, other documents to be reviewed as part of this process include 
EthicsPoint, IEUA Administrative Handbook, and Conflict of Interest Code. Any 
suggestions provided by the consultant will be reviewed and considered by the HR 
Department and Executive Management. The Policy review project is anticipated to be 
completed in Fiscal Year 2021/22. 
 
Since the on-going Policy review project includes the review of Agency’s Ethics related 
documents, IA determines this recommendation is no longer applicable and will close until 
a future review/audit is planned after the implementation of updated policies. Future 
reviews will be scheduled as approved through the Board approved Annual Audit Plan.   
 
IA has provided various recommendations on ethics-related documents and policies. Both 
CAP and IA are readily available to assist in reviewing the Agency’s policies, plans and/or 
any other documents related to this topic. 
 
 
Original Recommendation #5:  
IA recommends CFS [CAP] staff attend annual training related to ethics in their respective 
procurement activities. 
 
Status: Implemented 
 
CAPs position is that it is important to foster an ethical environment at the Agency, 
specifically with regard to procurement activities.  To maintain and foster an ethical 
climate within the department, CAP staff attends ethics related training on an annual 
basis. The recent types of ethics related training completed by the department include:  
 

CAP Department 

Ethics-related Training Completed 

January 2020 – April 2021 

Date Training Host Name of the Training 
No. of staff that 

attended 

Duration of 

Training 

February 2020 
(Pre-pandemic) 

California Association of 

Procurement Professionals Officials  

Conference - Workshop: 

Ethical Contracting - Red Flags 

and Rigged Bids 

3 
(Note: Information shared 

with CAP staff and posted to 

Department’s Shared drive) 

In-person 

1 hour 

August 2020 
(Post-pandemic) 

National Institute of Governmental 

Purchasing 

Being Ethical: Its’s not  

Always Easy 
All staff 

Virtual 

1 hour 

Annually 
Agency’s Safety Tailgate Topics 

program 

Agency Policy  

A-28 Standard of Ethics  
(effective: February 8, 2016) 

All staff 
Self-study/ 

Online 

 
Since CAP’s staff receives specific training related to ethics and assists in fulfilling their 
duties as contracting and procurement professionals, this recommendation is considered 
implemented.  
 
 



Follow Up Review of  
Master Trade Contracts Audit  
May 27, 2021 
Page 10 of 10 
 

 
 

2016 Original Recommendation #6: 
In addition to the cross-training that is already occurring, IA suggests that CFS [CAP] 
consider the potential benefits of job rotation within the CFS [CAP] department as a 
training and internal control technique with multiple benefits. 
 
Status: Implemented 
 
During original 2016 audit, IA observed that CAP staff served as subject matter experts 
for their individual contracting areas. While expertise in an area was a benefit, in the event 
of staff absences; there was not sufficient coverage or assistance by other administrators. 
IA recommended that the CAP consider the benefits of cross-training and job rotation. 
 
Since the original audit in 2016, CAP has experienced staff turnover and retirements. This 
has resulted the department having to train, and cross-train its staff.   
 
According to CAP, department staff discuss all on-going projects during staff meetings, 
all procurement information and documentation is stored in a centralized location for all 
to access and follow. Additionally, CAP staff work together to ensure there are primary 
and secondary staff assigned to all contracting and procurement activities to provide the 
best service possible to its clients.  
 
CAP does not have a formal cross-training program but does have department-specific 
Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs). Documented procedures are the foundation of 
good internal controls to ensure consistency and accuracy in applying the approved 
processes. SOPs serve as a training tool and manual for other staff, especially during 
staff absences, staffing changes, and for cross-training to ensure the continuity of the 
services. Department SOPs are part of the Agency’s internal control framework and a 

recommended best practice. 
 
On the Agency’s intranet (under the CAP section), CAP has 31 SOPs listed and the 
version date ranges between 2009 to 2013. According to CAP, an internal review is due 
and several SOPs can be eliminated to correspond with updated processes and 
procedures. CAP plans to review and update their SOPs by October 2021.  
 
IA supports and recommends that CAP take the time to review and update their 
department-specific Standard Operating Procedures to address the many processes and 
activities of the department and to ensure these are readily available to all staff.  
 
 
IA would like to extend our appreciation to the Contracts and Procurement staff for their 
cooperation and assistance during this review. Please contact IA for additional 
information.  
 



Contracts and Procurement Follow-Up Review of 
Recommendations related to the Master Trade Contracts Audit Report

Teresa Velarde

Manager of Internal Audit 

June 16, 2021



Contracts and Procurement Follow-Up Review of 
recommendations related to the Master Trade Contracts Audit Report

2

Original Audit of the Master Trade Contracts Audit in 2016 

Objective

Six original recommendations

Summary of Results 

• One recommendation implemented in 2020

• 5 recommendations implemented or closed in 2021



IA recommends that even in instances where a different department has primary

responsibility for the proposal evaluation process, CFS [CAP] work with the end-user

department to ensure the information is communicated to the Board of Directors accurately

reflects the signed contract terms. Additionally, CFS [CAP] should determine the need to

request from the evaluating department the evaluation documentation, or a staff memo

summarizing the selection process and have it available/filed.

Status: Implemented

Original Recommendation #1:

3



Original Recommendation #2:

Status: Implemented

IA recommends that CFS [CAP] work with 
BIS to research built-in tools within SAP to 
implement automated controls necessary 
to ensure that spending on contracts and 
groups of contracts do not exceed Board 
approved limits and determine the cost 
benefit of implementing those monitoring 
tools.

4



Status: Closed. No Longer Applicable

IA recommends that CFS [CAP] enhance communications about the Agency’s ethical procurement responsibilities

and expectations to all Agency employees as well as Agency vendors and contractors to actively foster an ethical

procurement environment. CFS [CAP] should consider creating an ethics outreach plan and developing an

approach with Agency Executive Management and Human Resources about reinforcing the “tone at the top” to

actively remind employees and contractors/ vendors about the Agency’s ethical expectations including once again

providing annual notifications of ethical guidelines to vendors and staff. Agency management may also want to

incorporate references to the Agency’s Ethics Hotline and Ethics Point “FAQs” in that communication.

Original Recommendation #4:

5

Source Webpage Location
Title of the Section/

Name of Document

Agency’s Intranet Policies and Procedures A-28 Standard of Ethics

Agency’s Intranet Finance and Administration Purchasing Ethics

Agency’s Intranet Governance and Legal Ethics/Fraud Hotline

Agency’s Intranet Governance and Legal IEUA Administrative Handbook (2017)

Agency’s Intranet Governance and Legal Conflict of Interest Code (Adopted February 17, 2021)

Agency’s Website Main Page EthicsPoint (bottom of the page)

Agency’s Website About Us/Transparency EthicsPoint

Agency’s Website About Us/Transparency IEUA Administrative Handbook (2018)



Status: Implemented

IA recommends CFS [CAP] staff attend annual training related to ethics in their respective

procurement activities.

Original Recommendation #5:

6



Status: Implemented

In addition to the cross-training that is already occurring, IA suggests that CFS [CAP] 

consider the potential benefits of job rotation within the CFS [CAP] department as a training 

and internal control technique with multiple benefits.

Original Recommendation #6:

7



The Contracts and Procurement Follow-Up Review of recommendations related to the Master Trade Contracts Audit 
Report is consistent with the Agency's Business Goals of Fiscal Responsibility, Workplace Environment, and 

Business Practices by ensuring that IA's evaluations provide recommendations for efficiencies, improving and 
safeguarding the Agency's fiscal health, promoting a strong control environment and assisting the Board and Agency 

management in achieving compliance with policies and fulfill organizational goals and objectives.



INFORMATION 
ITEM 

3O 



Budget Impact 

 
September 15, 2021

Internal Audit Department Quarterly Status Report for August 30, 2021

The Audit Committee Charter requires that a written status report be prepared and submitted
each quarter. The Internal Audit Department Quarterly Status Report includes a summary of
significant internal and external audit activities for the reporting period.

During this quarter, along with additional routine audit projects and administrative tasks,
Internal Audit (IA) staff gathered preliminary data and information for the comprehensive
Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Control Audit. IA assisted various departments and
requests including review of policies and processes, provided guidance on internal controls and
best guidance. IA continues to assist with requests for review of Agency policies and
procedures, and provide recommendations to improve internal controls. The attached Quarterly
Status Report provides details.

This is an information item.

N/A

N/A

08/30/21Audit

Teresa Velarde, Manager of Internal Audit

N Y

Manager Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

The IA Status Report is consistent with the Agency's Business Goals of Fiscal Responsibility,
Workplace Environment, and Business Practices by describing IA's progress in providing
independent evaluations and audit services of Agency financial and operational activities and
making recommendations for improvement, to promote a strong, ethical internal control
environment, safeguarding Agency's assets and fiscal health, providing recommendations to
improve processes and to assist management in achieving organizational goals and objectives.

On June 16, 2021 the Board of Directors approved the Fiscal Year 2021/22 Annual Audit Plan.

On December 16, 2020, the Board of Directors reconfirmed the approved Audit Committee and 
IA Department Charters.  The Charters require a quarterly Status Report.

Attachment 1 - Internal Audit Department Status Report for August 30, 2021

Not Applicable

21201



 
 

Page 1 of 7 

 

Internal Audit Department 
Quarterly Status Report for August 30, 2021 

Project: Interim Audit Report: Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Control Audit 
 
Scope: 
The objectives of the audit are to:  

• Determine compliance with Agency policies and Standard Operating Procedures 

• Evaluate internal controls 

• Evaluate the timeliness and accuracy of invoice receipt, approval, and payments  

• Determine if payments were for properly procured and approved expenditures  

 
Status:   IN PROGESS 
As part of the Fiscal Year 2021/22 Board-approved Annual Audit Plan, Internal Audit (IA) plans to perform a 
review of key areas and activities in the Accounts Payable (AP) function within the Finance and Accounting 
Department (FAD). This review will be performed in multiple stages, IA will document a report after the 
completion of each area reviewed.  
 
IA has worked closely with several Agency Departments to obtain an understanding of the current accounts 
payable processes, including FAD, Business Information Systems (BIS), Contracts and Procurement (CAP), 
Asset Management, various Agency Managers/Supervisors and many other internal customers/stakeholders. 
 
IA downloaded the Accounts Payable Monitoring Report to analyze invoice and payment data and metrics for 
the previous three fiscal years.  IAs analysis include finding the total number of invoices paid on time or late, 
the number of days invoices that were paid after the due date and other metrics. At this time, the focus of the 
analysis was specific to Vendors and Utilities and did not include any other type of payments. IA’s analysis is 
documented in the Interim Report.  Additional audit procedures IA plans to complete include: 
 

• Walk-throughs of the processes with AP staff 

• Interview internal and external stakeholders to understand the process 

• Perform a comparable agency survey to compare the Agency’s invoice processes  

• Analyze additional reports available in the Agency’s ERP system 

• Analyze various financial transactions 

• Research/review policies and procedures related to accounts payable operations.  
 
An interim report is presented under a separate cover. A final report will be presented in December 2021. 
 

 
Project:   Fiscal Year 2020-21 Bi-Annual Warehouse Physical Inventory 
 
Scope:   
IA observed the annual physical inventory at the warehouse. The purpose of the annual physical inventory is 
to validate the total inventory asset dollar amount posted to the financial statements and determine if sufficient 
controls are in place to safeguard inventory.  
 
Status:    COMPLETE 
IA observed the physical count at the Agency’s Warehouse located at Regional Plant Number 1.  For the FY 
2020/21 Inventory Count, a total of 31,567 units were counted over a three-day period.  Inventory was valued 
at $1,409,366, 1,365 items had discrepancies during the first round of counts, 34 items which were the items 
with the highest quantity and/or dollar value were recounted. The overall accuracy rate of the inventory was 
99.27% (units) and 99.87% (dollar amount). These results are considered excellent and acceptable results 
for an annual inventory. Additionally, CliftonLarsonAllen (CLA) LLP, the Agency’s external financial auditors, 
performed a separate spot check as part of their annual financial audit. No issues were noted by CLA.  
 

 

Projects Completed This Period 



 
 

Page 2 of 7 

 

Internal Audit Department 
Quarterly Status Report for August 30, 2021 

 
Project:   Internal Audit Memorandum: Process for the Addition and Disposal of Assets 
  Re:  Agency Vehicle Operational Follow-up Audit report, dated May 27, 2021 
 
Scope:   
To provide additional guidance and recommendations related to ensuring Agency Vehicle asset records are 
reported accurately as recommended under the Agency Vehicle Operational Follow-up Audit report.  
 
Status:  COMPLETE  
On May 27th, 2021, IA finalized the Agency Vehicle Operational Follow-up Audit report. One recommendation 
was provided related to the Agency’s asset records. The recommendation stated that there should be 
documented policies or procedures to provide guidance about the proper methodology for adding/removing 
assets to ensure they are properly recorded and accounted for in the Agency’s financial and asset records.  
 
In June 2021, IA met with five Agency departments and took the lead to draft the discussion for the process 
to add/remove assets and document an initial draft procedure. The group decided that Asset Management 
would take the lead to see this procedure is finalized with the various departments’ input. Agency staff 
involved in this process agreed there is a need to document a formal process/policy to ensure the 
discrepancies in the asset records do not occur.  
 
IA documented a formal internal memo and circulated to all the departments involved.  IA also included an 
initial outline of an appropriate reconciliation process. It is up to the departments involved to complete, finalize, 
and implement the procedure. IAs role in this process was limited to completing the audit, discussing the audit 
findings, and facilitating meetings. Audit Standards require IA maintains independence; therefore, developing 
and/or writing any final Agency policies and procedures, would be a violation of the Internal Auditing 
Standards and the Internal Audit Department Charter. IA continues to be available to assist with evaluations 
and discussions of policies. 
 

 
Project:  Accounts Payable - Operational and Internal Control Audit 
 
Scope:  
To evaluate the internal controls in place with regards to accounts payable activities.  To evaluate processes 
and procedures follow Agency policies. To evaluate payments are issued only for properly procured and 
approved expenditures; to evaluate the timeliness and accuracy of invoice receipt, approval, and payment 
processes.  Additionally, to evaluate controls related to the vendor master list.  Finally, IA will follow up and 
evaluate the implementation status of the 24 outstanding recommendations from prior audits, some dating as 
far back as 2013. Outstanding recommendations are in the areas of asset records, project closure forms, 
petty cash fund, payroll, wire transfer controls, vendor master records, and standard operating procedures. 
 
Status:   In Progress  
IA has initiated preliminary work and research for this review.  IA plans to break up this audit into several 
subject-specific reviews to ensure there is adequate review in all areas. An Interim Audit Report is presented 
under a separate cover that highlights the background information about the Accounts Payable processes.  
This first review provides information about the invoice metrics. A final report is anticipated in December 2021.  
Additional reports will be issued as other areas are evaluated.  
 

 
  

Projects in Progress 



 
 

Page 3 of 7 

 

Internal Audit Department 
Quarterly Status Report for August 30, 2021 

 
Project:  Review the Agency’s practice and use of Electronic Signatures  
 
Scope:  
BIS requested the assistance of IA to evaluate the Agency’s current use of electronic signatures using 
DocuSign®, a secured signature service.  
 
Status:   In Progress  
Due to the current remote work status and in response to ensure all transactions are processed timely, to 
avoid disruption to business continuity and ensure all necessary documents are approved and signed as 
required, the use of electronic approvals and signatures has increased.  This initial and preliminary evaluation 
focused on how the Agency’s electronic methods for signatures, such as DocuSign®, Adobe Acrobat and 
other electronic signatures are being used within the Agency. IA reviewed the various Agency internal and 
external forms and documents that require electronic signatures and evaluated the types of electronic 
signatures that may be practical and necessary.  IA has discussed the preliminary results of the evaluation 
and recommendations with BIS management and the Executive Management team for their consideration.  
Additional evaluation of these processes will be completed once remote work status transitions to the original 
on-site work status.  A final report or results will be documented at that time. 
 

 
Project:  Asset Management Defect Elimination Committee & Safety Committee 
 
Scope:   
IA participates in meetings related to the Agency’s Asset Management program and the Safety programs to 
gain an understanding of the Agency’s priorities and understand Agency risks, represent the department and 
be a resource to provide feedback and recommendations.  
 
Status:  On-going 
During this quarter, IA staff participated in monthly meetings for each. Understanding Agency priorities and 
potential risks assists in audit planning.  These meetings require approximately 1 hour each per month and 
do not compromise the independence of the auditors or the Internal Audit Department. 
 

 
Project:  Final Report: Review of Agency COVID-19 Expenses  
  
Scope:  
The original evaluation reviewed the expenses incurred by the Agency in response to the ongoing global 
pandemic (COVID-19).  Expenses include costs incurred to comply with health guidelines, to prevent the 
spread of COVID-19, protect Agency personnel and the public, cost related to transitioning employees to 
work from home and ensuring proper on-site precautions. The objectives of the review were to evaluate if the 
expenses are in compliance with Agency policies and procedures, follow proper internal controls and contain 
the required supporting documentation.  
 
Status:   In Progress 
In the Fall of 2020, IA worked closely with the Grants Department to evaluate the COVID-19 expenditures 
incurred by the Agency and submitted for possible reimbursement by the Federal Emergency Management 
Agency (FEMA). As of October 31, 2020, the Agency has incurred approximately $600,000 in expenses for 
laptops, computer-related equipment and accessories, personal protective equipment (PPE), 
disinfection/cleaning services, etc.  The Grants Department have submitted over $550,000 in costs for 
potential reimbursement, while they continue to work with other departments to compile additional costs. 
 
IA plans to coordinate with the Grants Department to determine if there are any other COVID-19 expenses 
incurred by the Agency since the interim report was issued in December 2020 and/or to provide a status 
update if any reimbursements have been received by FEMA. 
 
A final report will be presented to the Audit Committee when final financial information is available. 



 
 

Page 4 of 7 

 

Internal Audit Department 
Quarterly Status Report for August 30, 2021 

 

Project:  IEUA Internal Audit Department –  
  Department Presentation for Human Resources Monthly Brown Bag Series  
 

Scope: 

The Agency’s Human Resources Department (HR) developed a series of high-level Brown Bag workshops 
that are facilitated by Agency staff on various Agency’s functions and programs. Presentations are conducted 
virtually via Microsoft Teams and approximately 100 employees attend. IA has been asked to participate in 
this Brown Bag series and host a 1-hour presentation on the role of IA.    
 
Status:  In Progress 
IA plans to participate in the Brown Bag series in 2021, date to be determined. IA appreciates the opportunity 
to provide an overview of the IA department’s mission, purpose, function, roles, and responsibilities.  
 
Additional details will be documented in the next Internal Audit Department Quarterly Status Report. 
 

 
Project:   Follow-Up IT Equipment Audit – Integrated Systems Services (ISS) 
 
Scope:  In Progress 
To evaluate the status of the two open recommendations from the original Information Technology (IT) 
Equipment audit completed in 2012.  The recommendations are:  
 

• Original Recommendation # 3 (dated August 2012): ISS implement appropriate tracking systems that 
include relevant information on IT purchases (i.e., serial numbers, etc.), are updated timely and are 
complete and accurate. ISS should establish procedures to enter, modify, and delete information in 
the tracking systems that address areas such as timeliness for updates, responsibilities for 
maintaining the systems, and the types of items included in the tracking system. 
 

• Original Recommendation # 1 (dated November 2012): ISS should ensure that any services procured 
with P-Cards are expressly authorized by the Manager of CAP, CFO, AGM or GM prior to committing 
to services.  

 

Status:   

IA will meet with ISS to evaluate the remaining two recommendations.  Based on the results of the discussions 
with the Operations Division and ISS Management, IA will assess the feasibility to expand the scope of the 
audit to evaluate additional areas to provide added value to the department and Agency. 
 
On July 26, 2021, ISS initiated an inventory of Technology assets assigned to Agency staff. The purpose of 
the inventory is to update asset records of Technology equipment issued through the department. A 
technology asset inventory assists in ensuring financial reporting is accurate and assists in maintaining 
physical accountability of the assets. Technology assets include: desktop computers, laptops, monitors, 
printers, docking stations, tablets, mobile phones, Jetpacks, and other computer peripherals.  
 
Additional details will be documented in the next Internal Audit Department Quarterly Status Report. 
 

 

The IAD Charter requires IA to follow-up on the status of outstanding recommendations to determine if 
corrective actions have been implemented.  Follow-up reviews are scheduled through the Board-approved 
Annual Audit Plan. Executive Management supports the implementation efforts of the recommendations 
previously provided and/or the development of alternative controls to address the original risks identified.  

Report on Open Audit Recommendations as of August 2021 



 
 

Page 5 of 7 

 

Internal Audit Department 
Quarterly Status Report for August 30, 2021 

 
Status: On-going 
As of August 2021, there are 67 outstanding audit recommendations. Details about each of the outstanding 
recommendations is submitted with the Annual Audit Plan each June.  This summary provides an updated 
count of the outstanding recommendations. This summary includes new recommendations provided during 
this fiscal year as well as considers any recommendations cleared during the year (up to the prior quarter).  
A follow up review is typically scheduled between 12–24 months from the date of the original audit, to allow 
time for full implementation. If a recommendation is deemed not implemented, the recommendation remains 
outstanding or alternate controls to mitigate any risks are evaluated to determine if the risk has been 
addressed and the recommendation is no longer applicable.  A follow up review is also scheduled sooner, if 
requested by the Audit Committee or Executive Management and/or the department audited.  The audited 
business units are encouraged to submit additional information for IA review if they determine the 
recommendation has been satisfied.  
 

Area Audited Report Issued Date 
No. of Recs. Remaining 

to be Verified by IA* 
Planned 

Follow-Up 

Accounts Payable Follow-Up  
(Deferred Recommendations related to Agency Policies) 

August 29, 2013 2 FY 2022 

Follow-Up – IT Equipment Audit – ISS  February 29, 2016 2 FY 2022 

Follow-Up – IT Equipment Audit – FAD December 5, 2016 6 FY 2022 

2017 Petty Cash Audit & Follow-Up Review June 5, 2017 7 FY 2023 

Water Use Efficiency Programs Audit June 5, 2017 6 FY 2023 

Contracts and Procurement Follow-Up Audit August 30, 2017 1 FY 2023 

Payroll Operations Audit August 30, 2017 5  FY 2023 

Procurement Card Audit March 1, 2018 7 FY 2023 

Wire Transfers Audit March 1, 2018 4 FY 2023 

Inter-fund Transactions Audit August 30, 2018 1 FY 2024 

Accounts Payable Follow-Up Audit May 30, 2019 4 FY 2024 

Voyager Fuel Card Audit May 30, 2019 4 FY 2024 

Human Resources Audit: Hiring and Promotions 
Operations Review 

December 2, 2019 7 FY 2024 

Recycled Water Revenues Audit  May 28, 2020 3  FY 2024 

Human Resources: Workload Indicators Review May 29, 2020 2 FY 2024 

Human Resources Operational Audit: Administration of 
Employee Training and Development Programs 

August 31, 2020 5 FY 2025 

Agency Vehicle Operational Follow-up audit:  
Review of Vehicle Inventory Procedures 

May 27, 2021 1 FY 2025 

Regional Contract Review – Final Audit Report (planned for full 
implementation with the renegotiation of the Regional Contract) 

December 16, 2015 31 

Pending – 
Renegotiation 
of the Regional 

Contract 

 
Total Outstanding Audit Recommendations 

 
98  

   
*The Outstanding Recommendations Table does not update the status of recommendations resolved by follow-up audits 
during the current quarter or add any new recommendations resulting from the projects completed during this quarter (as 
noted in this Status Report).  The table is revised for those changes once all items have been received by the Audit 
Committee and the Board of Directors which is when items are determined to be final.  
 

As of August 2021, 98 recommendations remain outstanding:  
o 31 relate to the renegotiation of the Regional Contract,  
o 20 relate to upcoming updates to Agency policies which is being facilitated by an outside consultant 

working with Human Resources Department,   
o 10 recommendations relate to audits completed within the previous 12 months and need additional 

time for full implementation by the departments.  

o 37 recommendations are eligible for follow up evaluation 

 



 
 

Page 6 of 7 

 

Internal Audit Department 
Quarterly Status Report for August 30, 2021 

On-going  
Assist Agency Management with requests for analysis, evaluations, and verification of information, assist with 
the interpretation of policies and procedures, and/or provide review and feedback on new policies or 
procedures. Additionally, staff assists with interviews, document evaluations and discussions when asked 
and time permits. These services are provided according to the IAD Charter, the Annual Audit Plan, and best 
practices.  The management request projects are short-term projects, typically lasting no more than 75 hours 
where IA determines it has the necessary staff, skills, and resources to provide the requested assistance 
without having to delay/defer scheduled audits and priority projects.  The scope of each review is agreed 
upon between the department manager requesting the evaluation, review, analysis or assistance, the 
Manager of IA and when deemed appropriate by Executive Management.  
 

On-going  
Perform special reviews and projects including analyzing transactions, evaluating documents and policies, 
verifying information, assisting with interpretation of Agency Policies or other required procedures, and 
providing recommendations and feedback on results of the analysis, engaging necessary assistance if and/or 
when necessary, reporting to the General Manager and the Audit Committee.  These services are provided 
according to the IA and Audit Committee Charters, the Annual Audit Plan, and/or best practices. 
 
Special Projects can be short or long-term projects, typically requiring more than 80 hours of staff time and 
requiring setting aside or delaying work on scheduled audit projects. The scope of the review is not generally 
known, and the work must be handled with the highest degree of confidentiality and care, as with all audit 
projects.  Special Projects are usually considered highly confidential. 
 

As required by the International Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing, and the IA 
Charter, auditors must regularly enhance their knowledge, skills, and other competencies through continuing 
professional development.  During the past quarter, IA staff has continued to stay abreast of industry 
developments through review of industry literature and participation in on-line webinars.  

During this quarter, IA staff attended virtual trainings provided by the Institute of Internal Auditors, CSMFO 
and other training hosted by the Agency’s Human Resources Department.   

The Internal Audit Manager and Senior Auditor are members of the governing board of the Inland Empire 
Chapter of the IIA. The governing board sets direction for the chapter.  The Manager of IA has a Master’s 
degree in Public Administration (MPA).  The Manager of IA and Senior Auditor are Certified Government 
Audit Professionals (CGAP®).  The CGAP® certification program is designed for auditors working in the public 
sector and demonstrates government knowledge and expertise. 
 
In April 2021, one IA staff member passed the last part of the Institute of Internal Auditor’s Certified Internal 
Auditor examination and successfully achieved full certification as a Certified Internal Auditor (CIA). This is 
the highest certification that can be achieved in the profession of internal auditing.  
 

 

Management Requests  

Special Projects 

Internal Audit Staffing and Professional Development 



 
 

Page 7 of 7 

 

Internal Audit Department 
Quarterly Status Report for August 30, 2021 

 
The Internal Audit Department is staffed as follows: 
 

• 1 Full-time Manager of Internal Audit 

• 1 Full-time Senior Internal Auditor 
 

 

• Monday, December 6, 2021 – Regularly Scheduled Audit Committee Meeting 

• Monday, March 7, 2022 – Regularly Scheduled Audit Committee Meeting 

• Monday, June 6, 2022 – Regularly Scheduled Audit Committee Meeting 

• Monday, September 12, 2022 - Regularly Scheduled Audit Committee Meeting  
 
 

Future Audit Committee Meetings 



INFORMATION 
ITEM

3P



Budget Impact 

 
September 15, 2021

Interim Report: Accounts Payable  Operational and Internal Control Audit

According to the Fiscal Year (FY) 2021/22 Board-approved Annual Audit Plan, Internal Audit
(IA) will perform a comprehensive review of the various areas and activities within the
Accounts Payable (AP) functions which falls under the Finance and Accounting Department
(FAD). The Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Control Audit will be performed in
stages to better focus on the different steps in the overall payment process as there are several
departments and Agency employees involved in the process to properly request, procure and
approve goods and services, then to assist in the process to pay vendor invoices in a timely
manner. The results of IAs evaluation will be documented after each audit area is completed.

For this first update, IA downloaded and analyzed data from the Agency's financial system,
including invoice and payment activity for three FYs to evaluate the amount of transactions and
review for trends. IA's analysis focused on sorting data by vendor types, payment types,
amounts and monthly/annual trends; specifically to determine the timeliness of invoice
payments. Additional audit procedures are planned to evaluate the entire payable process.
This interim report documents IAs analysis as of August 2021. A final report is planned for
December 2021.

This is an information item. 

N/A

N/A

08/30/21Audit

Teresa Velarde, Manager of Internal Audit

N Y

Manager Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

The Interim Report: Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Control audit is consistent with
the Agency's Business Goals of Fiscal Responsibility, Workplace Environment, and Business
Practices by ensuring that IA's evaluations provide recommendations that foster a strong control
environment, safeguard assets, promote a safe work environment and assist management in
achieving organizational goals and objectives.

On June 16, 2021 the Board of Directors approved the Fiscal Year 2021/22 Annual Audit Plan.

On December 16, 2020, the Board of Directors reconfirmed the approved Audit Committee and 
IA Department Charters.  The Charters require a quarterly Status Report.

Attachment 1 - Interim Report: Accounts Payable - Operational and Internal Control Audit
Attachment 2 - PowerPoint

Not Applicable

21202



 
 

 

 
DATE:   August 20, 2021 
  
TO:  Shivaji Deshmukh 
   

     
 FROM:   Teresa V. Velarde 
  Manager of Internal Audit 
 
SUBJECT:  Interim Audit Report:  

Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Control Audit 
 
Audit Authority 
The Inland Empire Utilities Agency (IEUA or Agency) Internal Audit Department (IA) is in 
the process of completing an operational audit of the Accounts Payable functions.  The 
review is being performed under the authority given by the Board of Directors in the 
approved Fiscal Year (FY) 2021/22 Annual Audit Plan and the IAD’s Charter.  This report 
is an Interim Audit Report to provide an update and information related to the ongoing 
review.  Additional audit procedures are planned before finalizing the review.  
 
Audit Objectives:  
The objectives of the audit are to:  

• Evaluate the Accounts Payable processes  

• Determine compliance with Agency policies and Standard Operating Procedures 

• Evaluate internal controls 

• Evaluate the timeliness and accuracy of invoice receipt, approval, and payments  

• Determine if payments were for properly procured and approved expenditures 

• Evaluate the efficiency of the various stages/steps in the invoice payment process  
 
Audit Techniques Applied: 
Audit techniques include:  

• Interviews with Agency Staff  

• Review of policies and procedures 

• Analysis of financial transactions 

• Review of supporting documents  

• Review of disbursement processes and controls 

• Review of the various steps in the process to receive invoices and goods and 

• Review of the approval processes in place for invoice payment 

• Review of the department’s goals and objectives 

• Consideration of prior internal audit findings and recommendations 
  



Interim Report:  
Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Control Audit 
August 20, 2021 
Page 2 of 13 
 

 
 

Audit Results – Executive Summary 
This is an interim audit report to provide an update on the audit work gathered to-date.  
Additional audit procedures and analysis are planned before the audit can be finalized 
(discussed later in this report).  At this time, IA has identified preliminary observations and 
preliminary recommendations (discussed later in this report).  This is not a final audit 
report. IA will continue to work with all Agency staff involved in the process of paying 
invoices, prior to finalizing the audit.  
 
Acknowledgements 
IA would like to extend our appreciation to staff for their cooperation and assistance during 
this review and look forward to the continued collaboration. 
 
Discussions with Management 
IA discussed and provided the interim audit results with the General Manager, the 
Executive Manager of Finance and Administration/Assistant General Manager, the 
Manager of Finance and Accounting and Accounting Supervisor. IA will continue to work 
with staff to finalize all results for the final audit report and will incorporate their comments 
in the final audit report.   
 
For questions and additional information, contact the Internal Audit Department. 
 
The Interim Report: Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Control audit is consistent 
with the Agency’s Business Goals of Fiscal Responsibility, Workplace Environment, and 
Business Practices by ensuring that IA’s evaluations provide recommendations that foster 
a strong control environment, safeguard assets, promote a safe work environment and 
assist management in achieving organizational goals and objectives. 
 
 
TV:sn  

 
  



Interim Report:  
Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Control Audit 
August 20, 2021 
Page 3 of 13 
 

 
 

Background 
The Finance and Accounting Department (FAD) is responsible for recording and 
maintaining the Agency’s financial information and is separated into two main areas: (i) 
general accounting and financial reporting, and (ii) strategic planning and budgeting.  FAD 
provides financial budgeting and reporting of the Agency’s programs and activities to 
internal and external stakeholders.  Additionally, FAD provides strategic planning to meet 
the Agency’s future financial needs for capital projects, securing the lowest borrowing and 
financing costs, and managing the Agency’s investment portfolio. FAD is responsible for 
the following: general accounting and financial reporting, Accounts Payable (AP), 
Accounts Receivable, Fixed Asset Accounting, Payroll, and various other financial 
analysis and responsibilities. The Accounts Payable section under FAD is responsible for 
processing and issuing payments to vendors for approved procurements.  
 
Department Staffing 
According to the IEUA’s Organization Chart (last updated July 6, 2021), the AP section 
operates under the Finance and Administration Division.  Staffing for FAD is as follows:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Invoice Payment Process 
The process to pay Agency vendor invoices for goods and services is an Agency-wide 
responsibility. The process to ensure vendor invoices are paid accurately and on time is 
the responsibility of various Agency employees. It begins with the request and 
procurement process, the departments will request goods and services needed for 
Agency business; approvers must review and evaluate the proper procurement method 
and supporting information prior to approving items for purchase; once items are 
received, there must be a verification process to certify goods and services were in fact 
received as agreed to under the procurement instruments; finally, the Finance and 
Accounting Department processes and issues payments for vendor invoices. Only after 
vendor invoices are fully verified and approved for payment, by the appropriate staff, can 
AP process the payments.   
  

Position Number 

Manager of Finance and Accounting 2 

Budget Officer  Vacant 

Senior Financial Analyst 3 

Financial Analyst I  Vacant 

Principal Accountant 1 

Accounting Supervisor  1 

Senior Accountant  2 

Accountant II 3 

Accounting Technician II 2 

Accounting Technician II Vacant 

Administrative Assistant 1 

Total 15 



Interim Report:  
Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Control Audit 
August 20, 2021 
Page 4 of 13 
 

 
 

The process to pay an invoice is as follows: (Still working with staff to confirm processes).  
  

Invoice payment process for Goods/Services purchased with Purchase Orders: 
 

1) Purchase Requisition (PR) is created to procure goods (i.e., chemicals, parts, tools, filters, etc.). 

2) Upon approval, the PR turns into a Purchase Order (PO) and goods are ordered from the vendor.   

3) Goods are either received at a centralized location (warehouse) or directly by the requestor (non-centralized). 

4) Quantities received are verified by the respective staff – the actual receivers of the goods/services. 

5) For Services, the work performed is verified and received by the designated Project Managers.  

6) Invoices 

• Hardcopy invoices mailed to the Agency are:  

▪ When received through regular mail, are received and date-stamped by the front desk staff,  

▪ Picked up by AP staff who scan and catalog/save to Agency’s shared drive for AP to process.  

• Electronic invoices received to the AP email address are electronically stamped when received and 

saved to the Agency’s shared drive by AP staff. 

7) All invoices are scanned/entered into SAP and processed as a “Held Document. (New step as of July 2021) 

8) Receiving documents are forwarded to administrative assistant staff or responsible PMs to perform the 

corresponding receiving function in SAP.  

9) After receiving has been performed and completed in SAP, AP staff can perform a 3-way match (compare 

the PO, Receiving/Shipping documents, and Invoice). 

10) AP staff initiate payment process in SAP. 

11) Payment is issued through hard copy check or Automated Clearing House (ACH) or wire transfer. 

 

Invoice payment process for Goods/Services purchased with Non-Purchase Orders: 
 

1) Goods/Services are procured, the information is entered in SAP. 

2) Invoices 

• Hardcopy invoices mailed to the Agency are:  

▪ When received through regular mail, are received and date-stamped by the front desk staff,  

▪ Picked up by AP staff who scan and catalog/save to Agency’s shared drive for AP to process.  

• Electronic invoices received to the AP email address are electronically stamped when received and 

saved to the Agency’s shared drive by AP staff. 

3) All invoices are scanned/entered into SAP and processed as a “Held Document”. (New step as of July 2021) 

4) AP staff emails the scanned invoice to the Administration staff requesting account coding and approval.  

5) Approvals are obtained via DocuSign, Adobe Acrobat features, or manual signatures  

6) Approved/signed invoices are scanned and returned via email to AP staff.  

7) The approved document (if electronic) is attached to the transaction in SAP and/or is sometimes reprinted by 

AP to attach to payment document information for supervisory review.  

8) AP staff initiate payment process in SAP. 
 

Attachment 1 provides a flowchart for the process to pay an invoice. IA is working with staff to develop the non-PO process flowchart.  

 
  



Interim Report:  
Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Control Audit 
August 20, 2021 
Page 5 of 13 

Accounts Payable Monitoring Report 
In 2013, to address the issue of late payments, IA suggested a report should be 
developed to track and evaluate AP activities and measure metrics.  IA worked closely 
with BIS to develop an SAP Crystal Report called Accounts Payable Monitoring 
Report. The purpose of the AP Monitoring report is to download all the AP transactions 
for a specific period to facilitate reviewing and sorting information about invoice activity 
including vendor account number, vendor name, document date and number, (payment) 
type/assignment, amount, posting date, invoice receive date, date paid, payment terms, 
and calculate invoices and amounts outstanding between 30-120 days.  The report is 
driven by the Posting Date entered by staff into SAP. To gather the preliminary information 
and analysis described in this report, IA used the AP Monitoring Report. 

Disbursement Activity – Total Payments Processed 
The table below summarizes the disbursements activity for the last three fiscal years as 
reported monthly through the Board’s Report on General Disbursements:  

Fiscal Year 

Payment Type 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 

Vendor Checks $ 69,128,535 $ 55,584,569 $8,268,233 

Vendor Automated Clearing House (ACH) 44,508,476  60,853,833 151,859,186 

Vendor Wire Payments * 77,734,952 75,462,704 76,230,085 

Worker Comp Checks 117,171 252,087 141,545 

Payroll Net-Pay Directors 72,421 79,372 81,371 

Payroll Net-Pay Employees 20,290,520 21,253,780 21,924,316 

Totals $211,852,074 $ 213,486,347 $ 258,504,736 

*Payments for Federal/State Agencies, Public Employees Retirement System, Metropolitan Water District (MWD), etc.

Due to Covid-19 restrictions and work changes, AP has worked closely with vendors to 
pay by ACH, and the majority of the vendors are paid using this method.  In FY 2020/21, 
AP converted 498 IEUA vendors and 90 IERCA vendors from paper check to ACH. Going-
forward, AP will continue to work with more vendors to transition to electronic payments. 
This explains the change in the total of checks issued in FY20/21. 



Interim Report:  
Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Control Audit 
August 20, 2021 
Page 6 of 13 

Disbursement Activity – PO, Non-PO Invoices and Payment Types 
IA used the AP Monitoring Report (Crystal Report), downloaded from SAP to compile and 
analyze data about the invoices paid. The tables below summarize the volume of 
transactions and dollar amounts processed for the past four fiscal years:  

Overview of the Purchase Order and Non-Purchase Order 

Payments/Invoices (regardless of vendor type) 

FY 2017/18 FY 2018/19 FY 2019/20 FY2020/21(1) 

No. of 

Invoices 

Processed 

Dollar Amount 

No. of 

Invoices 

Processed 

Dollar Amount 

No. of 

Invoices 

Processed 

Dollar Amount 

No. of 

Invoices 

Processed 

Dollar Amount 

PO Invoice 8,469 $ 75,481,557 8,848 $ 80,045,565 8,736 $ 72,457,269 7,643 $129,579,429 

Non-PO Invoice 6,787 134,973,394 6,481 124,583,675 6,460 129,908,951 5,888 119,275,735 

Totals 15,256 $ 210,454,951 15,329 $ 204,629,240 15,196 $ 202,366,221 13,531 $248,855,164 

(1) Data as of August 4, 2021. Invoices were identified by Payment type; PO Invoice (VI) and Non-PO Invoice (VM) 

Final totals will be available after financial reporting is complete. Final totals will be reported in the final audit report. 

Invoices broken down by Type of Vendors 
Fiscal Year 

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21(1) 

No. of 

invoices 

processed 

Dollar 

Amount 

No. of 

invoices 

processed 

Dollar 

Amount 

No. of 

invoices 

processed 

Dollar Amount 

No. of 

invoices 

processed 

Dollar 

Amount 

Vendors 10,672 $178,836,444 10,970 $172,920,991 10,870 $166,665,345 9,305 $206,710,499 

Utilities 1,451 9,700,951 1,419 10,401,220 1,412 12,759,679 1,447 16,872,989 

Retirees 1,453 416,983 1,570 452,630 1,657 471,305 1,739 481,017 

Obligations 

(taxes, employee 

benefits, etc.)  840 21,255,538 734 20,665,959 735 22,311,809 651 24,062,108 

Employee 

Reimbursements 803 226,987 584 170,596 473 140,752 320 61,711 

Other – CDA, 

Water Softener, 

IERCA 37 18,048 52 17,847 49 17,331 69 666,840 

Total 15,256 $210,454,951 15,329 $204,629,240 15,196 $202,336,221 13,531 $248,855,164 
(1) = Data as of August 4, 2021. Invoices were identified by Payment type; PO Invoice (VI) and Non-PO Invoice (VM) 



Interim Report:  
Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Control Audit 
August 20, 2021 
Page 7 of 13 
 

 
 

Observations and Recommendations 

This first part of the comprehensive operational review did not analyze payments made 
to retirees, obligations owed/due (i.e., federal/state taxes, medical, dental, retirement, life 
insurance agencies, etc.), employee reimbursements and other reimbursements. This 
review will only evaluate vendor invoices. 
 
Observation 1: Late Payments  
There may be various reasons within the accounts payable process that causes 
invoices not being paid by the invoice due date and/or within the vendor payment 
terms.   
 
Late payments occur when the payment is submitted to the vendor after the invoice due 
date. Even if vendors allow a “grace period” (additional time for payment to arrive to the 
vendor without penalizing the Agency) the payment is considered late.  
 
Payment terms 
Vendors set the payment terms at Net 10, Net 30, Net 45, Net 60, or other; the most 
common being Net 30.  This means that the invoice is technically due and should be paid 
within 30 days of the invoice date.  
 
Prior audit findings related to late invoice payments 
In 2010, IA completed the first Accounts Payable Operational Audit and identified that 
approximately 50% of the invoices tested during that audit, were paid late. A subsequent 
follow up audit in 2011 and 2013 revealed similar findings.  
 
IA’s analysis of late payments is summarized in the table below:  
 

 Late Payment Analysis for 

Vendor (POs) and Utilities (Non-POs) Payments 

 FY 2017/18  FY 2018/19 FY 2019/20 FY 2020/21(2) 

Payment 

Status (1): 

No. of 

Invoices 

processed 

Percentage 

of Invoices 

No. of 

Invoices 

processed 

Percentage 

of Invoices 

No. of 

Invoices 

processed 

Percentage 

of Invoices 

No. of 

Invoices 

processed 

Percentage 

of Invoices 

On Time 6,507 54% 7,143 58% 6,785 55% 6,855 64% 

Late 5,616 46% 5,246 42% 5,497 45% 3,897 36% 

Totals 12,123 100% 12,389 100% 12,282 100% 10,752 100% 

 

(1) To calculate the payment status of the invoice, IA first calculated the number of days paid after the due date. Then, IA 

compared the column called Doc Date to Date paid (AP Monitoring Report) to the vendor payment terms. If the 

information in the Doc Date to Date paid column was greater than the payment terms, the invoice was determined to be 

“Late” or if the information in the Doc Date to Date paid column was less than the payment terms, the invoice is 

considered “On Time”.  

(2) Data is as of August 4, 2021. For FY 2020/21, FAD is in the process of closing the financial records and there may 

invoices that are due/outstanding that have not yet been paid, and these figures are subject to change as financial 

information is not yet finalized.  

  



Interim Report:  
Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Control Audit 
August 20, 2021 
Page 8 of 13 
 

 
 

Of the invoices paid late, IA further analyzed the number of days an invoice was paid late 
(paid after the invoice due date).  
 

Number of Invoices Paid Late by Extent of Days Late 
Compared the Invoice Due Date and the Date Paid to calculate 

Number of Days Paid Late (after the Invoice Due Date) 

Number of Invoices 

paid After the 

Invoice Due Date 

FY 

2017/18 

FY 

2018/19 

FY 

2019/20 

FY 

2020/21(2) 

1-30 days 3,689 3,909 3,752 2,477 

31-60 days 1,200 806 1,071 832 

61-90 days 414 269 394 351 

91-120 days 131 112 96 119 

121-150 days 51 49 53 45 

151-180 days 59 26 32 21 

181 days – 365 days 65 70 68 47 

365 days or more 7 5 31 5 

Total 5,616 5,246 5,497 3,897 
     

Average Number of 

days paid late 
31 days 27 days 33 days 32 days 

Least number of days 

paid late 
1 day 1 day 1 day 1 day 

Highest number of 

days paid late 
559 days 509 days 1,323 days 642 days 

(1) To determine the number of invoices paid after the due date and the range of days, IA calculated this information using  

the Date Paid and the Due Date based on the established Payment terms. 
(2) Data is as of August 4, 2021. For FY 2020/21, FAD is in the process of closing the financial records and there may be  

invoices that are due/outstanding that have not yet been paid. 

 

The table below, further breaks down the invoices that were paid after the invoice due 
date but paid within the vendors’ potential grace period.  
 

Invoices that were paid after the Due Date and could fall within the  

Vendor’s Grace Period 

Number of Invoices paid 

After the Invoice Due Date 

FY  

2017/18 

FY 

2018/19 

FY 

2019/20 

FY 

2020/21(1) 

1-5 days 890 965 934 586 

6-10 days 765 808 702 526 

11-15 days 818 924 810 596 

Totals 2,473 2,697 2,443 1,708 
(1) Data is as of August 4, 2021. For FY 2020/21, FAD is in the process of closing the financial records and  

there may be invoices that are due/outstanding that have not yet been paid. 

 

Grace Period 
The “grace period” provides for additional time for the invoice payment to arrive to the 
vendor’s correct processing department.  As long as the payment arrives within the grace 
period, even if received after the invoice due date, the payment would not be considered 
late. It is unknown if all vendors offer a “grace period”, as each vendor may have different 
terms. The grace period is not recorded on the Monitoring Report or the invoice. This 
information can be obtained by contacting the vendors directly.   



Interim Report:  
Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Control Audit 
August 20, 2021 
Page 9 of 13 
 

 
 

Possible reasons for late payments, cited by FAD in 2010, 2011 and 2013 
According to prior IA reports, FAD stated there are two contributors to late payments: 1) 
Invoice format (i.e., forum in which invoices are received: hardcopy, email attachments, 
and forwarded from Agency staff) and 2) Invoice approvals. FAD noted that these two 
items are beyond AP’s control.   Additionally, FAD noted, at that time, that the Agency’s 
position is to pay at the due date or shortly thereafter to maximize the potential interest 
earnings, which led to occasional late payments as noted in previous IA reports. 
 
Potential Reasons for Current Late Payments 
Reasons for late payments include the following (listed in no particular order) that can 
delay payment.  Most of these reasons will be evaluated during the remainder of the audit.   
 

• The receiving process is not performed in a timely manner, which can create 
delays in processing and paying the invoice by the invoice due date. 

• The invoice was not provided to AP in a timely manner to be able to process 
by the invoice due date. Either not mailed to AP or held up by a department. 

• There may be a question regarding goods or services or an ongoing dispute 
with the vendor. 

• There may be an issue with ensuring timely manager/supervisor approvals on 
invoices, this does not allow accounting to initiate the payment process.  

• Inaccurate or incomplete information: account coding or PO numbers 

• Not having available funds, which requires additional research and approval.  

• Staff Workload assignments and other duties and tasks performed.  

• Staffing shortages (i.e., staff absences: vacation, medical, retirements, etc.). 

• Other anomalies or extenuating circumstances: Global Pandemic, interrupted 
processes, and staff working remote, systems and technical difficulties, etc.   

 
Credit Holds 
In discussions with Agency staff, it was observed that the Agency is sometimes placed 
on “credit hold”. IA has worked closely with various departments to discuss processes 
and review data to gather examples of when the Agency was placed on credit hold and 
understand the impact to business operations, and identify possible efficiencies and areas 
for improvement.   
 
A vendor will place their customer on Credit Hold when they are consistently late in 
making payments, exceeded their credit limit, and/or identified as a risk. By placing a 
credit hold on the customer’s account, it prevents credit purchases, and new orders will 
be declined. 
 
The table on the following page provides a list of examples and impacts of vendors 
mentioned where Credit Holds have been a problem in the past.  IA will further research 
and evaluate these claims.  
  



Interim Report:  
Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Control Audit 
August 20, 2021 
Page 10 of 13 
 

 
 

 
Dollar Amounts paid to the following Vendors for the corresponding Fiscal Year 

Vendor Name 

Nature of the Goods 

purchased and/or 

Services rendered 

Payment 

Method 
2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21(1) 

Potential Impact to the 

Agency if the merchant 

business account was 

suspended and/or placed 

on Credit Hold 

Amazon 

Business 

Business and computer 

related items and 
accessories: paperware, 

iPhone chargers, tools 

(pressure washer, LED 
Emergency Light), 

microscope slides, 

dichlorination tablets, 
mouse, laptop back, and 

many others 

Vendor 

ACH 
$ 67,888 $45,778 $64,360 $54,833 

Items and/or tools necessary to 

perform daily tasks would be 
unavailable, and impact 

business operations. 

Aqua Ben 

Corporation 
Chemicals: Hydrofloc 

Vendor 

ACH 
$1,405,352 $1,688,362 $1,832,150 $1,828,998 

Chemicals needed for treating 

wastewater would not be 
available, which may result in 

a violation of the Agency’s 

Wastewater permit and impact 
the public health.  

California 

Water 

Technologies 

Chemicals: Ferric 

Chloride Solution 

Vendor 

ACH/Check 
$701,964 $637,114 $709,284 $944,242 

Cummins 

Pacific LLC 
Parts  

Vendor 

ACH/Check 
$3,580 $6,846 $10,697 $9,890 

Potentially not having the 

required tools, parts and 
supplies for maintenance, 

repair, and updates to Agency 

equipment 

Griswold 

Industries 
Parts 

Vendor 

ACH/Check 
$198 $24,825 $32,020 $27,882 

Hach Company 
Parts 

Vendor 

ACH/Check 
$103,352 $235,815 $141,238 $213,107 

Harrington 

Industrial 

Plastics LLC 

Parts 
Vendor 

E-payables? 
$103,392 $115,952 $103,581 $84,835 

Hasco Oil 

Company Inc 
Parts 

Vendor 

ACH 
$49,852 $53,007 $71,076 $58,156 

Home Depot 

Credit Services 

Equipment, tools, 

supplies etc. 

Vendor 

ACH/Check 
$39,082 $35,315 $41,893 $36,690 

Konica 

Minolta 

Business 

Solutions 

Monthly maintenance 

invoice for 

Copier/Printer 

Services  

Vendor 

ACH/Check 
$71,252 $89,521 $91,219 $10,405 

Business office functions 

could not be performed 
without copiers, printers, 

and/or scanners. . 

KVAC 

Environmental 

services 

Hazmat Disposal 

Removal Services 

and/or clean up 

Vendor 

ACH 
$57,790 $153,077 $143,112 $29,548 

Potentially not having these 
services can impact Agency 

operations and impact the 

environment.  

McMaster Carr 

Supply Co 
Parts 

Vendor 

ACH 
$61,472 $61,733 $29,287 $63,219 See the potential impact listed 

for other parts suppliers 

already identified in the table Napa Genuine 

Parts Company 

Parts – filters, air, oil, 

batteries, etc 

Vendor 

ACH 
$17,665 $10,839 $14,170 $10,922 

Olin Corp 
Chemicals: Sodium 

Hypochlorite 

Vendor 

ACH 
$1,314,139 $1,761,479 $1,961,645 $2,171,652 

See the potential impact listed 

for other chemical vendors.  

Palm Auto 

Detail 

Car Wash Services for 

Agency Fleet Vehicles Vendor 

ACH 
$29,387 $62,267 $29,433 $31,050 

Interior and Exterior of the 

Agency vehicles would not be 

washed and cleaned, which 

safety hazard for employees 
and a risk to the Agency.  

Pacific Courier 

Service 

Courier Services – 

Messenger and 

Laboratory 

Vendor 

ACH/Check 
42,310 47,487 46,912 46,018 

There would be no courier 

services for the pickup and/or 
delivery of the required 

samples 

 



Interim Report:  
Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Control Audit 
August 20, 2021 
Page 11 of 13 
 

 
 

Vendor Name 

Nature of the Goods 

purchased and/or 

Services rendered 

Payment 

Method 
2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21(1) 

Potential Impact to the 

Agency if placed the 

merchant business 

account was suspended 

and/or on Credit Hold 

RealTech 

Controls 

LED lights for Agency 

Trucks 

Vendor 

Check 
$- $- $348 $- 

See the potential impact listed 
for other parts suppliers 

already identified in the table. 

ReadyRefresh 

by Nestle 

5-Gallon Bottle Water, 

cups, and cooler rental 

Vendor 

ACH/Check 
$9,063 $8,872 $8,607 $8,662 

Agency facilities would not 

have water to drink for staff, 
visitors, contractors, etc.  

Red Wing Shoe 
Safety Shoes for 

Employees 

Vendor 

ACH/Check 
$4,068 $12,331 $9,899 9,479 

Staff does not have the 

required safety shoes to 
perform their job duties. This 

can be a safety hazard and risk 

to the Agency.  

RSD Parts 
Vendor 

ACH/Check 
$39,470 $18,649 $43,737 $65,675 

See the potential impact listed 

for other parts suppliers 

already identified in the table. 

Smart & Final Food and Supplies 
Vendor 

Check 
$3,631 $- $- $- 

Agency facilities would not 
have the necessary items. 

Staples 

Contract & 

Commercial 

LLC 

Office Supplies 

(envelopes, post-its, 

pens, notebooks, 

planners, etc.)  

Vendor 

ACH 
$- $- $- 3,138 

Business office functions 

could not be performed 

without the proper office 
supplies. 

Statewide 

Traffic Safety 

and Signs 

Traffic Control 

Services 

Vendor 

ACH/Check 
$38,720 $120,880 $32,065 $24,023 

Staff would not have the 

services to control traffic 

necessary to maintain and 
service the Agency’s regional 

sewer system. Impact is to 

employees safety and a risk to 
the Agency. 

Supply 

Solution 

Supplies: toilet paper, 

paper towels, 

disinfectant spray, 

soap, raid, broom 

handles, etc. 

Vendor 

Check 
$- $- $17,101 $15,625 

Agency facilities would not 
have the necessary day-to-day 

supplies. 

Univar 

Solutions USA 

Inc 

Chemicals: Sodium 

Bisulfite 

Vendor 

ACH 
$176,213 $294,494 $176,696 $356,926 

See the potential impact listed 

for other chemical vendors. 

Urimage 

Business Cards and 

other Agency-related 

forms 

Vendor 

Check 
$3,824 $4,445 $6,524 $1,886 

Business office functions 

could not be performed 

without the proper supplies 
and forms. 

(1) = Data is as of August 4, 2021. For FY 2020/21, FAD is in the process of closing the financial records and there may be invoices that 

are due/outstanding that have not yet been paid. 
 
 
Department-Specific SOPs 
IA asked the various departments for their department-specific Standard Operating 
Procedures (SOPs) related to processing vendor payments. Currently, FAD does not 
have formal, documented SOPs, but the important processes are documented in the Go 
Live documents, and worksheets have been developed with print screens. 
 
Documented procedures are the foundation of good internal controls to ensure 
consistency and accuracy in applying the approved processes. SOPs serve as a training 
tool and manual for other staff, especially during staff absences, changes, and for cross-



Interim Report:  
Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Control Audit 
August 20, 2021 
Page 12 of 13 
 

 
 

training to ensure the continuity of the services. Department SOPs are part of the 
Agency’s internal control framework and a recommended best practice. 
 
FAD has committed to the development of formal, documented SOPs for their processes, 
and this is anticipated to be completed by the end of calendar year 2021. IA is available 
to assist with reviewing and providing recommendations and suggestions. 
 
Additional Audit Procedures to be performed by IA to finalize the audit report: 
This is an interim report that reports only on the timeliness of vendor payments from an 
overall level. In this report, IA did not test individual transactions. Listed below are other 
procedures that IA plans to perform by the completion of the final audit report in December 
2021, they are as follows:  
 

• Walk-through (observations) of the processes with AP staff 

• Contact the Agency’s vendors to obtain a greater understanding on the Agency’s 
performance and business relationship 

• Perform a comparable survey to compare how the Agency’s current invoice and 
payment process is to other agencies within the industry. 

• Evaluate SAP reports for usefulness to use as monitoring reports.  

• Evaluate various financial transactions to review approvals, workflow and payment 
processes. 
 

Preliminary Interim Audit Recommendations: 

• FAD consider developing of Performance Indicators and metrics for AP functions.   

• FAD should evaluate staffing levels to support the Agency’s volume of financial 
transactions. 

• FAD and Operations departments should continue with the on-going check-in 
meetings with key stakeholders about the processes related to paying invoices and 
continue to discuss challenges and identify areas for efficiencies.  

• FAD and all departments with responsibilities of receiving, processing and 
approving invoices should document department-specific SOPs for key activities 
that are performed by the department, and these SOPs/desk procedures should 
be signed by the department management, and readily available and accessible 
by all staff.  

• Consider expanding the P-Card program to consolidate the various credit cards 
and fully implement and utilize mobile features, scanning receipt, mobile workflows 
and reporting functions (refer to IAs PCard Audit). 

• Work with BIS to ensure needed information is generated in reports to help monitor 
transactions and monitor payments. Utilize SAP reports to monitor financial 
transaction activity to have visibility of the payment processes (receiving status, 
invoice aging, pending payment, etc.) 
   

 
  



Interim Report:  
Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Control Audit 
August 20, 2021 
Page 13 of 13 
 

 
 

Attachment 1 
Flowchart of the Invoice Payment Process for Purchase Order (PO) Invoices 

 

 



Accounts Payable
Operational & Internal Controls Audit

Interim Report

Teresa Velarde

Manager of Internal Audit 

August 30, 2021



Accounts Payable Operational & Internal Control Audit
Audit Scope

2

Audit Objectives: 

• Evaluate the Accounts Payable processes

• Determine compliance with Agency policies and Standard Operating Procedures

• Evaluate internal controls

• Evaluate the timeliness and accuracy of invoice receipt, approval, and payments

• Determine if payments were for properly procured and approved expenditures

• Evaluate the efficiency of the various stages/steps in the invoice payment process

Audit Techniques Applied:

• Interviews with Agency Staff

• Review of policies and procedures

• Analysis of financial transactions

• Review of supporting documents

• Review of disbursement processes and controls

• Review of the various steps in the process to receive invoices and goods and

• Review of the approval processes in place for invoice payment

• Review of the department’s goals and objectives

• Consideration of prior internal audit findings and recommendations



Flowchart for Payment Processing

3



Accounts Payable
Staffing as of July 19, 2021:

4

POSITION NUMBER

Manager of Finance and Accounting 2

Budget Officer Vacant

Senior Financial Analyst 3

Financial Analyst I Vacant

Principal Accountant 1

Accounting Supervisor 1

Senior Accountant 2

Accountant II 3

Accounting Technician II 2

Accounting Technician II Vacant

Administrative Assistant 1

Total 15

IEUA’s Organization Chart as of July 6, 2021



Accounts Payable – All payments

5

*Payees include Federal/State Agencies, Public Employees Retirement System, Metropolitan Water District (MWD), etc.

This report is provided to the Board every month through the Report of General Disbursements.

Fiscal Year

Payment Type 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21

Vendor Checks $ 69,128,535 $ 55,584,569 $ 8,268,233

Vendor Automated Clearing House 

(ACH)
44,508,476 60,853,833 151,859,186

Vendor Wire Payments * 77,734,952 75,462,704 76,230,085

Worker Comp Checks 117,171 252,087 141,545

Payroll Net-Pay Directors 72,421 79,372 81,371

Payroll Net-Pay Employees 20,290,520 21,253,780 21,924,316

Total $211,852,074 $ 213,486,347 $ 258,504,736



PO & Non-PO Payments

6

Overview of the Purchase Order and Non-Purchase Order 

Payments/Invoices (regardless of vendor type)

Fiscal Years

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21
(1)

No. of Invoices 

Processed
Dollar Amount

No. of Invoices 

Processed
Dollar Amount

No. of Invoices 

Processed
Dollar Amount

No. of Invoices 

Processed
Dollar Amount

PO Invoice 8,469 $ 75,481,557 8,848 $ 80,045,565 8,736 $ 72,457,269 7,643 $129,579,429

Non-PO Invoice 6,787 134,973,394 6,481 124,583,675 6,460 129,908,951 5,888 119,275,735

Totals 15,256 $ 210,454,951 15,329 $ 204,629,240 15,196 $ 202,366,221 13,531 $248,855,164

Source: SAP BI Launchpad Reports - Accounts Payable Monitoring Report 

(1) Data as of August 4, 2021



PO & Non-PO Invoices
By Type of Vendor

7

Fiscal Year

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21
(1)

Type of Vendor/ Transaction 

Processed

No. of 

invoices 

processed

Dollar 

Amount

No. of 

invoices 

processed

Dollar 

Amount

No. of 

invoices 

processed

Dollar 

Amount

No. of 

invoices 

processed

Dollar Amount

Vendors (PO Invoices) 10,672 $ 178,836,444 10,970 $ 172,920,991 10,870 $ 166,665,345 9,305 $206,710,499

Utilities 1,451 9,700,951 1,419 10,401,220 1,412 12,759,679 1,447 16,872,989

Retirees 1,453 416,983 1,570 452,630 1,657 471,305 1,739 481,017

Obligations (taxes, insurance,  PERS, 

union dues, medical/dental, etc.) (2) 840 21,255,538 734 20,665,959 735 22,311,809 651 24,062,108

Employee Reimbursements (2) 803 226,987 584 170,596 473 140,752 320 61,711

Other – CDA, Water Softener,

IERCA (2) 37 18,048 52 17,847 49 17,331 69 666,840

Total 15,256 $ 210,454,951 15,329 $ 204,629,240 15,196 $ 202,336,221 13,531 $ 248,855,164

(1) Data as of August 4, 2021

(2) Non-PO Items

Source: SAP BI Launchpad Reports - Accounts Payable Monitoring Report 



Preliminary Findings

Observation 1: Late Payments

There may be various reasons within the accounts payable process that causes invoices not 
being paid by the invoice due date and/or within the payment terms.

• IA prior AP Audits in 2010, 2011 and 2013 identified that invoices were paid late

• Accounts Payable Monitoring Report

8



Preliminary Findings

(1) To calculate the payment status of the invoice, IA first calculated the number of days paid after the due date. Then IA compared the column called Doc Date to Date paid (AP

Monitoring Report) to the vendor payment terms. If the information in the Doc Date to Date paid column was greater than the payment terms, the invoice was determined to be

“Late” or if the information in the Doc Date to Date paid column was less than the payment terms, the invoice is considered “On Time”.

(2) Data is as of August 4, 2021. For FY 2020/21, FAD is in the process of closing the financial records and there may invoices that are due/outstanding that have not yet been paid.

9

Late Payment Analysis for

Vendor (POs) and Utilities (Non-POs) Payments

Fiscal Year

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21(2)

Payment 

Status(1):

No. of Invoices 

processed

Percentage of 

Invoices

No. of Invoices 

processed

Percentage of 

Invoices

No. of Invoices 

processed

Percentage of 

Invoices

No. of Invoices 

processed

Percentage of 

Invoices

On Time 6,507 54% 7,143 58% 6,785 55% 6,855 64%

Late 5,616 46% 5,246 42% 5,497 45% 3,897 36%

Totals 12,123 100% 12,389 100% 12,282 100% 10,752 100%



Accounts Payable
Days Late

(1) To determine the number of invoices paid after the due date and the range of days, IA calculated this information using the 

Date Paid and the Due Date based on the established Payment terms. 

(2) Data is as of August 4, 2021. For FY 2020/21, FAD is in the process of closing the financial records and there may be 

invoices that are due/outstanding that have not yet been paid

10

Number of Invoices Paid Late by Extent of Days Late

Compared the Invoice Due Date and the Date Paid to calculate

Number of Days Paid Late (after the Invoice Due Date)

Number of Invoices paid After the

Due Date

FY 

2017/18

FY

2018/19

FY

2019/20

FY

2020/21(2)

1-30 days 3,689 3,909 3,752 2,477

31-60 days 1,200 806 1,071 832

61-90 days 414 269 394 351

91-120 days 131 112 96 119

121-150 days 51 49 53 45

151-180 days 59 26 32 21

181 days – 365 days 65 70 68 47

365 days or more 7 5 31 5

Total 5,616 5,246 5,497 3,897

Average Number of Days an invoice

is paid Late
31 days 27 days 33 days 32 days

After the due date, least number of

days paid late
1 day 1 day 1 day 1 day

After the due date, highest number of

days paid late
559 days 509 days 1,323 days 642 days



Accounts Payable 
Days Late – possible grace period

(1) Data is as of August 4, 2021. For FY 2020/21, FAD is in the process of closing the financial records and 

• there may be invoices that are due/outstanding that have not yet been paid.

If vendors provide or allow a “grace period”, the grace period indicates that if a payment is received, 
by the vendor, within 1 to up to 15 days after the invoice due date, then the invoice is not 
considered late by the vendor.  The table below, further breaks down the invoices that were paid 
after the invoice due date but potentially paid withing the vendor’s grace period, and may not be 
considered “late” by the vendor

11

Invoices that were paid after the Due Date 

possibly fall within the Vendor’s Grace Period

Number of Invoices paid

After the Due Date

FY 

2017/18

FY

2018/19

FY

2019/20

FY

2020/21(1)

1-5 days 890 965 934 586

6-10 days 766 808 702 526

11-15 days 818 924 810 596

Totals 2,473 2,697 2,446 1,708



Preliminary Recommendations

• FAD consider developing of Performance Indicators and metrics for AP functions.

• FAD should evaluate staffing levels to support the Agency’s volume of financial transactions.

• FAD and Operations departments should continue with the on-going check-in meetings with key stakeholders

about the processes related to paying invoices and continue to discuss challenges and identify areas for

efficiencies.

• FAD and all departments with responsibilities of receiving, processing and approving invoices should

document department-specific SOPs for key activities that are performed by the department, and these

SOPs/desk procedures should be signed by the department management, and readily available and

accessible by all staff.

• Consider expanding the P-Card program to consolidate the various credit cards and fully implement and

utilize mobile features, scanning receipt, mobile workflows and reporting functions (refer to IAs PCard Audit).

• Work with BIS to ensure needed information is generated in reports to help monitor transactions and monitor

payments. Utilize SAP reports to monitor financial transaction activity to have visibility of the payment

processes (receiving status, invoice aging, pending payment, etc.)

12



Additional Procedures to be performed by IA

• Walk-through (observations) of the processes with AP staff

• Contact the Agency’s vendors to obtain a greater understanding on the Agency’s

performance and business relationship

• Perform a comparable survey to compare how the Agency’s current invoice and payment

process is to other agencies within the industry.

• Evaluate SAP reports for usefulness to use as monitoring reports.

• Evaluate various financial transactions to review approvals, workflow and payment

processes.

13



        AGENCY  
REPRESENTATIVES’ 

      REPORTS 

   4A 



S A W P A 
 
 

 
PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF EXECUTIVE ORDER N-29-20 AND N-08-21, THIS MEETING WILL BE 

CONDUCTED VIRTUALLY.  ALL VOTES TAKEN WILL BE CONDUCTED BY ORAL ROLL CALL. 
This meeting will be accessible as follows: 

 
Meeting Access Via Computer (Zoom)*: Meeting Access Via Telephone*: 
• https://sawpa.zoom.us/j/84046630593 • 1 (669) 900-6833 
• Meeting ID: 840 4663 0593 • Meeting ID: 840 4663 0593 

*Participation in the meeting via the Zoom app (a free download) is strongly encouraged 
 

 

REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING 
TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 7, 2021 – 9:30 A.M. 

 

AGENDA 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER | PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE (Jasmin A. Hall, Chair)  
 

2. ROLL CALL 
 

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
Members of the public may address the Commission on items within the jurisdiction of the Commission; however, 
no action may be taken on an item not appearing on the agenda unless the action is otherwise authorized by 
Government Code §54954.2(b). 

 

4. ITEMS TO BE ADDED OR DELETED 
 

5. CONSENT CALENDAR 
All matters listed on the Consent Calendar are considered routine and non-controversial and will be acted upon by 
the Commission by one motion as listed below. 

A. APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES:  AUGUST 17, 2021 
Recommendation:  Approve as posted. 

 

B. TREASURER’S REPORT – JULY 2021 
Recommendation:  Approve as posted. 

 

6. NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. CALIFORNIA RURAL WATER ASSOCIATION AGREEMENT - GRANT APPLICATION 
ASSISTANCE PROGRAM FOR SMALL COMMUNITY WATER/WASTEWATER 
SYSTEMS SERVING DISADVANTAGED COMMUNITIES IN THE SANTA ANA RIVER 
WATERSHED (CM#2021.63) 
This item is subject to the provisions of Project Agreement 25 
Presenter: Mark Norton 
Recommendation: Authorize the execution of an agreement between the California 
Rural Water Association and SAWPA to conduct the implementation of the grant 
application assistance program for small community water/wastewater systems serving 
disadvantaged communities in the Santa Ana River Watershed for an amount not-to-

          SANTA  ANA  WATERSHED  PROJECT AUTHORITY 
             11615 Sterling Avenue, Riverside, California 92503 •  (951) 354-4220 

 

https://sawpa.zoom.us/j/84046630593


SAWPA Commission 
Regular Meeting Agenda 

September 7, 2021 
Page 2 

 

 

exceed $150,000, with Phase I work estimated cost of $25,000 and Phase II up to 
$125,000 depending on number of project grant applications prepared. 
 

7. INFORMATIONAL REPORTS 
Recommendation:  Receive for information. 

 
A. AUDIT COMMUNICATION LETTER FOR FYE JUNE 30, 2021 – TEAMAN, 

RAMIREZ & SMITH, INC. 
Presenter:  Karen Williams 

 
B. CHAIR’S COMMENTS/REPORT 

 
C. COMMISSIONERS’ COMMENTS 

 
D. COMMISSIONERS’ REQUEST FOR FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

 
8. CLOSED SESSION 

 
There were no Closed Session items anticipated at the time of the posting of this agenda. 

 
9. ADJOURNMENT 
 
PLEASE NOTE: 
Americans with Disabilities Act:  If you require any special disability related accommodations to participate in this meeting, call 
(951) 354-4220 or email svilla@sawpa.org.  48-hour notification prior to the meeting will enable staff to make reasonable 
arrangements to ensure accessibility for this meeting.  Requests should specify the nature of the disability and the type of 
accommodation requested. 
Materials related to an item on this agenda submitted to the Commission after distribution of the agenda packet are available 
for public inspection during normal business hours at the SAWPA office, 11615 Sterling Avenue, Riverside, and available at 
www.sawpa.org, subject to staff’s ability to post documents prior to the meeting. 
 
 
 

Declaration of Posting 
I, Sara Villa, Clerk of the Board of the Santa Ana Watershed Project Authority declare that on September 2, 2021, a copy of this agenda has 
been uploaded to the SAWPA website at www.sawpa.org and posted at SAWPA’s office, 11615 Sterling Avenue, Riverside, California. 
 
 

  

http://www.sawpa.org/
http://www.sawpa.org/


SAWPA Commission 
Regular Meeting Agenda 

September 7, 2021 
Page 3 

 

 

 

2021 SAWPA Commission Meetings/Events 
First and Third Tuesday of the Month 

(NOTE:  All meetings begin at 9:30 a.m., unless otherwise noticed, and are held at SAWPA.) 
 

January 
1/5/21 Commission Workshop [cancelled] 
1/5/21 Special Commission Meeting 
1/8/21 Special Commission Meeting 
1/12/21 Special Commission Meeting 
1/19/21 Regular Commission Meeting 

February 
2/2/21 Commission Workshop 
2/16/21 Regular Commission Meeting 

March 
3/2/21 Commission Workshop 
3/16/21 Regular Commission Meeting 

April 
4/6/21 Commission Workshop 
4/20/21 Regular Commission Meeting 

May 
5/4/21 Commission Workshop 
5/18/21 Regular Commission Meeting 
5/12 – 5/13/21 ACWA Spring Virtual Conference & Exhibition 

June 
6/1/21 Commission Workshop 
6/15/21 Regular Commission Meeting 

July 
7/6/21 Commission Workshop [cancelled] 
7/20/21 Regular Commission Meeting 

August 
8/3/21 Commission Workshop 
8/17/21 Regular Commission Meeting 

September 
9/7/21 Commission Workshop 
9/21/21 Regular Commission Meeting 

October 
10/5/21 Commission Workshop 
10/19/21 Regular Commission Meeting 

November 
11/2/21 Commission Workshop 
11/16/21 Regular Commission Meeting 
 

December 
12/7/21 Commission Workshop 
12/21/21 Regular Commission Meeting  
11/30 – 12/3/21 ACWA Fall Conference, Pasadena 

 

 

 
 



        AGENCY  
REPRESENTATIVES’ 

      REPORTS 

   4B 



Tuesday, September 14, 2021
Meeting Schedule

Regular Board Meeting

September 14, 2021

12:00 PM

09:00 a.m. - L&C
10:30 a.m. - RP&AM
12:00 p.m. - BOD 
12:30 p.m. - FNA

Live streaming is available for all board and committee meetings on our 
mwdh2o.com website (Click to Access Board Meetings Page) 

Public Comment Via Teleconference Only: Members of the public may present their 
comments to the Board on matters within their jurisdiction as listed on the agenda 
via teleconference only. To participate call (404) 400-0335 and use Code: 9601962.

MWD Headquarters Building - 700 N. Alameda Street - Los Angeles, CA 90012

1. Call to Order

1.1 Invocation: Carmen Bermudez-Bracy, Principal Administrative Analyst, Business 
Outreach, External Affairs Group

1.2 Pledge of Allegiance: Director Smith, San Diego County Water Authority

2. Roll Call

3. Determination of a Quorum

4. Opportunity for members of the public to address the Board on 
matters within the Board's jurisdiction.  (As required by Gov. Code § 
54954.3(a))

5. OTHER MATTERS AND REPORTS

A. 21-432Report on Directors' events attended at Metropolitan expense

B. 21-433General Manager's summary of activities

C. 21-434General Counsel's summary of activities

D. 21-435General Auditor's summary of activities

E. 21-436Ethics Officer's summary of activities

F. 21-437Presentation of 5-year Service Pin to Director Gloria Cordero, 
representing the city of Long Beach

Zoom Online

https://mwdh2o.legistar.com/Calendar.aspx
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=1522
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=1523
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=1524
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=1525
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=1526
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=1527


Board of Directors September 14, 2021

Page 2 

** CONSENT CALENDAR OTHER ITEMS -- ACTION **

6. CONSENT CALENDAR OTHER ITEMS - ACTION

A. 21-424Approval of the Minutes of the Adjourned Meeting for August 17, 
2021 (Copies have been submitted to each Director) Any additions, 
corrections, or omissions

B. Approve Committee Assignments

** END OF CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS **

7. CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS - ACTION

7-1 21-405Authorize an increase of $185,000 to an agreement with Rincon 
Consultants, Inc. for a new not-to-exceed amount of $1 million for 
services related to the preparation of a Climate Action Plan and 
CEQA documentation; the General Manager has determined that 
the proposed action is exempt or otherwise not subject to CEQA 
(EO)

09142021 EO 7-1 B-L.pdfAttachments:

7-2 21-406Award an $11,604,521 contract to Ameresco, Inc. for construction 
of battery energy storage systems at the Joseph Jensen and 
Robert A. Skinner Water Treatment Plants; and authorize increase 
of $550,000 to an agreement with Stantec Inc. for engineering 
services for a new not-to-exceed total of $1,450,000; the General 
Manager has determined that the proposed action is exempt or 
otherwise not subject to CEQA (EO)

09142021 EO 7-2 B-L.pdfAttachments:

7-3 21-407Authorize an agreement with HDR Engineering, Inc., in an amount 
not to exceed $635,000 for engineering design services to upgrade 
the 2.4 kV power line that serves the Black Metal Mountain 
communications site; the General Manager has determined that 
this proposed action is exempt or otherwise not subject to CEQA 
(EO)

09142021 EO 7-3 B-L.pdfAttachments:

Zoom Online

http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=1514
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=1495
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b8a779b6-b1bc-4e38-bcc4-5c539fc81ce6.pdf
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=1496
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=ff535b10-0385-4893-bcd0-8dc374fa58ab.pdf
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=1497
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=62849f70-ce51-4980-973b-dc7ecb1d9271.pdf


Board of Directors September 14, 2021

Page 3 

7-4 21-468Express support for the 2021 California Resilience Challenge; and 
approve a financial sponsorship of $200,000 to continue as a 
Resilience Leader and Steering Committee member; the General 
Manager has determined the proposed action is exempt or 
otherwise not subject to CEQA. [Posting Separately] (WPS)

7-5 21-409Declare two parcels, totaling 1.25 acres, along the Val Verde 
Tunnels, in the unincorporated Mead Valley community within the 
County of Riverside, California, as surplus land and not necessary 
for Metropolitan's use and authorize staff to dispose of the 
properties; the General Manager has determined the proposed 
action is exempt or otherwise not subject to CEQA (RPAM)

09142021 RPAM 7-5 B-L.pdfAttachments:

7-6 21-411Authorize the General Manager to acquire up to 702 gross acres 
(up to 665 water toll acres) of property located in Riverside County 
in the Palo Verde Valley from Cox Family Farms, LLC, subject to a 
leased occupancy reservation; the General Manager has 
determined that the proposed action is exempt or otherwise not 
subject to CEQA 
[Conference with real property negotiators; property identified as 
Riverside County Assessor’s Parcel Nos. 821-140-002 (a portion 
of); 821-140-007; 830-110-001 (a portion of); 830-110-002; 
830-120-009; 836-031-007; 836-031-008; 863-120-005; 
863-170-003; 863-170-009; 863-180-001 (a portion of); 
863-180-002; 879-130-010; 879-130-011; agency negotiators: 
Jennifer G. Ryan and Seyou Oh; negotiating parties: Cox Family 
Farms, LLC and Coxco, LLC; under negotiation: price and terms; to 
be heard in closed session pursuant to Gov. Code Section 
54956.8] (RPAM)

7-7 21-463Authorize an increase in the maximum amount payable under 
contract with Ryan & Associates for legal services related to 
general real estate and leasing law issues by $100,000 to a 
maximum amount payable of $200,000; the General Manager has 
determined that the proposed action is exempt or otherwise not 
subject to CEQA (LC)

09142021 LC 7-7 B-L.pdfAttachments:

Zoom Online

http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=1558
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=1499
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=9d3dbe0a-1c64-4fa0-af84-ada20cf3dc1e.pdf
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=1501
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=1553
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b9659cce-a681-4dfc-8da1-62196382bfd7.pdf


Board of Directors September 14, 2021

Page 4 

7-8 21-415Report on existing litigation OHL USA, Inc. v. The Metropolitan 
Water District of Southern California, Los Angeles Superior Court 
Case No. 19STCV27689; and authorize increase of maximum 
amount payable under contract with Theodora Oringher PC for 
legal services by $200,000 to an amount not to exceed $1,100,000 
(Approp. 154170); the General Manager has determined that the 
proposed action is exempt or otherwise not subject to CEQA
[Conference with legal counsel - existing litigation; to be heard in 
closed session pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)] . 
[Posting Separately] (LC)

8. OTHER BOARD ITEMS - ACTION

None

9. BOARD INFORMATION ITEMS

9-1 21-416Update on Conservation Program

09142021 9-1 Report.pdfAttachments:

9-2 21-417Information on a potential seasonal land fallowing pilot program 
with the Quechan Indian Tribe of the Fort Yuma Indian Reservation 
and farmers within the Quechan Indian Unit for 2022-2023 (WPS)

09142021 WPS 9-2 B-L.pdfAttachments:

9-3 21-418Considerations for purchasing land which uses higher-priority 
Colorado River water supplies (WPS)

09142021 WPS 9-3 B-L.pdfAttachments:

9-4 21-419Report on Rate Refinement Workgroup’s Review of Demand 
Management Cost Recovery Alternatives. [Posting Separately] (FI)

9-5 21-420Mid-cycle Biennial Budget Review (FI)

09142021 FI 9-5 BL.pdfAttachments:

9-6 21-470Update on fall and winter water conservation advertising and 
outreach campaign to be paid from Board-approved conservation 
budget. [Posting Separately]

10. FOLLOW-UP ITEMS

None

Zoom Online

http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=1505
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=1506
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=1fd13341-6d24-4756-97ed-498381b14e4c.pdf
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=1507
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=cc38b50d-0545-42bd-91f8-1c3f3767044a.pdf
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=1508
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=3f16167a-1fc4-4986-808d-2c222d2d95c2.pdf
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=1509
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=1510
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=0f04da01-16e8-4a49-9064-d8e72528eae8.pdf
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=1560


Board of Directors September 14, 2021

Page 5 

11. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

12. ADJOURNMENT

NOTE:

At the discretion of the Board, all items appearing on this agenda and all committee agendas, whether or not 
expressly listed for action, may be deliberated and may be subject to action by the Board. 

Each agenda item with a committee designation will be considered and a recommendation may be made by one or 
more committees prior to consideration and final action by the full Board of Directors.  The committee designation 
appears in parenthesis at the end of the description of the agenda item e.g.  (E&O, BF&I).  Committee agendas may 
be obtained from the Executive Secretary. 

Requests for a disability related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, in order to 
attend or participate in a meeting should be made to the Executive Secretary in advance of the meeting to ensure 
availability of the requested service or accommodation.

Zoom Online



        AGENCY  
REPRESENTATIVES’ 

      REPORTS 

   4C 



 

 
Regional Sewerage Program  

Policy Committee Meeting 
 

AGENDA 
Thursday, September 2, 2021 

3:30 p.m. 
Teleconference Call 

 
PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF EXECUTIVE ORDER N-25-20 ISSUED BY GOVERNOR GAVIN 

NEWSOM ON MARCH 12, 2020, AND EXECUTIVE ORDER N-29-20 ISSUED BY GOVERNOR GAVIN 

NEWSOM ON MARCH 17, 2020 ANY COMMITTEE MEMBER MAY CALL INTO THE COMMITTEE 

MEETING WITHOUT OTHERWISE COMPLYING WITH ALL BROWN ACT’S TELECONFERENCE 

REQUIREMENTS. 

In effort to prevent the spread of COVID-19, the Regional Sewerage Program Policy Committee Meeting 

will be held remotely by teleconference. 

Teams Conference Link: https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-

join/19%3ameeting_NWU1NzA2NDktM2VjMC00NDU1LTkxMmUtMjYyMjA2YWM3YWU4%40thread.v

2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%224c0c1e57-30f3-4048-9bd2-

cd58917dcf07%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22329ec40e-eb94-4218-9621-6bfa0baa9697%22%7d 

Teleconference: 1-415-856-9169/Conference ID: 552 973 583# 

This meeting is being conducted virtually by video and audio conferencing. There will be no public 

location available to attend the meeting; however, the public may participate and provide public 

comment during the meeting by calling into the number provided above.  Alternatively, you may email 

your public comments to the Recording Secretary Laura Mantilla at lmantilla@ieua.org no later 

than 24 hours prior to the scheduled meeting time. Your comments will then be read into the record 

during the meeting. 

   

 
Call to Order/Flag Salute  
 
Roll Call  

 
Public Comment 
 

 
Members of the public may address the Committee on any item that is within the jurisdiction of the 
Committee; however, no action may be taken on any item not appearing on the agenda unless the 
action is otherwise authorized by Subdivision (b) of Section 54954.2 of the Government Code.  
Comments will be limited to three minutes per speaker. 
 

 
 
 

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_NWU1NzA2NDktM2VjMC00NDU1LTkxMmUtMjYyMjA2YWM3YWU4%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%224c0c1e57-30f3-4048-9bd2-cd58917dcf07%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22329ec40e-eb94-4218-9621-6bfa0baa9697%22%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_NWU1NzA2NDktM2VjMC00NDU1LTkxMmUtMjYyMjA2YWM3YWU4%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%224c0c1e57-30f3-4048-9bd2-cd58917dcf07%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22329ec40e-eb94-4218-9621-6bfa0baa9697%22%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_NWU1NzA2NDktM2VjMC00NDU1LTkxMmUtMjYyMjA2YWM3YWU4%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%224c0c1e57-30f3-4048-9bd2-cd58917dcf07%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22329ec40e-eb94-4218-9621-6bfa0baa9697%22%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_NWU1NzA2NDktM2VjMC00NDU1LTkxMmUtMjYyMjA2YWM3YWU4%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%224c0c1e57-30f3-4048-9bd2-cd58917dcf07%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22329ec40e-eb94-4218-9621-6bfa0baa9697%22%7d
mailto:lmantilla@ieua.org


Regional Sewerage Program Policy Committee Meeting Agenda 
September 2, 2021 
Page 2 of 2 

Additions to the Agenda 

In accordance with Section 54954.2 of the Government Code (Brown Act), additions to the agenda require 

two-thirds vote of the legislative body, or, if less than two-thirds of the members are present, a 

unanimous vote of those members present, that there is a need to take immediate action and that the 

need for action came to the attention of the local agency subsequent to the agenda being posted. 

1. Technical Committee Report (Oral)

2. Action Item
A. Approval of August 5, 2021 Policy Committee Meeting Minutes

3. Informational Items
A. CBP|WSIP Update

B. Regional Contract Negotiation Update (Oral)

4. Receive and File
A. Building Activity Reporting
B. Recycled Water Distribution – Operations Summary
C. CBP|WSIP Workgroup Meeting Presentation

5. Policy Committee Items Distributed
A. Response to August 5, 2021 Policy Committee Questions Related to

Wastewater Connection Fees

6. Other Business
A. IEUA General Manager’s Update
B. Committee Member Requested Agenda Items for Next Meeting
C. Committee Member Comments
D. Next Meeting – October 7, 2021

Adjournment 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in 

this meeting, please contact the Recording Secretary (909) 993-1926, 48 hours prior to the scheduled 

meeting so that the Agency can make reasonable arrangements. 

DECLARATION OF POSTING 
I, Sally H. Lee, Executive Assistant of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency, A Municipal Water District, hereby certify that 
a copy of this agenda has been posted to the IEUA Website at www.ieua.org and posted at the Agency's main office 
at 6075 Kimball Avenue, Building A, Chino, CA, by Thursday, August 26, 2021. 

Sally H. Lee 

http://www.ieua.org/


        AGENCY  
REPRESENTATIVES’ 

      REPORTS 

   4E 



SPECIAL BOARD MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
CHINO BASIN DESALTER AUTHORITY 

September 2, 2021    2:00 p.m. 

NOTICE AND AGENDA 

All documents available for public review are on file with the Authority’s 
Secretary located at 3550 E. Philadelphia Street, Suite 170, Ontario, CA  91761 

According to the directives from the California Department of Public Health and Executive Order N-08-21 issued 
by Governor Gavin Newsom, members of the public are invited to participate via video or teleconference 

 

To join teleconference:         

Dial-in #:  (669) 900 6833  Zoom Meeting ID: 813 5205 9101                Passcode: 380557 

To join video conference:   

Click on link:  Join Zoom Meeting 

Or copy URL:  https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81352059101?pwd=M01uOEVteVBCTnVyZ0tKVUxrb1hHdz09 

Or go to  https://zoom.us/   Zoom Meeting ID: 813 5205 9101                Passcode: 380557 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

Members of the public may address the Board of Directors on any item that is within the jurisdiction of 
the Chino Basin Desalter Authority; however, no action may be taken on any item not appearing on the 
agenda unless the action is otherwise authorized by Subdivision (b) of Section 54954.2 of the 
Government Code. Those persons wishing to address the Board of Directors on any matter, whether or 
not it appears on the agenda, are requested to submit their request to comment to the Board 
Secretary no less than one hour prior to the start of the meeting at  (909) 218-3230 or 
ccosta@chinodesalter.org 

Under the provisions of the Brown Act, the CDA Board is prohibited from taking action on non-agendized 
matters.  However, Board Members may respond briefly or refer the communication to staff.  The CDA 
Board may also request the Secretary to calendar an item related to your communication at a future CDA 
Board meeting. 

ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA 

In accordance with Section 54954.2 of the Government Code (Brown Act), additions to the agenda 
require two-thirds vote of the legislative body, or, if less than two-thirds of the members are present, a 
unanimous vote of those members present, that there is a need to take immediate action and that the 
need for action came to the attention of the local agency subsequent to the agenda being posted. 

ACTION ITEMS 

Prior to action of the CDA Board, any member of the public will have the opportunity to address the 
CDA Board on any item listed on the agenda by submitting written comments at least one hour prior 
to the start of the meeting at  (909) 218-3230 or ccosta@chinodesalter.org.  Please note the 
agenda item number in your email.  Comments will be read aloud during the meeting by the Board 
Secretary. 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81352059101?pwd=M01uOEVteVBCTnVyZ0tKVUxrb1hHdz09
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81352059101?pwd=M01uOEVteVBCTnVyZ0tKVUxrb1hHdz09
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81352059101?pwd=M01uOEVteVBCTnVyZ0tKVUxrb1hHdz09
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81352059101?pwd=M01uOEVteVBCTnVyZ0tKVUxrb1hHdz09
https://zoom.us/
https://zoom.us/
mailto:ccosta@chinodesalter.org
mailto:ccosta@chinodesalter.org
mailto:ccosta@chinodesalter.org


September 2, 2021 – Special Chino Basin Desalter Authority Board Meeting               Page 2 of 2 

1. MINUTES OF AUGUST 5, 2021 SPECIAL BOARD MEETING 

2. PURCHASE OF REVERSE OSMOSIS (RO) MEMBRANES ELEMENTS 
Report By: Thomas O’Neill, CDA General Manager/CEO 

Staff Recommendation:  

1. Approve a purchase order with Dupont for the supply of RO membrane elements in the 
amount of $389,700. 

3. ACCEPTANCE OF GRANT OF PIPELINE EASEMENT BETWEEN TDC 
REMINGTON PARTNERS LLC THE CHINO BASIN DESALTER AUTHORITY 
 Report By: Thomas O’Neill, CDA General Manager/CEO 

Staff Recommendation:  

1. Authorize the General Manager to execute an easement agreement with TDC 
Remington. 

 
STAFF COMMENTS 

i. Deputy CDA General Counsel, Allison Burns 

ii. CDA CFO/Treasurer, Michael Chung 

iii. CDA General Manager/CEO, Thomas O’Neill  

CLOSED SESSION 
The Authority may adjourn to a Closed Session to consider litigation matters, personnel matters, or other matters 
as provided for in the Ralph M. Brown Act (Section 54950 et seq., of the Government Code). 

4. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION: 
CONSIDERATION OF INITIATION OF LITIGATION PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT 
CODE SECTION 54956.9(D)(4) 

(ONE POTENTIAL CASE) 

5 CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION: 
SIGNIFICANT EXPOSURE TO LITIGATION PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE 
SECTION 54956.9(D)(2)     

(ONE POTENTIAL CASE) 

DIRECTOR COMMENTS 

ADJOURN 

Declaration of Posting 

I, Casey Costa, Executive Assistant to the Chino Basin Desalter Authority, hereby certify that a copy of this agenda has been 
posted by 2:00 p.m. at the Chino Basin Desalter Authority’s main office, 3550 Philadelphia Street, Suite 170, Ontario, CA on 
August 30, 2021. 
_____________________________________ 
Casey Costa, Executive Assistant  

Any person with a disability who requires accommodations in order to participate in this meeting or for package materials in 
an alternative format should telephone Executive Assistant Casey Costa at (909) 218-3730, at least 48 hours prior to the 
meeting in order to make a request for a disability-related modification or accommodation.  All accommodation requests will 
be handled swiftly and resolving all doubts in favor of access  Copies of records provided to Board Members which relate 
to any agenda item to be discussed in open session may be obtained from Chino Basin Desalter Authority at 3550 
Philadelphia Street, Suite 170, Ontario, CA 91761. 



   GENERAL 
 MANAGER’S 
       REPORT 

    
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

AUGUST 2021 NOTES: 

 

• The total stormwater and dry weather flows 

recharged in August are preliminarily estimated at 

71 acre-feet. 

• Recycled water delivered for recharge in August 

totaled 1,375 acre-feet. 

• Imported water from Cucamonga basin into Chino 

basin preliminary totaled 105 acre-feet. 

• Chino Basin Watermaster will remove 4.2% for 

evaporation losses from delivered supplemental 

water sources (imported water and recycled water). 

• Considering evaporation losses, total recharge for 

August is preliminarily estimated at 1,489 acre-feet. 

 

Recycled Water  

Total Groundwater Recharge & Recycled Water Delivered to Groundwater 

Recharge 

Recycled Water Use Agency-Wide Effluent TDS & TIN – 12-Month Running Avg  

 

aAverage 

Full Service Imported Water Deliveries Summary  

(FY 2015/16 to 2020/21) 

GENERAL MANAGER’S 

REPORT 

 

SEPTEMBER 2021 

 

Imported Water 

A
F
 

Imported Water TDS Summary  

(FY 2015/16 to 2020/21) 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Bid & Award Look Ahead Schedule 

Active Capital Improvement Project 

Status 

Emergency Projects 

 

 

Agency Highlights 

 
 

- The Philadelphia Force Main Improvements Project was selected for funding 

through the State Water Resources Control Board’s State Revolving Fund 

Program covering 49 percent of the project costs. The project will improve 

maintenance access and remove accumulated deposit buildup by providing 

new force main pipelines with clean-out vaults for the Philadelphia, and 

Montclair and San Bernardino Lift Stations. Other work includes 

miscellaneous upgrades and site grading improvements. 

- Operations and Maintenance staff completed the cleaning of the RP-5 De-

Chlorination Basin Structure with the support from divers. The project was 

completed while maintaining full treatment capacity and there was no 

safety or permit issues resulting from the work. 

- The California Association of Sanitation Agencies (CASA) installed IEUA 

President Hall as President of CASA. CASA represents over 100 public 

agencies that engage in the collection, treatment or disposal of wastewater, 

resource recovery or water recycling. 

- On August 16, a workgroup meeting was held to discuss the CBP/WSIP 

potential rate impacts, funding alternatives, and how program costs will be 

allocated between regional benefits and participating agencies. 

- On September 1, the Agency celebrated the STAR Award recipients for the 

first half of FY2020/2021. The STAR Award winners were Edward 

Chavez/Operations, Miriam Solis/Administration, and Christian 

Gomez/Engineering.  

- Staff continues to provide tours of the construction of the RP-5 Expansion 

Project site to IEUA staff as well as staff and policy members from outside 

agencies.  

 
 
 

 

COVID-19 Response: 

Management team and key staff members continue to meet regularly to 

discuss Agency impacts from COVID-19.  

Engineering & Construction Management FY 21/22 

Budget Status Update 

Pulse of the Organization  

Grants 

 
Financial Update  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Human Resources 

 

Staffing Levels 

Ethnicity 

Staffing Levels 
Staffing Levels 

Staffing Levels 

 

 

 

Biosolids/Compost 

 

T
o

n
s 

IERCF Inbound & Outbound  

 Gender 

https://www.dropbox.com/s/bczrj9ziv2b7fxb/21219%20GM%20Report%20Sep%20Attachment%201%20-%20Bid%20%26%20Award%20draft.pdf?dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/s/bczrj9ziv2b7fxb/21219%20GM%20Report%20Sep%20Attachment%201%20-%20Bid%20%26%20Award%20draft.pdf?dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/s/93mqstp7e80159g/21219%20GM%20Report%20Sep%20Attachment%202%20-%20Capital%20Improvements.pdf?dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/s/93mqstp7e80159g/21219%20GM%20Report%20Sep%20Attachment%202%20-%20Capital%20Improvements.pdf?dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/s/ncrvalqtlmuxr9d/21219%20GM%20Report%20Sep%20Attachment%203%20-%20Emergency%20Projects.pdf?dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/s/ncrvalqtlmuxr9d/21219%20GM%20Report%20Sep%20Attachment%203%20-%20Emergency%20Projects.pdf?dl=0


 
 

   
 

 
 

 Bid and Award Look Ahead Schedule 
  Project Name 

Projected  
Bid Opening 

Date 

Projected 
Bid Award 

Date 
 Oct-21   

1 EN20040.00  HQ Driveway Improvements 09/09/2021 10/20/2021 

 Nov-21   

2 EN22034.00  RP-1 Generator Control Panel Retrofit/Modernization 9/30/2021 11/17/2021 

 Dec-21   

3 EN22043.00 Agency Wide Chemical Containment Area Rehabilitation Phase 2 11/3/2021 12/15/2021 

 Jan-22   

4 EN21042.00  RP-1 East Influent Gate Replacement 11/3/2021 1/19/2022 

5 EN22033.00  RP-5 Emergency Generator Load Bank Installation 11/20/2021 1/19/2022 

6 EN11039.00  RP-1 Disinfection Pump Improvements 11/16/2021 1/19/2022 

7 EN20064.00  NSNT Sewer Siphon Replacement 12/2/2021 1/19/2022 

8 EN22014.00  NRWS Manhole Upgrades FY 21/22 11/30/2021 1/19/2022 

9 EN22015.00  Collection System Upgrades FY 21/22 11/30/2021 1/19/2022 

10 EN22042.00  RP-4 Ammonia Analyzer and Support System 12/8/2021 1/19/2022 

 Feb-22   

11 RW15003.03  Montclair Basin Improvements  12/31/2021 2/16/2022 

 May-22   

12 EN0000000066  Preserve Lift Station Improvements 4/6/2022 5/18/2022 

 Jun-22   

13 EN17006.00  CCWRF Asset Management Improvements 4/28/2022 6/15/2022 

14 EN23002.00  Philadelphia Lift Station Force Main Improvements 5/4/2022 6/15/2022 

 Aug-22   

15 EN22027.00  RP-1 Repurpose Lab 6/5/2022 8/17/2022 

16 EN20051.00  RP-1 MCB and Old Lab Building Rehab 6/5/2022 8/17/2022 

 

 

Bid and Award Look Ahead Schedule 



 
 

   

 

 

     

Agency‐Wide 

No.  Project ID  Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 
thru 8/31 

($) 

Total Project  
Budget 
($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status  Schedule Recovery Plan 

1 
EN22055.01  Turner 4A Splitter Box Repair                          ‐                  100,000   On‐Time  Project 

Development 
  

2  EN22040.00  NFPA 70E Arc Flash Labels                        86                210,000   On‐Time  Pre‐Design    

3  EN19024.00  Regional System Asset Management (Assessment Only)            1,075,003            2,800,000   On‐Time  Pre‐Design    

4  EN19023.00  Asset Management Planning Document              485,440                750,000   On‐Time  Pre‐Design    

5  PA20003.00  Agency Wide Paving                97,990                640,000   On‐Time  Design    

6  EN19051.00  RW Hydraulic Modeling                95,490                225,282   On‐Time  Design    

7 
FM21005.01  Agency Wide Roofing Phase IV                93,304            2,600,000   Behind 

Schedule  Design 
The planned project’s milestones were adjusted to ensure available funding based on the TYCIP. 
However, if materials become available and costs stabilize, the Agency will move forward on the 
original schedule. 

8 
EN22043.00  Agency Wide Chemical Containment Area Rehabilitation Phase 2                    1,658                505,000  

On‐Time  Design 
  

9 
EN21036.01  CB‐11 Turnout Cabinet Repairs                 19,462                100,000   Behind 

Schedule 
Bid & Award 

The project was advertised on Planetbids. However, not enough interest was generated. As a 
result, the scope has been revised to be re‐advertise later date.   

10  EN19030.00  WC Asset Management (Assessment Only)                 64,261                130,000   On‐Time  Construction    

11  EN22045.00  New Regional Project PDR's                          ‐               2,500,000   N/A  Not Started    

      Sub Total         1,932,693         10,560,282     

   

77%

2%

21%

Design Schedule Performance

On‐Time Recovery in Progress Behind Schedule

50%

0%

50%

Construction Schedule Performance

On‐Time Recovery in Progress Behind Schedule

Bid and Award Look Ahead Schedule 

Active Capital Improvement Project Status 



 
 

Carbon Canyon  

No.  Project ID  Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 
thru 8/31 

($) 

Total Project  
Budget 
($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status  Schedule Recovery Plan 

12 
EN17006.00  CCWRF Asset Management and Improvements            3,697,154          26,803,299   Recovery in 

Progress 
Design 

The delays are due to the waiting period needed for the approval of the project for the WIFIA 
funding.  

      Sub Total          3,697,154        26,803,299     

Chino Desalter Authority (CDA) 

No.  Project ID  Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 
thru 8/31 

($) 

Total Project  
Budget 
($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status  Schedule Recovery Plan 

13 
EN16021.00  TCE Plume Cleanup         29,611,288          26,200,000   Behind 

Schedule 
Construction 

The well is online and is functioning, working on project closeout. 

      Sub Total       29,611,288        26,200,000           

Collections 

No.  Project ID  Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 
thru 8/31 

($) 

Total Project  
Budget 
($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status  Schedule Recovery Plan 

14  EN21058.00  Regional Sewer‐Hydraulic Modeling                  17,556                   70,000   On‐Time  Pre‐Design    

15  EN22015.00  Collection System Upgrades FY 21/22                   2,853                500,000   On‐Time  Design    

16  EN22014.00  NRWS Manhole Upgrades FY 21/22                   2,539                200,000   On‐Time  Design    

17  EN20064.00  NSNT Odor Complaints Mitigation               344,781                500,000   On‐Time  Design    

18 
EN19025.00  Regional Force Main Improvements            1,491,534            4,800,000   Behind 

Schedule  Construction 
Construction has been delayed due to interference with existing utilities and revised traffic control 
requirements.  The contractor has agreed to a non‐compensable time extension.  No recovery is 
possible. 

19  EN19028.00  NRW Man Hole and Pipeline Condition Assessment               428,105                915,000   On‐Time  Construction    

20 
EN22002.00  NRW East End Flowmeter Replacement          2,690,658            3,600,000   Behind 

Schedule  Construction 
The Contractor has been issued 2 change orders with time extensions. Delays were caused by the 
relocation of an unknown SoCalGas pipeline and COVID‐19 impacts to the delivery of the ABB Flow 
Meter. The new contract completion date is 9/28/2021. 

21  EN19027.00  NRW Pipeline Relining Along Cucamonga Creek             298,022             2,395,000   On‐Time  Construction    

22  EN20056.00  RSS Haven Avenue Repairs              401,260             5,850,000   On‐Time  Construction    

23 
EN21014.00  NRWS Manhole Upgrades FY 20/21               122,813                180,000  

On‐Time 
Project 

Acceptance 
  

24 
EN21015.00  Collection System Upgrades FY 20/21              363,772                500,000  

On‐Time 
Project 

Acceptance 

  

25  EN22038.00  RP‐2 Digester 3 & 4 Exterior Condition Assessment & Repairs                          ‐                     35,000   N/A  Not Started    

26  EN22036.00  RP‐1 Centrate Pipeline Assessment                          ‐                     11,000   N/A  Not Started    

27  EN22039.00  RP‐4 SCADA Performance Improvement                          ‐               1,012,000   N/A  Not Started    

28  EN22046.00  New NRW Project PDR's                          ‐                  500,000   N/A  Not Started    

      Sub Total         6,163,893         21,068,000           

Groundwater Recharge 

No.  Project ID  Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 
thru 8/31 

($) 

Total Project  
Budget 
($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status  Schedule Recovery Plan 

29  EN21051.00  Ely Monitoring Well                68,605                585,000   On‐Time  Pre‐Design    

30 
RW15003.03  Montclair Basin Improvements              299,530             1,788,100   Behind 

Schedule 
Design 

The project is still waiting on the final 401 permit with the state. Bid and award will begin in late 
July or August. The project schedule will be re‐baselined after the construction contract award. 

31 
RW15003.06  Wineville/Jurupa/Force Main Improvements              1,714,763           14,517,842   On‐Time 

Construction 
The project was awarded to MNR. The project will be re‐baselined after confirming the project 
timeline with MNR. 

32 

RW15004.00  Lower Day Basin Improvements            3,859,121            4,008,000   Behind 
Schedule 

Construction 

The Project had unforeseen COVID‐19 delays due to Southern California Edison (SCE) not 
completing its electrical connection for the project as initially scheduled. The current plan is to 
adjust the schedule to meet SCE’s timeline and work with the contractor to mitigate any further 
delays. 



 
 

Groundwater Recharge (Cont.) 

No.  Project ID  Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 
thru 8/31 

($) 

Total Project  
Budget 
($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status  Schedule Recovery Plan 

33  EN22049.00  GWR‐RW OIT Upgrades                          ‐                     56,100   N/A  Not Started    

34  EN21057.00  Recharge Basin Clean‐up of Illegally Dumped Materials                    2,105                245,538   N/A  Not Started    

      Sub Total          5,944,125         21,200,580           

Headquarters 

No.  Project ID  Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 
thru 8/31 

($) 

Total Project  
Budget 
($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status  Schedule Recovery Plan 

35  EN21049.00  Main HDQ Improvements Office Addition                46,220                110,000   On‐Time  Design    

36  EN20040.00  HQ Driveway Improvements               122,950                300,000   On‐Time  Bid & Award    

37 
EN20008.00  HQ Parking Lot FY19/20                 53,410                440,000  

On‐Time  Bid & Award 
  

      Sub Total            222,580              850,000           

Lift Stations 

No.  Project ID  Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 
thru 8/31 

($) 

Total Project  
Budget 
($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status  Schedule Recovery Plan 

38 
EN22020.00  Philadelphia Lift Station Pump Upgrades                        34             2,500,000  

On‐Time 
Project 

Evaluation 
  

39 
EN22023.00  Prado Dechlor Sump Pump Replacement                          ‐                  360,000   On‐Time  Project 

Evaluation 
  

40 
EN22048.00  PLS Generator Control Panel Retrofit/Modernization                       455                   45,000  

On‐Time 
Project 

Evaluation 
  

41 
EN0000000066  Preserve Lift Station Improvements                39,733                            ‐     Behind 

Schedule  Design 
After delays during the RFP process to receive three responsive proposals, additional time is 
needed to draft a reimbursement agreement between IEUA and the City of Chino. It is expected 
that lost time will be recovered during design and construction. 

42 
EN23002.00  Philadelphia Lift Station Force Main Improvements              1,107,817           18,258,000   Behind 

Schedule  Design 
The delays to the schedule are attributed to addressing the City of Ontario’s comments in addition 
to awaiting the WIFIA funding approval and availability. The project will be re‐baselined at 
construction contract award. 

43  EN22037.00  Prado De‐Chlorination Station Inundation Protection                   1,830                380,000   N/A  Not Started    

      Sub Total            1,149,869           21,543,000           

Regional Water Recycling Plant No. 1 (RP‐1) 

No.  Project ID  Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 
thru 8/31 

($) 

Total Project  
Budget 
($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status  Schedule Recovery Plan 

44 
EN22031.00  RP‐1 Influent Pump Station Electrical Improvements                   4,565            3,000,000  

On‐Time 
Project 

Evaluation 
  

45 
EN22034.00  RP‐1 Generator Control Panel Retrofit/Modernization                       941                   85,000  

On‐Time 
Project 

Evaluation 
  

46 
EN22027.00  RP‐1 Repurpose Lab                          ‐               1,040,000  

On‐Time 
Project 

Evaluation 
  

47 
EN22029.00  RP‐1 Repurpose Lab Assessment                          ‐                     50,000  

On‐Time 
Project 

Evaluation 
  

48 
EN21056.00  RP‐1 Evaporative Cooling for Aeration Blower Building                      349                300,000   On‐Time  Project 

Evaluation 
  

49 
EN22022.00  RP‐1 Air Compressor Upgrades                      695             1,750,000   On‐Time  Project 

Evaluation 
  

50 
EN22024.00  RP‐1 Digester Cleaning Service Contract                          ‐             15,000,000   On‐Time  Project 

Evaluation 
  

   



 
 

Regional Water Recycling Plant No. 1 (RP‐1) (Cont.) 

No.  Project ID  Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 
thru 8/31 

($) 

Total Project  
Budget 
($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status  Schedule Recovery Plan 

51  EN11039.00  RP‐1 Disinfection Pump Improvements            1,108,239            8,490,000   On‐Time  Design    

52 

EN13016.05  SCADA Enterprise System ‐ (Regional Water Recycling Plant No. 1)           2,568,527            3,800,000   Behind 
Schedule 

Pre‐Design 

The project is behind schedule because the RP‐4 SCADA migration was re‐sequenced and 
completed before RP‐1.  The project will be re‐baselined once the construction contract is 
awarded for RP‐1.  The project is being expedited as much as possible; schedule recovery is not 
possible. 

53  EN21053.00  RP‐1 Old Effluent Structure Rehabilitation                 85,750                630,000   On‐Time  Pre‐Design    

54  EN22041.00  RP‐1 Aeration Basins Utility Water System Improvement                       212                141,000   On‐Time  Pre‐Design    

55  EN21042.00  RP‐1 East Influent Gate Replacement                52,239                450,000   On‐Time  Design    

56  EN20045.00  RP‐1 TP‐1 Level Sensor Replacement                 35,744                200,000   On‐Time  Design    

57 
PA17006.03  Agency‐Wide Aeration  (Budget is in PA17006)                513,140             2,956,605   Behind 

Schedule  Bid & Award 
Additional time was required to receive the final quote from the panel manufacturer which 
resulted in the project being behind schedule. The project will be re‐baselined next month when 
the construction begins. 

58  EN21044.00  RP‐1 Dewatering Centrate and Drainage Valves (MOV)                  99,157                320,000   On‐Time  Construction    

59 

EN19043.00  RP‐1 Centrifuge Foul Air Line              357,084                445,000  
Behind 
Schedule 

Construction 

The schedule delay is caused by ongoing maintenance work on Centrifuge 4 which could not be 
released to the Contractor to complete the work. Schedule recovery is not possible. A non‐
compensable time extension will be prepared at the end of the project once the final completion 
date is determined.  

60 

EN20041.00  RP‐1 TP‐1 Bleach Mixing Repairs               290,501                680,000   Behind 
Schedule 

Construction 

Schedule delays were caused by extensive field investigations and coordination with Operations 
staff to ensure a proper interface with the existing electrical and control systems. This came during 
the chemical metering pumps skid submittal review and approval process a non‐compensable time 
extension was processed to address the schedule delay.  Recovery is not possible. 

61 
EN20065.00  RP‐1 Solids Hot Water Loop Valves            1,312,245             1,560,000   Behind 

Schedule  Construction 
The project has unforeseen delays in procurement of the new pipeline. Additional days have been 
added to the contract to account for those delays. Currently no recovery is possible, but the 
project is moving quickly now that materials are on site. 

62 

EN17082.00  Mechanical Restoration and Upgrades            8,955,574           10,146,000   Behind 
Schedule 

Construction 

The project is behind schedule due to COVID‐19 delaying pump manufacturing. Additional delays 
were also incurred due to unexpected fiber optic cables that needed to be re‐routed in the field. 
The construction contract has been extended to 9/04/2021. The project is being expedited as 
much as possible; schedule recovery is not possible. 

63 

EN18006.00  RP‐1 Flare Improvements           5,382,912             7,650,000   Behind 
Schedule 

Construction 

Due to conflict with numerous underground utilities, part of the original design such as equipment 
foundations and mechanical gas piping could not be constructed. Redesign of this system resulted 
in schedule delays, change orders and overhead cost claimed by the Contractor. Potential project 
completion date is now March 2022. Schedule recovery is not possible. 

64 

EN17042.00  Digester 6 and 7 Roof Repairs           5,037,949             6,731,000   Behind 
Schedule 

Construction 

Multiple construction delays occurred during the construction phase of Digester No.6, including 
the loss of the coatings sub‐contractor, have placed the project behind schedule and recovery is 
not possible. A non‐compensable time extension change order was executed for this purpose. 
Digester 6 repairs and start‐up have been completed. Digester 7 predesign is in progress.  The 
project will be re‐baselined after the construction contract award for Digester 7. 

65  EN22025.00  RP‐1 Dump Station                          ‐               2,121,100   N/A  Not Started    

66  EN19009.00  RP‐1 Energy Recovery                          ‐               4,425,000   N/A  Not Started    

67  EN22021.00  RP‐1 Digester Area Utility Water (UW) Line Replacement                          ‐                  100,000   N/A  Not Started    

68  EN22032.00  RP‐1 TP‐1 Stormwater Drainage Upgrades                          ‐                     50,000   N/A  Not Started    

69  EN22044.00  RP‐1 Thickening Building & Acid Phase Digester                 13,563        100,000,000   N/A  Not Started    

      Sub Total       25,819,385         172,120,705           

   



 
 

Regional Water Recycling Plant No. 4 (RP‐4) 

No.  Project ID  Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 
thru 8/31 

($) 

Total Project  
Budget 
($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
   Schedule Recovery Plan 

70 
EN22035.00  RP‐4 Generator Control Panel Retrofit/Modernization                          ‐                     50,000  

On‐Time 
Project 

Evaluation 
  

71 
EN22042.00  RP‐4 Ammonia Analyzer and Support System                       797                500,000   Behind 

Schedule 
Project 

Evaluation 
The project evaluation took longer than anticipated due to changing of preferred equipment 
suppliers and coordination with Hach, Neuros, and Lincus was slow.  

72  EN21041.00  RP‐4 Contact Basin Cover & Wet Well Passive Overflow Replacement               141,493            3,920,000   On‐Time  Pre‐Design    

73  EN17043.00  RP4 Primary Clarifier Rehab          4,374,632             5,181,542   On‐Time  Construction    

74 
EN17110.00  RP‐4 Process Improvements          8,895,808           13,180,691   Behind 

Schedule 
Construction 

This project’s contract was extended 100 days due to the addition of the Neuros blowers. 
Recovery is not possible. 

75 
EN17110.03  RP‐4 Aeration Basin Wall Repair          3,098,369             5,052,448  

Behind 
Schedule 

Construction 
The project is delayed due to a combination of equipment delays related to COVID 19, and delays 
associated with coating contractor's scope.  Contract time extensions are currently being finalized 
with the  contractor. No recovery possible.  

76 
EN21060.00  RP‐4 Energy Meters                44,020                   50,000   Behind 

Schedule  Construction 
Implementation of new communication protocols for the meters/relays into the PlantPAx system 
is causing project delays.  In‐house Integration will be completed by September.  Completion is 
being expedited as much as possible, however schedule recovery is not possible. 

77  EN21034.03  RP‐4 12kV Breaker Repair and PM                   1,996                   50,000   On‐Time  Construction    

      Sub Total          16,557,116         27,984,681           

Regional Water Recycling Plant No. 5 (RP‐5) 

No.  Project ID  Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 
thru 8/31 

($) 

Total Project  
Budget 
($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status  Schedule Recovery Plan 

78 
EN21047.00  RP‐5 Bar Screen Inlet Gate Actuators Replacement                    3,518                370,000  

On‐Time 
Project 

Evaluation 
  

79 
EN22033.00  RP‐5 Emergency Generator Load Bank Installation                      599       

120,000  
On‐Time 

Project 
Evaluation 

  

80  EN19001.00  RP‐5 Expansion to 30 mgd        48,867,090         175,000,000   On‐Time  Construction    

81  EN19006.00  RP‐5 Biosolids Facility       48,860,989         165,400,000   On‐Time  Construction    

      Sub Total       97,732,196     340,890,000           

Recycled Water 

No.  Project ID  Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 
thru 8/31 

($) 

Total Project  
Budget 
($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status  Schedule Recovery Plan 

82 

EN15002.00  1158 Reservoir Site Cleanup               145,269             1,215,000   Behind 
Schedule  Project 

Evaluation 

The Department of Toxic Substances Control (DTSC) received and reviewed the project Work Plan. 
DTSC also completed the Facility‐initiated Corrective Agreement (FICA) with IEUA and is now 
requesting a complete Soil Management Plan (SMP) which was not requested earlier. The project 
will be re‐baselined upon approval from DTCS when the overall scope has been defined. 

83  EN21045.00  Montclair Force Main Improvements                112,592            6,800,000   On‐Time  Pre‐Design    

84  EN21050.00  8th Street RW Turnout Connection to the 1630 W Pipeline                69,474                835,000   On‐Time  Pre‐Design    

85 
EN20022.00  1299 Reservoir Paint/Coating Repairs and Upgrades                          ‐                  100,000   Behind 

Schedule 
Design 

Due to a possible complete change in project scope, the design will take longer than anticipated .  
No recovery possible. 

86 
EN17041.00  Orchard Recycled Water Turnout Improvements             406,323                477,000  

On‐Time 
Project 

Acceptance 

  

87  EN22047.00  New Recycled Water Project PDR's                          ‐                  500,000   N/A  Not Started    

      Sub Total            733,658           9,927,000           

      Overall Totals     189,563,958        679,147,547           

   



 
 

 

  
 
 

 
FY21/22 Emergency Projects 

   Project ID  Contractor  Task Order Description   Location  TO # 
Original Not‐to‐Exceed 

/Estimate 
Actual Cost thru 8/31  Date of Award  Status 

RP‐1 

1  EN22017.03  Mike Bubalo Construction  Recycled Water Line Repair for RP‐1  RP‐1  TO‐0004  21,710  0  8/10/2021  Active 

2  EN22019.01  W.A. Rasic Contracting  RP1 Scum Valve Replacement  RP‐1  TO‐0030  16,475  366  8/19/2021  Active 

        Sub Totals  38,185  366       

CCWRF 

3  EN22017.01  W.A. Rasic Construction Co., Inc.  CCWRF Secondary Clarifier and Headworks Leak Repair  CCWRF  TO‐0028  15,888  0  7/22/2021  Active 

        Sub Totals  15,888  0       

Recycled Water 

4  EN22017.02  W.A. Rasic Construction Co., Inc.  42" 1158 RW Leak  RW  TO‐0029   236,000  0  7/22/2021  Active 

      Sub Totals  236,000  0       

     Grand Total  305,961  0       

 
 

Contractor 
Task Order 
Description  

Details of the Circumstances/Cause of 
Emergency 

Scope of Repair  Location 
Date of Call 

Out 
Not‐to‐Exceed 
/Estimate 

Mike Bubalo Construction  TO‐0004 

Suspected recycled waterline leak near 
office building 

Leak detection and repairs 

RP‐1 

8/10/2021  24,000 

W.A. Rasic Contracting  TO‐0030 

The valve that feeds RAS 2 scum well 
outside of Building “E” at RP‐1 was 
broken and needed to be replaced 

Isolate the line where the broken valve was located (8” line connecting 
clarifiers 1,2,3, and 4 to the RAS 2 scum well) by installing inflatable 
plugs at each clarifier. Replace broken valve with a new scum valve 
provided by IEUA. Backfill and cleanup. 

RP‐1 

8/19/2021  16,475 

 

Emergency Projects 


	Agenda 1
	Agenda 2
	Agenda 3
	Agenda 4
	Agenda 5
	Agenda 6
	Consent Item 1A
	Consent Item 1B
	Consent Item 1C
	Consent Item 1D
	Consent Item 1E
	Consent Item 1F
	Consent Item 1G
	Consent Item 1H
	Action Item 2A
	Action Item 2B
	Action Item 2C
	Information Item 3B
	Information Item 3C
	Information Item 3D
	Information Item 3E
	Information Item 3F
	Information Item 3G
	Information Item 3H
	Information Item 3I
	Information Item 3J
	Information Item 3K
	Information Item 3L
	Information Item 3M
	Information Item 3N
	Information Item 3O
	Information Item 3P
	Agency Representatives' Report 4A
	Agency Representatives' Reports 4B
	Agency Representatives' Report 4C
	Agency Representatives' Report 4E
	General Manager's Report



